
 

If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format, please call Ruth Goldwater on 01432 260635 or e-mail 
ruth.goldwater@herefordshire.gov.uk in advance of the meeting. 

 

 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
Audit and Governance 
Committee 
 

 

Date: Tuesday 24 November 2015 

Time: 10.00 am 

Place: Committee Room 1, Shire Hall, St. Peter's Square, 
Hereford, HR1 2HX 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Ruth Goldwater 
Tel: 01432 260635 
Email: ruth.goldwater@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 



 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Audit and 
Governance Committee 
Membership  
  
Chairman Councillor BA Durkin 
Vice-Chairman Councillor FM Norman 
   
 Councillor ACR Chappell  
 Councillor DG Harlow  
 Councillor EPJ Harvey  
 Councillor PD Newman OBE  
 Councillor RJ Phillips  
 Councillor J Stone  
 Councillor LC Tawn  

 
Non Voting   

 
 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  24 NOVEMBER 2015 
 

 

AGENDA  
 Pages 
PUBLIC INFORMATION AND FIRE INFO 
 

 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

 

2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY) 
 

 

 To receive details any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting in 
place of a Member of the Committee. 
 

 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on the 
agenda. 
 

 

4. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

 

5. MINUTES 
 

7 - 16 

 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 23 September 2015. 
 

 

6. ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 
 

17 - 28 

 To consider and note the external auditor’s statutory annual audit letter (AAL) 
for 2014/15 which primarily sets out the unqualified audit opinion on both the 
financial statements and value for money conclusion. The AAL is intended to 
communicate key messages to the Council and external stakeholders. 
 

 

7. INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 
 

29 - 42 

 To update members on the progress of internal audit work and to bring to 
their attention any key internal control issues arising from work recently 
completed.  
 

 

8. CORPORATE RISK REGISTER 
 

43 - 44 

 To inform the Committee of the risks on the corporate risk register, so as to 
give assurance that risks are being managed. 
 

 

9. ENERGY FROM WASTE (EFW) LOAN UPDATE 
 

45 - 70 

 To provide assurance on the status of the energy from waste (EfW) loan 
arrangement. 
 

 

10. ANNUAL REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER 
 

71 - 76 

 To inform the committee of performance in the areas within the remit of the 
monitoring officer for the municipal year 2014/15. 
 

 

11. GOVERNANCE IMPROVEMENT WORKING GROUP UPDATE 
 

77 - 86 

 To note the work of the governance improvement working group to date and 
agree the draft design principles to inform the further work of the group. 
 

 

12. WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE 
 

87 - 92 

 To provide an update on the work programme for the committee for 2015-16. 
 

 





The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business 

to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six 
years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to 
four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a report is 
given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer 
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with 
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject 
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a 
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents. 

 

Public Transport Links 
 
• The Shire Hall is a few minutes walking distance from both bus stations located in the 

town centre of Hereford. 

5



RECORDING OF THIS MEETING 
 

Please note that filming, photography and recording of this meeting is permitted provided that 
it does not disrupt the business of the meeting. 
 
Members of the public are advised that if you do not wish to be filmed or photographed you 
should let the governance services team know before the meeting starts so that anyone who 
intends filming or photographing the meeting can be made aware. 
The reporting of meetings is subject to the law and it is the responsibility of those doing the 
reporting to ensure that they comply. 
 

 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 
In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the nearest available fire exit 
and make your way to the Fire Assembly Point in the Shire Hall car park. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning to collect coats or other 
personal belongings. 

The Chairman or an attendee at the meeting must take the signing in sheet so it can be 
checked when everyone is at the assembly point. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

6



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 

MINUTES of the meeting of Audit and Governance Committee 
held at Committee Room 1, Shire Hall, St. Peter's Square, 
Hereford, HR1 2HX on Wednesday 23 September 2015 at 10.00 
am 
  

Present: Councillor BA Durkin (Chairman) 
Councillor FM Norman (Vice Chairman) 

   
 Councillors: ACR Chappell, DG Harlow, EPJ Harvey, PD Newman OBE, J Stone 

and LC Tawn 
 
  
In attendance: Councillors AJW Powers, P Rone  

 
Officers: Annie Brookes, Paula Gibson (SWAP), Jacqui Gooding (SWAP), Phil Jones 

(Grant Thornton), Peter Robinson, Josie Rushgrove and Terry T Tobin (Grant 
Thornton) 
  

74. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
Apologies were received from Councillor RJ Phillips. 
 

75. NAMED SUBSTITUTES   
 
None. 
 

76. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
None. 
 

77. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS   
 
There would be a change to the order of items on the agenda, to consider Item 9 before Item 
5 and Item 7 before Item 6. This would help to contextualise the statement of accounts by the 
external auditors and for all financial agenda items to be grouped together.  
 
The Chairman and Vice-chairman attended a training event earlier in the month hosted by 
external auditors, Grant Thornton, from which the slides would be circulated to committee 
members. 
 
Members were reminded about forthcoming training in October hosted by internal auditors, 
SWAP which had been circulated previously.  
 
 

78. MINUTES   
 
RESOLVED  
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 16 July 2015 be accepted as a correct record. 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5

7



 

79. EXTERNAL AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT 2014-15   
 
The director of resources introduced the findings from Grant Thornton. The report was 
positive, and reflected the information that had been reported throughout the year.  
The accounts reflected compliance with regulations and focus on the balance sheet, 
giving the committee opportunity to consider issues such as the pension deficit, asset 
base and collections fund rather than budgetary issues.  
 
Representatives from Grant Thornton gave an overview of their findings from the 
executive summary. Few issues were found with the accounts and officers were 
commended for their work in producing good accounts. A key issue related to school 
assets, which are generally complicated for councils and assumptions needed to be 
made with regard to what needed to be shown on the balance sheet.  
 
In terms of value for money conclusion, it was reported that three of the eight authorities 
audited in the area by Grant Thornton were qualified. Herefordshire was unqualified and 
rated green on all areas of financial performance. A surplus was reported in 2014-15, 
and future challenges were recognised.  
 
Officers were thanked and congratulated for assisting with reporting and for modernising 
the process which was slicker. Any issues were in one area as a one-off in relation to 
school assets, and guidance had been given on improving some processes. 
 
The council had a more robust medium term financial plan. Adult spending was now 
under control and it was noted that this was unusual for councils.  
 
The chairman welcomed the positive comments and thanks to officers were noted.  
 
A member welcomed the higher reserve figures for the year and asked how 
Herefordshire compared with other councils with regard to schools reserves. It was 
confirmed that school reserves were probably slightly over average in comparison with 
others, noting that there were restrictions on powers in controlling school funds. Schools 
were monitored and it was clear what work was required in managing this issue. There 
were variations between schools and changes such as inflationary increases and 
salaries would put pressure on schools, and so support would be offered. It was noted 
that reserves were finite.   
 
A member commended officers for this report.  In answer to his question regarding what 
was considered to be of concern, it was explained that some judgements had to be 
made regarding the valuation of assets. It was noted that advice from CIPFA was not 
clear regarding the inclusion of assets with regard to voluntary aided and voluntary 
controlled schools. It was noted further that judgements were required with regard to 
non-domestic rates (NNDR) for GP surgeries. Pension funds were also coming under 
pressure.  Auditors formed conclusions on whether the assumptions were reliable with 
the advice from the actuary.   
 
Officers were congratulated by a member on the more robust process. She pointed out 
issues around deficit and risk management and asked for more information on the 
impact of reductions in staff numbers on the pension fund.  It was clarified that there was 
budgetary provision in the accounts to manage the pension fund deficit which is 
reviewed annually. In answer to her further question regarding the management of 
reserves, explanation was given that reserves had been too low but this had been 
addressed and although they were at a safe level, they required monitoring to ensure 
they were sufficient and used appropriately.  Auditors confirmed that there was 
reasonable confidence regarding reserves but it was noted that some reserves were 
kept for risk mitigation such as with regard to NNDR appeals from GP surgeries where 
there was some degree of uncertainty regarding required funds.   

8



 

 
The member noted that the mix of services implied a continued increase in reserves in 
line with increasing difficulty in managing responsibility. She commented that the report 
takes account of underspend, noting that if current spending plans were realised there 
would have been an over spend in 2015/16 of £1.2m.  
 
The director of resources gave assurance that there would be more robust estimates for 
children’s safeguarding in view of there being comparatively higher spending in 2016/17. 
 
The member noted that the medium term financial strategy included the generation of 
£60m from the sale of assets based on their valuation, noting that care was needed to 
get best value and reduce risk for council. In answer to her question regarding earlier 
settlement of the pension deficit, it was confirmed that this would be recommended 
should there be an appropriate opportunity.   
 
A member asked if there were any material bearings on the accounts that should be 
brought to the committee’s attention. It was confirmed that that the balance sheet was 
prepared with as much up to date information as possible and any issues raised in the 
letter of representation. However, it was positive in terms of reduced risks and there was 
nothing material to draw attention to.  
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the content of the external audit findings report be noted. 
 
 

80. 2014-15 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS   
 
Statement of Accounts 
 
The director of resources presented the report, highlighting that the accounts were better 
presented and provided more explanation in order to reflect good practice in making 
them more user friendly.   
 
In answer to a member’s question regarding any borrowing from the local enterprise 
partnership (LEP), it was confirmed that the LEP did not have funds from which the 
council could borrow.  
 
A member complimented officers on the user-friendly presentation of the accounts. In 
response the director of resources explained that the accounts were produced by a small 
team which did an excellent job. The team had responded one year early to national 
year end timescales being brought forward by one month which very few councils had 
achieved.  
 
The Chairman commended officers for reducing the process by one month.   
 
Annual Governance Statement 
 
The governance manager presented the annual governance statement, a draft of which 
was presented to the committee in July 2015.   The statement provided an updated 
outturn from last year’s action plan and showed more robust information and focus on 
expected outcomes to complete the action plan.  
 
A member commented that in terms of transparency and in the context of the current 
consultation on the council’s budget, there was work to do around increasing access for 
the public to participate. In particular this was in regard to technology and 
communications to ensure that aspirations were realised. 

9



 

 
The chairman noted these comments and acknowledged that progress was being made.  
Progress reports on the annual governance statement action plan would be presented to 
committee during the year.  
 
In response to comments about the website, the director of resources clarified that 
improvement work was under way with Hoople and the communications and customer 
service teams, with plans in place to improve the website. It was acknowledged that 
although web content was of good quality, it could be hard to find information. Other best 
practice solutions were being considered, provided they could be delivered within current 
resources.   
 
In response to a member’s question regarding school relocation overspend, it was 
clarified that this was not captured on the annual governance statement as not all parts 
of the risk register were included.  
 
A member sought assurance that there were sufficient governance resources to 
discharge responsibilities particularly around sound and informed decision making. It 
was clarified that whilst not part of this committee’s remit at this stage, reassurance had 
been given to the employment panel that the role of the monitoring officer was 
adequately resourced.   
 
RESOLVED 
 
That:  
 
(a) the 2014/15 statement of accounts (appendix a)  be approved; and  
(b) the letter of representation (appendix b) be signed by the chairman of audit 

& governance committee and the director of resources; and 
(c) the annual governance statement (appendix c) be approved and signed by 

the chairman of audit and governance committee, the chief executive and 
the director of resources. 

 
1 member abstained from recommendation (c) above. 
 

81. 2015-16 BI-ANNUAL FORECAST OF REVENUE AND CAPITAL OUTTURN   
 
The director of resources presented the report, which provided assurance that budget 
monitoring and management were appropriate. This was reported twice a year and 
showed how forecasting informed the accounts. This had already predicted an over 
spend of £1.3m in children’s safeguarding which had been mitigated and assurance was 
given that the budget would balance over all. The report as a whole gave a high level of 
assurance.    
 
In response to a member’s question regarding schools relocation overspend, it was 
confirmed that that was within children’s services, mitigation was identified and the 
position was being addressed.  
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the report and the forecast position be noted. 
 
 

82. COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW   
 
The governance manager presented the report. 
 

10



 

It was a requirement to carry out community governance reviews (CGRs) periodically 
and good practice suggested that this took place every 10 to 15 years. There were also 
a number of triggers for one to be considered, such as requests from the community, for 
example the recent review in Ross-on-Wye, or where it is shown that there are 
significant anomalies such as population changes.  There had not been a review for 
some twenty years, and in line with good practice, a review was due.  
 
A timetable for establishing the case for a county-wide review was set out in the report 
for consideration. The alternative would be to focus on individual areas. The report took 
a cautious approach in recognition of the statutory requirement to complete a review 
once it was decided to conduct it, and in consideration of the resources that would be 
required. A further consideration was the timing of implementing any changes alongside 
other electoral activity.   
 
The chairman reminded the committee of the 2012 boundary commission changes and 
advised caution that this could happen again around 2018 and would have a bearing on 
a review.  
 
A member acknowledged the potential scale of a review based on previous experience 
of the Ross review. It was confirmed that the permitted timescale commences once 
council decides it will undertake a county wide CGR.   There was no discretion for the 
council to vary this and so evidence was being gathered at this stage. All parish and 
town councils were consulted and were meeting in September. They were asked to 
identify what issues they would like to have covered in any review.  At the same time, 
data were being collected on elector numbers and aligning this to population growth 
predictions. Herefordshire Association of Local Councils (HALC) was engaged and was 
supporting parishes. As much ground work as possible was being carried out without 
entering into consultation as this would be part of the statutory process.   
 
A member sought reassurance that the problems and challenges were sufficiently clear 
and that it had been made clear to parishes about their responsibilities with regard to a 
review. It was confirmed that there had been discussions with HALC and it was 
concluded that that it would be better in practice to work alongside parishes to ensure 
that they did not feel passive in a review although the council had a responsibility to lead 
the process.     
 
The chairman welcomed the point that HALC were involved. It was noted that not all 
parish councils had HALC membership and that it was essential that all parish councils 
were included. 
 
The vice chairman welcomed a more receptive approach to parishes and an awareness 
of their concerns.  
 
A member in attendance commented on the determination of parish boundaries and 
asked how a review would align with area plans. In response, explanation was given that 
community identity, physical boundaries and also those boundaries defined by partners 
such as the police were taken into account in a review, and that timescales would need 
to be considered in relation to mapping of area plans.    
 
Further comments from members included: 
 

• Observation that the review had been discussed at some parish council meetings 
within a ward although it was not clear to what extent its significance had been 
acknowledged. There was also concern regarding capacity at parish level to 
respond to devolved responsibility; 

• feedback that parishes were content with their current arrangements;   

11



 

• implications related to issues in addition to area plans and that any future reviews 
of constituency boundaries  may have an impact on how parish boundaries are 
aligned; 

• more devolved powers may attract a different range of people taking part on 
parish councils, increasing opportunities for greater proactivity; 

• localities had been a useful concept with regard to service centres for delivering 
services especially in remoter areas; and  

• Stage 1 of the process outlined in the report was felt to be too short  
 

RESOLVED  
 
That the timetable as set out at paragraph 9 of the report be agreed. 
 
1 member abstained.  
 
 

83. WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY   
 
Review of this policy was part of the committee’s work programme. Consultation had 
taken place with unions and legislative changes had been recognised such as the 
inclusion of agency workers within the scope of the policy. There was also procedural 
guidance available and a discrepancy was noted between the policy and the procedure 
in relation to members, which would be corrected.   
 
Reporting on use of the procedure to the committee was via the annual monitoring 
officer’s report. 
 
A member welcomed the inclusion of the revised policy on the agenda and commented 
on the practical application of and relationship between this procedure and the grievance 
procedure, under which there is less protection.  It was noted that matters pertaining to 
individuals were not for discussion at committee. However, the intention was that the 
grievance process would be followed in the first instance, and referring to the 
whistleblowing procedure if there were concerns about conduct or application of the 
grievance procedure. It was the expectation that staff members would be directed to the 
grievance process.   
 
It was further noted that clarity was required on the length of time that a whistle blower 
would receive protection under the policy and not be placed in detriment and that the 
policy needed to be seen in practice to determine its effectiveness. It was noted that 
timescales were not prescribed within the process and this would be considered.  
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the revised whistle blowing policy be approved, effective 1 October 2015. 
 
1 member abstained.  
 
 

84. PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURE ACT (PIDA) WORKING GROUP UPDATE   
 
The update report summarised the working group that was established in 2014 in 
response to a report from external auditors, Grant Thornton, which highlighted areas of 
learning for future major projects, following the procurement and implementation of the 
customer relationship management (CRM) system.  
 
There remained one member of the group, who described that the group was set up as a 
task and finish group to consider the processes followed for the procurement and 

12



 

implementation of the customer relationship management (CRM) system following a 
whistleblowing matter raised by a member of staff. The working group met once in 
December 2014 to scope the work. The member added, however, that the group was 
advised to await development work on the whistleblowing policy and the constitution. 
There was a lack of continuity and the group did not meet again due to changes in 
personnel, resulting in the group not reaching a conclusion and issues not pursued.  
 
A member proposed that the group be reconvened, which was seconded by the vice 
chairman.  
 
There followed a discussion during which the following points were made by members: 
 

• a working group was required to investigate the processes followed for the 
implementation of the CRM and to identify lessons to be learned for other 
projects; 

• there was concern that the majority of members of the group were no longer 
around and that the findings so far lacked depth; 

• the group did not meet again after the initial meeting; 
• there was potential to gather people who have an interest in addressing the 

issues and to make it known that this is happening; 
• outcomes must be seen to be robust and so there would need to be a clear topic 

for a reconvened group to work to; 
• the report was factually correct but is not conclusive; 
• concern that work was held up pending work on the constitution. 

 
The governance manager referred to the report which described the group’s belief that 
the CRM processes were robust and sufficient. The greatest concern was regarding 
processes not being followed and this may be a focus for a future working group. 
 
A member suggested that it would be practical to repeat process unless the report was 
accurate and provided the necessary information. However, the view from the proposer 
was that there were outstanding issues and the matter needed comprehensive 
consideration.  A member added that the original requirement to capture learning points 
with regard to the treatment of staff and procurement had not been met and that it would 
not be complete to accept the report as it stands.  
 
The chairman proposed that the report be noted and that the proposer and seconder 
produce a form of words to enable a proposal for the working party, which would be 
discussed with the chairman of the General Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
A motion was carried to take the item and investigate the findings and determine the 
need to undertake further work. A working party would be formed to guide this review, 
and authority delegated to the chairman to determine the terms of reference for the 
group.  
 
 

85. PROGRESS REPORT ON 2015/16 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN   
 
The report was presented by representatives from internal auditors, SWAP.  
 
It was noted that there was overall control assurance and there were no audits which 
had no or partial assurance. There was slow progress in bringing some reports to audit 
stage due to resource issues but an update report would be presented in November. 
There were no special reviews or unplanned work but the work plan was adjusted to look 
at grants.  
 

13



 

In response to a member’s question regarding solutions to minimise the impact of 
processes relating to the pupil premium and free school meals, it was confirmed that six 
schools were investigated. It showed that there can be reluctance to sign up and whilst 
no problems were found with the process, schools needed to convey to parents that they 
needed to actively apply.  
 
 
A member commented on the role of the committee having an overview for internal audit 
work and that the section 151 officer may add work to the programme. He noted that one 
audit was removed, and asked how this would happen without reference to the 
committee. It was explained that the audit plan was agreed in March with the caveat that 
it may change in response to emerging risk, and that changing the plan would be in 
agreement between audit and the section 151 officer, reporting back to the committee.  
The member expressed concern that work had gone from the plan without consultation 
and that this represented poor governance.  
 
It was clarified that the area was removed because it was considered low risk, and that a 
number of contract management audits were added to plan and so adjusting the plan to 
have overview of contract management.  This represented a change to the plan rather 
than a material removal of an item.  
 
The member stated uneasiness about agreed items being removed without the 
committee’s approval.  The director of resources confirmed that he was happy to bring 
items to committee for approval.   
 
The chairman moved that items were not to be removed or amended without the 
committee’s approval.  
 
A member questioned how lessons to be learned were identified and actioned following 
the May elections. It was noted that feedback had been sought from staff and agents 
involved in the process and used internally to inform improvement in addition to any 
statutory returns made to electoral commission. Assurance was given that issues are 
picked up and activity is scheduled to assure that issues are recognised. However there 
were some issues relating to the returning officer functions which are separate to the 
council.  
 
The vice chairman noted that there was no debriefing after the elections and this was 
unfortunate.  
 
A member commented that she was not approached for feedback and noted that 
independent candidates would not have agents.    
 
RESOLVED 
 
That subject to amendment regarding items being removed from the plan, the 
report be noted. 
 
 

86. WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE   
 
The committee’s updated work programme was presented, showing additions which 
included a review of the risk register and updates on the annual governance statement.  
 
It was noted that the whistleblowing policy had been presented earlier than planned and 
so that could be removed from the work plan for November.  
 

14



 

A member commented on the inclusion of consideration of performance appraisals for 
members and it was clarified that council had agreed for an options report to come to the 
committee. Research was in progress to inform this report. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That subject to the amendment noted, the updated work programme be agreed. 
 
 

The meeting ended at 12.35 pm CHAIRMAN 

15



16



 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Josie Rushgrove, head of corporate finance on 01432 261867 

Meeting: Audit and governance committee 

Meeting date: 24 November 2015 

Title of report: Annual audit letter 2014/15 

Report by: Director of resources 
 

1. Classification 

Open 

2. Key Decision 

This is not an executive key decision 

3. Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

4. Purpose 

4.1 To consider and note the external auditor’s statutory annual audit letter (AAL) for 
2014/15 which primarily sets out the unqualified audit opinion on both the financial 
statements and value for money conclusion. 

4.2 The AAL is intended to communicate key messages to the Council and external 
stakeholders. 
 

5. Recommendation 

THAT the audit and governance committee discusses and takes note of the 
content of the annual audit letter for 2014/15 attached to this report. 
 

6. Alternative Options 

This is a report reflecting the statutory annual audit letter process and therefore no 
alternative options are outlined. 
 

7. Reasons for Recommendation 

7.1 The code of audit practice in local government requires the external auditor to report 
to those charged with governance the conclusions they have drawn from their audit 
work and their opinion on the financial statements and value for money. 

 
8. Key Considerations 

8.1 The external auditors issued an unqualified opinion on the statement of accounts for 
2014/15 and reported improvements in both the quality and timeliness thereof. 

AGENDA ITEM 6

17



8.2 An unqualified conclusion was issued in respect of value for money. The external 
auditors are satisfied that the Council has proper arrangements in place securing the 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

8.3 The external auditors have highlighted two recommendations for the Council to focus 
on in the coming year; the closedown process and property assets. Improvements 
are already being progressed in these areas. 

9. Community Impact 

None. 

10.  Equality and Human Rights 

The content of the report has no direct impact on equality or human rights. 

11.  Financial Implications 
 

The external audit fee is detailed in appendix B of the letter and funded within 
existing budgets. 
 

12.  Legal Implications 
 
This report has no legal implications. 

 
13.  Risk Management 

 
The audit and governance committee has responsibility for corporate governance 
and will mitigate risks by overseeing the delivery of the recommendations identified in 
the external auditor’s annual audit letter for 2014/15.  

 
14.  Consultees 
 

None. 
 

15.  Appendices 
 

Appendix A - annual audit letter 2014/15 
 
16.  Background Papers 

 
None. 
 

 

 

18



©
 2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it 

Le
tte

r  
|  

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

4 

. 
T

he
 A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 

fo
r H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il 

 Y
ea

r 
en

d
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

5 

P
h

il 
Jo

n
es

 
E

ng
ag

em
en

t L
ea

d 
T

 
01

21
 2

32
 5

23
2 

E
  

ph
il.

w
.jo

ne
s@

uk
.g

t.c
om

 

T
er

ry
 T

o
b

in
 

S
en

io
r A

ud
it 

M
an

ag
er

 
T

 
01

21
 2

32
 5

27
6 

E
  

te
rr

y.
p.

to
bi

n@
uk

.g
t.c

om
 

S
ar

ah
 G

o
o

d
 

A
ud

it 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

T
 

01
21

 2
32

 5
33

4 
E

  
sa

ra
h.

l.g
oo

d@
uk

.g
t.c

om
 

19



©
 2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it 

Le
tte

r  
|  

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

4 
2 

C
on

te
nt

s 

S
e

c
ti

o
n

 
P

a
g

e
 

1.
K

ey
 m

es
sa

ge
s 

3 
 

A
pp

en
di

ce
s 

A
  K

ey
 is

su
es

 a
nd

 re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 
6 

 

B 
 S

um
m

ar
y 

of
 re

po
rt

s a
nd

 a
ud

it 
fe

es
 

 7
 

C
  H

ow
 w

e 
br

ou
gh

t y
ou

 a
dd

ed
 v

al
ue

 th
is 

ye
ar

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 8

 

Th
e 

co
nt

en
ts

 o
f t

hi
s r

ep
or

t r
el

at
e 

on
ly

 to
 th

os
e 

m
at

te
rs

 w
hi

ch
 c

am
e 

to
 o

ur
 a

tte
nt

io
n 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
co

nd
uc

t o
f 

ou
r n

or
m

al
 a

ud
it 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
pr

im
ar

ily
 fo

r t
he

 p
ur

po
se

 o
f e

xp
re

ss
in

g 
ou

r o
pi

ni
on

 o
n 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 st
at

em
en

ts
. O

ur
 a

ud
it 

is 
no

t d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 te
st

 a
ll 

in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

s o
r i

de
nt

ify
 a

ll 
ar

ea
s 

of
 c

on
tr

ol
 

w
ea

kn
es

s. 
H

ow
ev

er
, w

he
re

, a
s p

ar
t o

f o
ur

 te
st

in
g,

 w
e 

id
en

tif
y 

an
y 

co
nt

ro
l w

ea
kn

es
se

s, 
w

e 
w

ill
 re

po
rt

 th
es

e 
to

 y
ou

.  
In

 c
on

se
qu

en
ce

, o
ur

 w
or

k 
ca

nn
ot

 b
e 

re
lie

d 
up

on
 to

 d
isc

lo
se

 d
ef

al
ca

tio
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 ir
re

gu
la

rit
ie

s, 
or

 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

al
l p

os
sib

le
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 th
at

 a
 m

or
e 

ex
te

ns
iv

e 
sp

ec
ia

l e
xa

m
in

at
io

n 
m

ig
ht

 
id

en
tif

y.
 

 W
e 

do
 n

ot
 a

cc
ep

t a
ny

 re
sp

on
sib

ili
ty

 fo
r a

ny
 lo

ss
 o

cc
as

io
ne

d 
to

 a
ny

 th
ird

 p
ar

ty
 a

ct
in

g,
 o

r r
ef

ra
in

in
g 

fr
om

 
ac

tin
g 

on
 th

e 
ba

sis
 o

f t
he

 c
on

te
nt

 o
f t

hi
s r

ep
or

t, 
as

 th
is 

re
po

rt
 w

as
 n

ot
 p

re
pa

re
d 

fo
r, 

no
r i

nt
en

de
d 

fo
r, 

an
y 

ot
he

r p
ur

po
se

. 
 

20



©
 2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it 

Le
tte

r  
|  

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

4 
3 

K
ey

 m
es

sa
ge

s 

O
ur

 A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it 

Le
tte

r s
um

m
ar

ise
s t

he
 k

ey
 fi

nd
in

gs
 a

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 th

e 
w

or
k 

th
at

 w
e 

ha
ve

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t a

t H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
('t

he
 C

ou
nc

il'
) f

or
 th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 

20
15

 
 Th

e 
Le

tte
r i

s i
nt

en
de

d 
to

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

e 
ke

y 
m

es
sa

ge
s t

o 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
ex

te
rn

al
 st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 p

ub
lic

. O
ur

 a
nn

ua
l w

or
k 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e,

 w
hi

ch
 

in
cl

ud
es

 n
at

io
na

lly
 p

re
sc

rib
ed

 a
nd

 lo
ca

lly
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 w

or
k,

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

Pl
an

 th
at

 w
e 

iss
ue

d 
in

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

an
d 

w
as

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

iss
io

n'
s C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

Pr
ac

tic
e,

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

n 
A

ud
iti

ng
 (U

K
 a

nd
 Ir

el
an

d)
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
iss

ue
d 

by
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
iss

io
n.

 

F
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

ud
it 

(i
nc

lu
di

ng
 

au
di

t o
pi

ni
on

) 
W

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 o

ur
 fi

nd
in

gs
 a

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 th

e 
au

di
t o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 in
 o

ur
 A

ud
it 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 R
ep

or
t o

n 
23

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

01
5 

to
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

an
d 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
.  

Th
e 

ke
y 

m
es

sa
ge

s r
ep

or
te

d 
w

er
e:

 
•

Th
e 

dr
af

t a
cc

ou
nt

s 
pr

es
en

te
d 

fo
r a

ud
it 

w
er

e 
of

 a
 g

oo
d 

qu
al

ity
, a

  i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t o
n 

pr
ev

io
us

 y
ea

rs
. 

•
Th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 w

er
e 

pr
od

uc
ed

 e
ar

lie
r a

nd
 th

e 
au

di
t c

om
pl

et
ed

 e
ar

lie
r t

ha
n 

in
 p

re
vi

ou
s y

ea
rs

. 
•

Th
e 

w
er

e 
no

 u
na

dj
us

te
d 

er
ro

rs
. T

he
 o

nl
y 

m
iss

ta
te

m
en

ts
 w

e 
fo

un
d 

re
la

te
d 

to
 th

e 
om

iss
io

n 
of

 so
m

e 
sc

ho
ol

s 
fr

om
  t

he
 b

al
an

ce
 s

he
et

 a
nd

 n
ot

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
so

m
e 

m
or

e 
up

 to
 d

at
e 

sc
ho

ol
 v

al
ua

tio
ns

. T
he

 e
ff

ec
t o

f t
hi

s w
as

 to
 

in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

va
lu

e 
of

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
in

 th
e 

ba
la

nc
e 

sh
ee

t b
y 

£9
.1

 m
ill

io
n.

 
•

Th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f w
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
s a

nd
 sp

ee
d 

of
 re

sp
on

se
 sh

ow
ed

 a
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t o

n 
pr

ev
io

us
 y

ea
rs

 a
nd

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is 
fu

lly
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

fe
w

 a
re

as
 it

 st
ill

 n
ee

ds
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

on
 fo

r f
ut

ur
e 

ye
ar

s. 
•

In
 v

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 ju
dg

em
en

t n
ee

de
d 

to
 b

e 
ex

er
ci

se
d 

in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
fo

r s
ch

oo
l 

la
nd

 a
nd

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 th

is 
ye

ar
, o

ur
 a

ud
it 

w
or

k 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 in
 so

m
e 

de
ta

il 
th

e 
ba

sis
 fo

r a
nd

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
un

de
rly

in
g 

th
e 

ex
er

ci
se

 o
f m

an
ag

em
en

t j
ud

ge
m

en
t a

pp
lie

d.
 T

he
 ju

dg
em

en
t a

pp
lie

d 
ha

s l
ed

 to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
re

co
gn

isi
ng

 
an

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 n

et
 £

35
.4

 m
ill

io
n 

of
 a

ss
et

s o
n 

th
e 

ba
la

nc
e 

sh
ee

t t
hi

s y
ea

r. 
Ba

se
d 

on
 o

ur
 w

or
k,

 w
e 

co
nf

irm
ed

 
ag

re
em

en
t w

ith
 M

an
ag

em
en

t's
 tr

ea
tm

en
t. 

 
W

e 
iss

ue
d 

an
 u

nq
ua

lif
ie

d 
op

in
io

n 
on

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il'

s 2
01

4/
15

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
n 

29
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
01

5,
 

m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

de
ad

lin
e 

se
t b

y 
th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t f
or

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t. 
 O

ur
 o

pi
ni

on
 c

on
fir

m
s 

th
at

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 st
at

em
en

ts
 g

iv
e 

a 
tr

ue
 a

nd
 fa

ir 
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il'

s f
in

an
ci

al
 p

os
iti

on
 a

nd
 o

f t
he

 in
co

m
e 

an
d 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 re

co
rd

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
 

21



©
 2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it 

Le
tte

r  
|  

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

4 
4 

K
ey

 m
es

sa
ge

s 

V
al

ue
 fo

r M
on

ey
 (V

fM
) 

co
nc

lu
si

on
 

W
e 

iss
ue

d 
an

 u
nq

ua
lif

ie
d 

V
fM

 c
on

cl
us

io
n 

fo
r 2

01
4/

15
 o

n 
29

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5.

 O
n 

th
e 

ba
sis

 o
f o

ur
 w

or
k,

 a
nd

 h
av

in
g 

re
ga

rd
 to

 th
e 

gu
id

an
ce

 o
n 

th
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

 c
rit

er
ia

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

iss
io

n,
 w

e 
ar

e 
sa

tis
fie

d 
th

at
 in

 a
ll 

sig
ni

fic
an

t r
es

pe
ct

s t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

pu
t i

n 
pl

ac
e 

pr
op

er
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 se

cu
re

 e
co

no
m

y,
 e

ff
ic

ie
nc

y 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s i

n 
its

 u
se

 o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r e

nd
in

g 
31

 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5.
  

 O
ve

ra
ll 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l P
os

iti
on

 
 Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il,
 li

ke
 m

os
t o

th
er

s n
at

io
na

lly
, c

on
tin

ue
s t

o 
fa

ce
 c

ha
lle

ng
es

 in
 h

ow
 to

 b
al

an
ce

 it
s b

ud
ge

t. 
Th

e 
ou

ttu
rn

 p
os

iti
on

 in
 

20
14

/1
5 

sh
ow

s t
he

 b
ud

ge
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 w
hi

ch
 is

 a
 p

os
iti

ve
 a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t. 

O
ve

ra
ll 

ou
r w

or
k 

hi
gh

lig
ht

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
sa

tis
fa

ct
or

y 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 in

 p
la

ce
 to

 se
cu

re
 fi

na
nc

ia
l r

es
ili

en
ce

. I
n 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
: 

•
a 

ro
bu

st
 c

or
po

ra
te

 st
ra

te
gy

, m
ed

iu
m

 te
rm

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
sa

vi
ng

s p
la

n 
ar

e 
in

 p
la

ce
 

•
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
de

liv
er

ed
 it

s o
ve

ra
ll 

sa
vi

ng
s t

ar
ge

t  
•

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 fo
r g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
pr

oc
es

se
s i

nc
lu

di
ng

 ri
sk

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 th

e 
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
A

nn
ua

l G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

St
at

em
en

t 
ar

e 
sa

tis
fa

ct
or

y 
•

fin
an

ci
al

 m
an

ag
em

en
t i

s s
ou

nd
 w

ith
 e

ff
ec

tiv
e 

re
po

rt
in

g 
of

 v
ar

ia
nc

es
 fr

om
 p

la
ns

 
  Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s f
ur

th
er

 st
re

ng
th

en
ed

 it
s a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 c

ha
lle

ng
e 

va
lu

e 
fo

r m
on

ey
 b

y 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

ho
w

 s
av

in
gs

 sc
he

m
es

 a
re

 
m

on
ito

re
d 

an
d 

re
po

rt
ed

 in
 th

e 
ye

ar
. B

ud
ge

t m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
re

po
rt

in
g 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
ye

ar
 w

as
 c

om
pr

eh
en

siv
e 

an
d 

en
ab

le
d 

 
m

em
be

rs
 to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

th
e 

on
 g

oi
ng

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
os

iti
on

. I
t i

s p
le

as
in

g 
to

 n
ot

e 
th

at
 A

du
lts

 a
nd

 W
el

l-B
ei

ng
 u

nd
er

sp
en

t a
s a

 
di

re
ct

or
at

e 
in

 2
01

4/
15

 g
iv

en
 th

at
 th

is 
w

as
 a

 m
aj

or
 o

ve
rs

pe
nd

in
g 

ar
ea

 u
nt

il 
fa

irl
y 

re
ce

nt
ly

. T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
d 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 ta

ke
n 

a 
sig

ni
fic

an
t s

te
p 

by
 re

tu
rn

in
g 

th
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f  
so

ci
al

 w
or

ke
rs

 to
 it

s d
ire

ct
 c

on
tr

ol
 

 W
as

te
 P

FI
 

 W
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 to
 th

e 
Ju

ly
 A

ud
it 

an
d 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 o

ur
 re

sp
on

se
 to

 a
n 

ob
je

ct
io

n 
w

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
va

ria
tio

n 
to

 
th

e 
w

as
te

 P
FI

 sc
he

m
e 

to
 b

ui
ld

 a
n 

en
er

gy
 fr

om
 w

as
te

 p
la

nt
 in

 H
ar

tle
bu

ry
. W

hi
lst

 w
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
ar

ea
s w

he
re

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

im
pr

ov
ed

, w
e 

co
nc

lu
de

d 
th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

d 
ta

ke
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 a

dv
ic

e 
an

d 
th

at
 a

 re
po

rt
 in

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 in

te
re

st
 w

as
 n

ot
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 

in
 th

e 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s.

 
 

22



©
 2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it 

Le
tte

r  
|  

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

4 
5 

K
ey

 m
es

sa
ge

s 

V
al

ue
 fo

r m
on

ey
 c

on
cl

us
io

n 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
Sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s W

el
l-B

ei
ng

 w
as

 th
e 

on
ly

 d
ire

ct
or

at
e 

ov
er

sp
en

d 
in

 2
01

4/
15

 w
ith

 a
 £

52
9,

00
0 

ov
er

sp
en

d.
  I

n 
M

ar
ch

 
20

15
 th

e 
Pa

rli
am

en
ta

ry
 U

nd
er

 S
ec

re
ta

ry
 fo

r S
ta

te
 fo

r C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Fa

m
ili

es
 w

ro
te

 to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
lif

tin
g 

th
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t n

ot
ic

e 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 in
 p

la
ce

 in
 C

hi
ld

re
n'

s s
er

vi
ce

s. 
O

fs
te

d 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

ar
ea

s f
or

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

nd
 

th
es

e 
ar

e 
re

fle
ct

ed
 in

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il'

s o
w

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t p
la

n.
 T

he
 Ju

ly
 2

01
5 

C
ab

in
et

 re
po

rt
 sh

ow
ed

 a
n 

ov
er

al
l 

fo
re

ca
st

 o
ve

rs
pe

nd
 in

 C
hi

ld
re

n'
s a

nd
 W

el
l-b

ei
ng

 o
f £

1.
3m

 w
hi

ch
 w

as
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

in
g 

to
 a

n 
ov

er
al

l f
or

ec
as

t 
de

fic
it 

fo
r  

20
15

/1
6 

fo
r t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
of

 £
59

5,
00

0.
 T

he
 o

ve
rs

pe
nd

 in
 C

hi
ld

re
n'

s w
as

 d
ue

 to
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 c

os
ts

 a
nd

 in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 a

ge
nc

y 
st

af
f a

nd
 h

ig
he

r t
ha

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 p

la
ce

m
en

t c
os

ts
.  

 

W
ho

le
 o

f G
ov

er
nm

en
t A

cc
ou

nt
s 

 
W

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 th

e 
co

ns
ol

id
at

io
n 

pa
ck

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 to

 su
pp

or
t t

he
 p

ro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 W
ho

le
 o

f 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t A
cc

ou
nt

s. 
 W

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s p

ac
k 

w
as

 c
on

sis
te

nt
 w

ith
 th

e 
au

di
te

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 

st
at

em
en

ts
. 

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 g
ra

nt
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
W

e 
ha

ve
 n

ot
 y

et
 c

er
tif

ie
d 

an
y 

gr
an

t c
la

im
s, 

ho
w

ev
er

 w
or

k 
is 

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s o

n 
th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
be

ne
fit

 c
la

im
, w

ith
 a

 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
tio

n 
de

ad
lin

e 
of

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
5.

 W
e 

w
ill

 re
po

rt
 th

e 
fin

di
ng

s f
ro

m
 th

e 
au

di
t o

f t
hi

s c
la

im
 

as
 p

ar
t o

f o
ur

 G
ra

nt
 C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

R
ep

or
t i

n 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

01
6 

 

A
ud

it 
fe

e 
O

ur
 fe

e 
fo

r t
he

 c
or

e 
au

di
t i

n 
20

14
/1

5 
w

as
 £

16
5,

87
3 

ex
cl

ud
in

g 
V

A
T.

   
Fu

rt
he

r d
et

ai
l i

s i
nc

lu
de

d 
w

ith
in

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

B.
 

23



©
 2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it 

Le
tte

r  
|  

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

4 
6 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

:  
K

ey
 is

su
es

 a
nd

 re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 
Th

is 
ap

pe
nd

ix
 su

m
m

ar
ise

d 
th

e 
sig

ni
fic

an
t r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
20

14
/1

5 
au

di
t. 

N
o.

 
Is

su
e 

an
d 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

P
ri

or
ity

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t r
es

po
ns

e/
  r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 o

ffi
ce

r/
 d

ue
 d

at
e 

1.
 

A
ud

it 
cl

os
ed

ow
n 

pr
oc

es
s.

 
 R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n:
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

tin
ue

 
to

 re
de

sig
n 

th
e 

pr
oc

es
s f

or
 c

lo
se

do
w

n 
an

d 
au

di
t o

f 
th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

a 
m

or
e 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
an

d 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is 

re
ad

y 
fo

r t
he

 re
vi

sio
n 

of
 th

e 
au

di
te

d 
ac

co
un

ts
 d

ea
dl

in
e 

M
ed

iu
m

 
Th

is 
is 

un
de

rw
ay

 w
ith

 e
ar

lie
r c

lo
se

do
w

n 
pl

an
ni

ng
 m

ee
tin

gs
 a

lre
ad

y 
sc

he
du

le
d,

 
th

e 
re

vi
se

d 
de

ad
lin

e 
is 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 a

ch
ie

va
bl

e 

 R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 o
ff

ic
er

:  
H

ea
d 

of
  C

or
po

ra
te

 F
in

an
ce

 
 D

ue
 d

at
e:

  3
1 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
16

 
  

2.
 

P
ro

pe
rt

y 
as

se
ts

. 
 R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n:
 C

on
tr

ol
s s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
st

re
ng

th
en

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

of
 a

ll 
Pr

op
er

ty
 

Pl
an

t a
nd

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t a

ss
et

s b
y 

en
su

rin
g 

th
at

: 
-a

ll 
va

lu
at

io
ns

 in
 th

e 
as

se
t r

eg
ist

er
 a

nd
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

ag
re

e 
to

 m
os

t r
ec

en
t v

al
ua

tio
ns

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t 

-a
ll 

as
se

ts
 a

re
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

ba
la

nc
e 

sh
ee

t. 
   

M
ed

iu
m

 
A

 c
om

pr
eh

en
siv

e 
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 fi

xe
d 

as
se

t r
eg

ist
er

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
ag

re
em

en
t o

f 
en

tr
ie

s t
he

re
in

 h
as

 b
eg

an
. I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 h
av

e 
al

re
ad

y 
be

en
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 

 R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 o
ff

ic
er

:H
ea

d 
of

 C
or

po
ra

te
 F

in
an

ce
 

 D
ue

 d
at

e:
  3

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
5 

  

24



©
 2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it 

Le
tte

r  
|  

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

4 
7 

F
e

e
s
 

P
er

 A
u

d
it

 p
la

n
 £ 

A
ct

u
al

 f
ee

s 
 

£ 

A
ud

it 
F

ee
 *

 
16

4,
80

3 
16

5,
87

3 

G
ra

nt
 c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

fe
e 

**
 

6,
42

0 
T

B
C

 

T
o

ta
l f

ee
s 

17
3,

20
3 

T
B

C
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
B:

  R
ep

or
ts

 is
su

ed
 a

nd
 fe

es
 

W
e 

co
nf

irm
 b

el
ow

 th
e 

fe
e 

ch
ar

ge
d 

fo
r t

he
 a

ud
it.

 

F
e
e

s
 f

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

S
er

vi
ce

 
F

ee
s 

£ 

T
ea

ch
er

s 
P

en
si

on
 A

ge
nc

y 
C

la
im

 
4,

20
0 

F
or

en
si

c 
as

si
st

an
ce

 w
ith

 a
 c

on
tr

ac
to

r 
4,

00
0 

*T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

iss
io

n 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

th
e 

fe
e 

by
 £

1,
07

0 
in

 
re

sp
ec

t o
f w

or
k 

on
 m

at
er

ia
l b

us
in

es
s r

at
es

 b
al

an
ce

s. 
Th

is 
ad

di
tio

na
l w

or
k 

w
as

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 a

s a
ud

ito
rs

  n
o 

lo
ng

er
 c

ar
ry

 
ou

t w
or

k 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

N
D

R
3 

cl
ai

m
s. 

Th
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l f
ee

 w
as

 
50

%
 o

f t
he

 a
ve

ra
ge

 fe
e 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 c

ha
rg

ed
 fo

r N
D

R
3 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 fo
r u

ni
ta

ry
 c

ou
nc

ils
. 

**
 T

he
 fi

na
l c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

fe
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 in
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

po
rt

 in
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
16

. 

 

R
e

p
o

rt
s
 i

s
s
u

e
d

 

R
ep

o
rt

 
D

at
e 

is
su

ed
 

A
ud

it 
P

la
n 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

A
ud

it 
F

in
di

ng
s 

R
ep

or
t 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
15

 

A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it 

Le
tte

r 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

25



©
 2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it 

Le
tte

r  
|  

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

4 
8 

A
pp

en
di

x 
C

-H
ow

 w
e 

br
ou

gh
t y

ou
 a

dd
ed

 v
al

ue
 th

is 
ye

ar
 

A
u

d
it

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e 

W
e:

 

�
pr

ov
id

ed
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t e
xt

er
na

l a
ud

it 
co

m
m

en
ta

ry
 a

nd
 in

sig
ht

 o
n 

yo
ur

 
ke

y 
iss

ue
s t

hr
ou

gh
 se

ni
or

 a
tte

nd
an

ce
 a

t e
ve

ry
 a

ud
it 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 a

nd
 

sh
ar

ed
 a

 L
G

 p
ub

lic
at

io
n 

to
 h

el
p 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f l

oc
al

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
au

di
t 

co
m

m
itt

ee
s u

nd
er

st
an

d 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 st

at
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 d
isc

ha
rg

e 
th

ei
r 

re
sp

on
sib

ili
tie

s a
s t

he
y 

re
vi

ew
 th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 

�
in

ve
st

ed
 in

 re
gu

la
r d

ia
lo

gu
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

au
di

t c
om

m
itt

ee
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
er

e 
w

er
e 

no
 su

rp
ris

es
 an

d 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

ro
bu

st
 a

nd
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t s
ta

nc
e 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 o

ur
 a

ud
it 

�
pr

ov
id

ed
 re

gu
la

r, 
tim

el
y 

an
d 

tr
an

sp
ar

en
t r

ep
or

ts
 fr

om
 o

ur
 w

or
k 

an
d 

br
ie

fin
g 

no
te

s o
n 

ke
y 

se
ct

or
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

.  

W
e:

 

�
pr

ov
id

ed
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 o
n 

fin
an

ci
al

 re
po

rt
in

g 
an

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 re

sil
ie

nc
e 

by
 g

iv
in

g 
a 

tim
el

y 
au

di
t o

pi
ni

on
 a

nd
 v

al
ue

 fo
r m

on
ey

 c
on

cl
us

io
n 

�
sh

ar
ed

 o
ur

 th
in

ki
ng

 o
n 

ke
y 

iss
ue

s, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

iss
ui

ng
 m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t w

ith
 o

ur
 a

nn
ua

l r
ep

or
ts

 o
n 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 o

ur
 re

po
rt

s o
n 

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
M

od
el

s, 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Fu

nd
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e,
 W

el
fa

re
 R

ef
or

m
, H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 W
el

l-
be

in
g,

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

 in
 L

oc
al

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t a

nd
 

D
ev

ol
ut

io
n.

 

�
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f a
 so

lu
tio

n 
fo

r w
as

te
 d

isp
os

al
 fo

r 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 a
nd

 W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 . 

�
pr

ov
id

ed
 a

n 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 to
 n

et
w

or
k 

 w
ith

 o
th

er
 L

oc
al

 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t b
od

ie
s a

t o
ur

 w
or

ks
ho

ps
 c

ov
er

in
g 

ta
xa

tio
n,

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
a 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
co

m
pa

ny
, i

nt
eg

ra
tio

n 
w

ith
 h

ea
lth

, L
oc

al
 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t s

el
f-

su
ff

ic
ie

nc
y 

an
d 

20
:2

0 
vi

sio
n.

 

�
ar

ra
ng

ed
 a

 lo
ca

l w
or

ks
ho

p 
to

 ra
ise

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

on
 g

oo
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 

..   

C
o

u
n

ci
l l

ea
d

er
sh

ip
 

1 

2 
3 

W
e:

 

�
en

su
re

d 
a 

sm
oo

th
 e

xt
er

na
l a

ud
it 

pr
oc

es
s t

hr
ou

gh
 re

gu
la

r 
di

al
og

ue
 a

nd
 m

ee
tin

gs
 to

 p
ro

m
pt

ly
 d

isc
us

s f
in

an
ci

al
 

ac
co

un
ts

 o
pi

ni
on

 a
ud

it 
an

d 
ot

he
r i

ss
ue

s i
nc

lu
di

ng
 W

G
A

 a
nd

 
gr

an
t c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

w
or

k 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

yo
u 

su
bm

it 
ac

cu
ra

te
 

fig
ur

es
 to

 c
en

tr
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t. 

�
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 a
ud

it 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 a

t y
ou

r f
in

an
ce

 
ac

co
un

ta
nt

s 
m

ee
tin

g 
re

fle
ct

in
g 

ou
r e

ng
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 fi

na
nc

e.
 W

or
ke

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
fin

an
ce

 
de

pa
rt

m
en

t t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 p
ro

ce
ss

 a
nd

 to
 

st
re

ng
th

en
 c

on
tr

ol
s a

nd
 s

ys
te

m
s 

�
sh

ar
ed

 te
ch

ni
ca

l k
no

w
le

dg
e 

, p
ro

vi
de

d 
ea

rly
 w

ar
ni

ng
 o

n 
ke

y 
ris

ks
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

an
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 to

 n
et

w
or

k 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 
Lo

ca
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t b
od

ie
s a

t o
ur

 a
nn

ua
l f

in
an

ce
 s

em
in

ar
 

�
lia

ise
d 

w
ith

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it 
to

 m
in

im
ise

 d
up

lic
at

io
n.

 

�
in

tr
od

uc
ed

 o
ur

 F
or

en
sic

s t
ea

m
 to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ho

 h
el

pe
d 

in
 a

 d
isp

ut
e 

w
ith

 c
on

tr
ac

to
rs

 

�
ou

r P
la

ce
 A

na
ly

tic
s 

te
am

 h
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
a 

co
m

pl
im

en
ta

ry
 

su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nt
y's

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
nd

 p
os

iti
on

 o
n 

ou
r 

gr
ow

th
 a

nd
 d

yn
am

ism
 in

di
ce

s c
ov

er
ed

 in
 o

ur
 'W

he
re

 
G

ro
w

th
 H

ap
pe

ns
' r

ep
or

t. 

C
o

u
n

ci
l m

an
ag

em
en

t 

26



©
 2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
  |

  A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it 

Le
tte

r  
|  

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

4 

©
 2

01
5 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.  

'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 m
ea

ns
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
UK

 L
LP

, a
 li

m
ite

d 
lia

bi
lit

y 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

.  

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

is
 a

 m
em

be
r f

irm
 o

f G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l L
td

 
(G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l).

 R
ef

er
en

ce
s 

to
 'G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n'
 a

re
 

to
 th

e 
br

an
d 

un
de

r w
hi

ch
 th

e 
G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
m

em
be

r f
irm

s 
op

er
at

e 
an

d 
re

fe
r t

o 
on

e 
or

 m
or

e 
m

em
be

r f
irm

s,
 a

s 
th

e 
co

nt
ex

t r
eq

ui
re

s.
 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l a
nd

 th
e 

m
em

be
r f

irm
s 

ar
e 

no
t a

 
wo

rld
wi

de
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
. S

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 b
y 

m
em

be
r f

irm
s,

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 n

ot
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
or

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

of
 o

ne
 a

no
th

er
. G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l d

oe
s 

no
t p

ro
vi

de
 

se
rv

ic
es

 to
 c

lie
nt

s.
  

gr
an

t-t
ho

rn
to

n.
co

.u
k 

27



28



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jacqui Gooding – Assistant Director (SWAP) on Tel: 01432 260294 or 07872500675 

 

 

MEETING: 
 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

MEETING DATE: 24th November 2015 

TITLE OF REPORT: PROGRESS REPORT ON 2015/16 INTERNAL 
AUDIT PLAN 

REPORT BY: INTERNAL AUDIT – SOUTH WEST AUDIT 
PARTNERSHIP 

 
 

Alternative Options 

1 This report is for information and therefore alternative options are not applicable. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 To ensure compliance with good practice as set out in the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS). 

Classification  

Open 

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

The purpose of this Internal Audit Report is to update Members on the progress of internal 
audit work and to bring to their attention any key internal control issues arising from work 
recently completed.  
 
The attached report (Appendix A) is a summary of the activity completed at 31st October 
2015 for the 2015/16 audit plan.  

Recommendation 

That subject to any comments the Committee wishes to make the report be noted.  
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 7

29



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jacqui Gooding – Assistant Director (SWAP) on Tel: 01432 260294 or 07872500675 

 

Key Considerations 

3 See Appendix A 

Community Impact 

4 The report does not impact on this area.   

Equality and Human Rights 

5 The report does not impact on this area. 

Financial Implications 

6 There are no financial implications. 

Legal Implications 

7 There are no Legal implications.  

Risk Management 

8 There is a risk that the level of work required to give an opinion on the Council’s 
systems of Internal Control is not achieved. This is mitigated by the regular active 
management and monitoring of progress against the agreed internal audit plan. 

Consultees 

9 The Director of Resources (Section 151 Officer) was consulted in the drafting of this 
report.  

Appendices 

Appendix A – SWAP Plan Progress Report 2015/16 (NB this report contains two further 
appendices referred to within) 

Background Papers 

• None identified. 

 

 
 
 

30



A
pp

en
di

x 
A 

   
       

                              

  H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
  Re

po
rt

 o
f I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
it 

Ac
tiv

ity
 

Pl
an

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
20

15
-1

6 
Q

ua
rt

er
 2

 
 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 §

 R
is

k 
§ 

Sp
ec

ia
l I

nv
es

ti
ga

ti
on

s 
§ 

Co
ns

ul
ta

nc
y 

 

31



 
   

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 t

he
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

ito
rs

, f
ur

th
er

 g
ui

de
d 

by
 in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

PS
IA

S 
an

d 
th

e 
CI

PF
A 

Co
de

 o
f P

ra
ct

ic
e 

fo
r I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
it 

in
 E

ng
la

nd
 a

nd
 W

al
es

. 

                  

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
Su

m
m

ar
y:

 
 

 
Ro

le
 o

f I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

it 
 

 
 

 
Pa

ge
 1

 
 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 o

f I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

it 
A

ct
iv

ity
  

 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

W
or

k 
Pl

an
 2

01
5/

16
: 

 
 

 
Re

po
rt

 o
n 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 F

in
di

ng
s 

 
 

 
Pa

ge
s 

2 
 

 
Au

di
t P

la
n 

Pr
og

re
ss

 
 

 
 

 
Pa

ge
s 

3-
5 

  
 

 
 

Fu
tu

re
 P

la
nn

ed
 W

or
k 

} 
 

 
Co

nc
lu

si
on

s 
 

 
} 

 
 

 
Pa

ge
s 

6 
 AP

PE
N

D
IC

ES
: 

 
 

 
 

 
20

15
-1

6 
A

nn
ua

l P
la

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

 
 

 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 ‘B

’ 
 

Au
di

t F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

D
ef

in
iti

on
s 

 
 

 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 ‘C

’ 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Co
nt

en
ts

 

Th
e 

co
nt

ac
ts

 a
t S

W
A

P 
in

 
co

nn
ec

ti
on

 w
it

h 
th

is
 r

ep
or

t a
re

: 
 G

er
ry

 C
ox

 
Ch

ie
f E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

Te
l: 

01
93

5 
38

59
06

 
ge

rr
y.

co
x@

so
ut

hw
es

ta
ud

it.
co

.u
k 

  Ia
n 

Ba
ke

r 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f Q
ua

lit
y 

Te
l: 

07
91

76
28

77
4 

ia
n.

ba
ke

r@
so

ut
hw

es
ta

ud
it.

co
.u

k 
  Ja

cq
ui

 G
oo

di
ng

  
As

si
st

an
t D

ire
ct

or
  

Te
l: 

01
43

2 
26

04
26

 o
r 0

78
72

50
06

75
 

Ja
cq

ui
.g

oo
di

ng
@

so
ut

hw
es

ta
ud

it.
co

.u
k 

32



 
   

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 t

he
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

ito
rs

, f
ur

th
er

 g
ui

de
d 

by
 in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

PS
IA

S 
an

d 
th

e 
CI

PF
A 

Co
de

 o
f P

ra
ct

ic
e 

fo
r I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
it 

in
 E

ng
la

nd
 a

nd
 W

al
es

. 

  
 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
 P

ag
e 

1 

O
ur

 a
ud

it
 a

ct
iv

it
y 

is
 s

pl
it

 
be

tw
ee

n:
 

 
· 

O
pe

ra
ti

on
al

 A
ud

it
 

· 
Sc

ho
ol

 T
he

m
es

 
· 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

A
ud

it
 

· 
Ke

y 
Co

nt
ro

l A
ud

it
 

· 
IT

 A
ud

it
 

· 
G

ra
nt

s 
· 

O
th

er
 R

ev
ie

w
s 

 

Ro
le

 o
f I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
it

 
 Th

e 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

se
rv

ic
e 

fo
r 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 S
ou

th
 W

es
t 

Au
di

t 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
Li

m
ite

d 
(S

W
AP

). 
 S

W
AP

 is
 a

 L
oc

al
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

co
nt

ro
lle

d 
Co

m
pa

ny
.  

SW
AP

 h
as

 a
do

pt
ed

 a
nd

 w
or

ks
 to

 th
e 

St
an

da
rd

s 
of

 
th

e 
In

st
itu

te
 o

f 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
ito

rs
, f

ur
th

er
 g

ui
de

d 
by

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
ec

to
r 

In
te

rn
al

 
Au

di
t 

St
an

da
rd

s 
(P

SI
AS

), 
an

d 
al

so
 fo

llo
w

s 
th

e 
CI

PF
A

 C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it.

  T
he

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 is
 

al
so

 g
ui

de
d 

by
 th

e 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

Ch
ar

te
r 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Au
di

t 
an

d 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
Co

m
m

itt
ee

 a
t i

ts
 m

ee
tin

g 
on

 1
9 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
5.

 
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t 

an
d 

ob
je

ct
iv

e 
op

in
io

n 
on

 t
he

 A
ut

ho
ri

ty
’s

 c
on

tr
ol

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

by
 

ev
al

ua
tin

g 
its

 e
ff

ec
tiv

en
es

s.
  P

ri
m

ar
ily

 th
e 

w
or

k 
in

cl
ud

es
: 

· 
O

pe
ra

tio
na

l A
ud

it 
Re

vi
ew

s 
· 

Sc
ho

ol
 T

he
m

es
 

· 
Cr

os
s 

Cu
tt

in
g 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

A
ud

its
 

· 
An

nu
al

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f K

ey
 F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ys

te
m

 C
on

tr
ol

s 
· 

IT
 A

ud
its

 
· 

G
ra

nt
s 

· 
O

th
er

 S
pe

ci
al

 o
r 

U
np

la
nn

ed
 R

ev
ie

w
s 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 o

f I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

it
 A

ct
iv

it
y 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
w

or
k 

is
 la

rg
el

y 
dr

iv
en

 b
y 

an
 A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Pl

an
.  

Th
is

 is
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

(S
ec

tio
n 

15
1 

O
ff

ic
er

) f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

Se
ni

or
 M

an
ag

em
en

t T
ea

m
.  

Th
is

 y
ea

r’
s 

(2
01

5/
16

) P
la

n 
w

as
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 to
 th

is
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 o
n 

19
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

5.
 

A
ud

it 
as

si
gn

m
en

ts
 a

re
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 t
hi

s 
Pl

an
 t

o 
as

se
ss

 c
ur

re
nt

 l
ev

el
s 

of
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e,
 

co
nt

ro
l a

nd
 ri

sk
. 

 

33



 
   

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 t

he
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

ito
rs

, f
ur

th
er

 g
ui

de
d 

by
 in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

PS
IA

S 
an

d 
th

e 
CI

PF
A 

Co
de

 o
f P

ra
ct

ic
e 

fo
r I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
it 

in
 E

ng
la

nd
 a

nd
 W

al
es

. 

 

Th
es

e 
ar

e 
ac

ti
on

s 
th

at
 w

e 
ha

ve
 

id
en

ti
fie

d 
as

 b
ei

ng
 h

ig
h 

pr
io

ri
ty

 
or

 c
or

po
ra

te
 ri

sk
s 

th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

ss
es

se
d 

as
 “

V
er

y 
H

ig
h”

 
or

 “
H

ig
h”

 a
nd

 th
at

 w
e 

be
lie

ve
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
br

ou
gh

t t
o 

th
e 

at
te

nt
io

n 
of

 th
e 

A
ud

it
 

Co
m

m
it

te
e 

 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 B
 is

 a
 s

um
m

ar
y 

of
 th

e 
An

nu
al

 P
la

n 
fo

r 
20

15
/1

6 
– 

a 
lis

t o
f a

ll 
au

di
ts

 a
s 

ag
re

ed
 in

 th
e 

An
nu

al
 A

ud
it 

Pl
an

 2
01

5/
16

.  
It

 is
 im

po
rt

an
t t

ha
t M

em
be

rs
 a

re
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

st
at

us
 o

f a
ud

its
 a

s 
th

is
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
he

lp
s 

th
em

 
pl

ac
e 

re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

an
d 

its
 a

bi
lit

y 
to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 a

s 
ag

re
ed

. 

 W
he

re
 a

 r
ev

ie
w

 h
as

 a
 s

ta
tu

s 
of

 ‘C
om

pl
et

ed
’ a

nd
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

as
se

ss
ed

 a
s 

‘P
ar

tia
l’ 

or
 ‘N

o 
As

su
ra

nc
e’

 o
r 

w
ith

 a
 

‘H
ig

h’
 o

r 
‘V

er
y 

H
ig

h’
 c

or
po

ra
te

 r
is

k,
 I

 w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 f
ur

th
er

 d
et

ai
l 

to
 i

nf
or

m
 M

em
be

rs
 o

f 
th

e 
ke

y 
is

su
es

 
id

en
tif

ie
d.

  
Fo

r 
th

e 
au

di
ts

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
da

te
 f

or
 2

01
5-

16
 n

on
e 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
as

se
ss

ed
 a

s 
‘P

ar
tia

l’ 
or

 ‘
N

o 
As

su
ra

nc
e’

 a
nd

 n
o 

‘H
ig

h’
 o

r 
‘V

er
y 

H
ig

h’
 c

or
po

ra
te

 ri
sk

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d.

   
 O

ne
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t f
in

di
ng

 a
t s

er
vi

ce
 le

ve
l h

as
 b

ee
n 

re
po

rt
ed

 a
nd

 th
is

 is
 c

ov
er

ed
 in

 th
e 

Sa
fe

r R
ec

ru
itm

en
t a

ud
it 

be
lo

w
.  

  Re
po

rt
 o

n 
Si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 F
in

di
ng

s/
Ri

sk
 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 W

or
k 

Pl
an

 –
 2

01
5-

20
16

 
 P

ag
e 

2 

34



 
   

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 t

he
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

ito
rs

, f
ur

th
er

 g
ui

de
d 

by
 in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

PS
IA

S 
an

d 
th

e 
CI

PF
A 

Co
de

 o
f P

ra
ct

ic
e 

fo
r I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
it 

in
 E

ng
la

nd
 a

nd
 W

al
es

. 

 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 W

or
k 

Pl
an

 –
 2

01
5-

20
16

 
 P

ag
e 

3 

Co
m

pl
et

ed
 A

ud
it

 A
ss

ig
nm

en
ts

 
in

 th
e 

Pe
ri

od
 

 
Th

e 
su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 th

e 
An

nu
al

 P
la

n 
fo

r 2
01

5/
16

 (A
pp

en
di

x 
B)

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
s p

ro
gr

es
s t

o 
da

te
.  

Ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

fin
di

ng
s 

of
 e

ac
h 

re
vi

ew
, a

n 
ov

er
al

l c
on

tr
ol

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 is

 o
ff

er
ed

.  
Fo

r 
a 

su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 C
on

tr
ol

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
 D

ef
in

iti
on

s,
 

Ca
te

go
ris

at
io

n 
of

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 a
nd

 R
is

k 
Le

ve
ls

, p
le

as
e 

re
fe

r t
o 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 ‘C
’. 

A
s 

ca
n 

be
 s

ee
n 

fr
om

 A
pp

en
di

x 
‘B

’, 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

au
di

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 p
ro

gr
es

se
d 

to
 d

at
e:

  
O

pe
ra

ti
on

al
: 

· 
Co

m
pl

et
e,

 1
 re

vi
ew

  -
 (R

ea
so

na
bl

e)
  

· 
D

ra
ft

 R
ep

or
t,

 2
 re

vi
ew

s 
 

· 
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s,
 7

 re
vi

ew
s 

· 
N

ot
 S

ta
rt

ed
, 1

6 
re

vi
ew

s 
 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e,

 F
ra

ud
 a

nd
 C

or
ru

pt
io

n:
 

· 
Co

m
pl

et
e,

 2
 re

vi
ew

s 
(N

on
-O

pi
ni

on
) 

· 
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s,
 1

 re
vi

ew
s 

· 
N

ot
 S

ta
rt

ed
, 1

 re
vi

ew
 

· 
Co

nt
in

ge
nc

y,
 1

 re
vi

ew
 

 
Fo

llo
w

 U
p 

Re
vi

ew
s:

 (N
on

-O
pi

ni
on

) 

· 
Co

m
pl

et
e,

 1
 R

ev
ie

w
s 

· 
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s,
 1

 re
vi

ew
 

· 
N

ot
 S

ta
rt

ed
, 5

 R
ev

ie
w

s 
 

Sc
ho

ol
 T

he
m

es
 –

: P
up

il 
Pr

em
iu

m
  

· 
Co

m
pl

et
e,

  5
 r

ev
ie

w
s 

( 1
 S

ub
st

an
tia

l, 
4 

Re
as

on
ab

le
)  

 
· 

D
ra

ft
 R

ep
or

t,
  1

 r
ev

ie
w

 
 A

ud
it

 P
la

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
  

35



 
   

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 t

he
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

ito
rs

, f
ur

th
er

 g
ui

de
d 

by
 in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

PS
IA

S 
an

d 
th

e 
CI

PF
A 

Co
de

 o
f P

ra
ct

ic
e 

fo
r I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
it 

in
 E

ng
la

nd
 a

nd
 W

al
es

. 

  
 

A
ud

it
 P

la
n 

Pr
og

re
ss

 
 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 W

or
k 

Pl
an

 –
 2

01
5-

20
16

 
Pa

ge
 4

 

Co
m

pl
et

ed
 A

ud
it 

A
ss

ig
nm

en
ts

 in
 

th
e 

Pe
rio

d 
 

Ke
y 

Co
nt

ro
l: 

· 
D

is
cu

ss
io

n 
D

oc
um

en
t 1

 re
vi

ew
 

· 
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s,
 1

 re
vi

ew
 

· 
N

ot
 S

ta
rt

ed
, 3

 re
vi

ew
s 

 IC
T 

Re
vi

ew
s:

 

· 
Co

m
pl

et
e,

  2
 r

ev
ie

w
 (1

 N
on

-o
pi

ni
on

, 1
 R

ea
so

na
bl

e)
 

· 
 

· 
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s,
 2

 r
ev

ie
w

s 
· 

N
ot

 S
ta

rt
ed

, 5
 re

vi
ew

s 
G

ra
nt

s:
 

· 
Co

m
pl

et
e,

 1
 C

la
im

,  
· 

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s,

 1
 C

la
im

  
 

Re
m

ov
ed

: 
· 

1 
re

vi
ew

 (E
le

ct
io

ns
) 

A
ud

it
 P

la
n 

Pr
og

re
ss

 

Pr
og

re
ss

 a
ga

in
st

 th
e 

pl
an

 h
as

 im
pr

ov
ed

 s
in

ce
 m

y 
la

st
 re

po
rt

.  
 A

ud
its

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 to

 fi
na

l r
ep

or
t s

in
ce

 m
y 

la
st

 
up

da
te

 a
re

:  

Th
e 

Bu
ch

an
an

 T
ru

st
 (N

on
-O

pi
ni

on
) –

 T
he

 a
ud

ito
r w

as
 a

bl
e 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 re

as
on

ab
le

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 th

at
 th

e 
tr

an
sf

er
 

of
 th

e 
Fu

nd
's

 b
al

an
ce

 o
n 

ex
te

rn
al

is
at

io
n 

w
as

 a
cc

ur
at

e 
an

d 
ha

d 
be

en
 a

cc
ou

nt
ed

 fo
r a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
ly

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 

th
e 

Co
un

ci
l's

 C
on

st
itu

tio
n.

 

36



 
   

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 t

he
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

ito
rs

, f
ur

th
er

 g
ui

de
d 

by
 in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

PS
IA

S 
an

d 
th

e 
CI

PF
A 

Co
de

 o
f P

ra
ct

ic
e 

fo
r I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
it 

in
 E

ng
la

nd
 a

nd
 W

al
es

. 

              

U
np

la
nn

ed
 w

or
k,

 s
pe

ci
al

 re
vi

ew
s 

or
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t o

n 
a 

re
sp

on
si

ve
 b

as
is

 a
re

 re
qu

es
te

d 
by

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 
of

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 (S

ec
tio

n 
15

1 
O

ff
ic

er
). 

N
o 

re
vi

ew
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
re

qu
es

te
d 

si
nc

e 
m

y 
la

st
 u

pd
at

e.
 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 W

or
k 

Pl
an

 –
 2

01
5-

20
16

 
 P

ag
e 

5 

Co
m

pl
et

ed
 A

ud
it 

A
ss

ig
nm

en
ts

 in
 

th
e 

Pe
rio

d 
  

Lo
ca

l T
ra

ns
po

rt
 B

lo
ck

 F
un

di
ng

/P
ot

ho
le

 F
un

d 
(N

on
-o

pi
ni

on
) 

 -
 T

he
 a

ud
ito

r 
co

nc
lu

de
d 

th
at

 in
 a

ll 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
re

sp
ec

ts
 t

he
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 a
tt

ac
he

d 
to

 L
oc

al
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 C
ap

ita
l 

Bl
oc

k 
Fu

nd
in

g 
(In

te
gr

at
ed

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 a

nd
 

H
ig

hw
ay

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

) 
Sp

ec
ifi

c 
G

ra
nt

 D
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

20
14

/1
5 

N
o 

31
/2

27
3,

 a
nd

 a
ls

o 
th

e 
Po

th
ol

e 
Fu

nd
: 

Sp
ec

ifi
c 

G
ra

nt
 D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
Re

f: 
20

14
/1

5 
N

o 
31

/2
39

1 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

co
m

pl
ie

d 
w

ith
. 

 Sa
fe

r 
Re

cr
ui

tm
en

t 
(R

ea
so

na
bl

e)
 -

 T
he

 o
bj

ec
tiv

e 
of

 t
he

 a
ud

it 
w

as
 t

o 
as

se
ss

 t
he

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

an
d 

co
nt

ro
ls

 in
 

pl
ac

e  
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

ar
e 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 p

re
-e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

ve
tt

in
g;

 b
ac

kg
ro

un
d 

ch
ec

ks
 a

nd
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

m
on

ito
ri

ng
 w

he
re

 r
el

ev
an

t 
to

 t
he

ir
 r

ol
e 

in
 t

he
 C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
 D

ir
ec

to
ra

te
. 

Th
er

e 
w

er
e 

fo
ur

 p
rio

ri
ty

 3
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 a
nd

 o
ne

 p
rio

rit
y 

4 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n.
  

 G
en

er
al

ly
 t

he
re

 w
er

e 
go

od
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 h
ow

ev
er

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

is
 n

ee
de

d 
in

 r
ec

or
d 

ke
ep

in
g 

of
 d

oc
um

en
ta

tio
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 o
r 

ch
ec

ke
d 

as
 p

ar
t 

of
 t

he
 r

ec
ru

itm
en

t 
pr

oc
es

s.
 T

he
re

 w
as

 o
ne

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 fi
nd

in
g 

in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 v

ol
un

te
er

s.
 T

he
re

 is
 n

o 
kn

ow
n 

co
nt

ro
l l

is
t o

f v
ol

un
te

er
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
Co

un
ci

l 
or

 a
 n

om
in

at
ed

 o
ff

ic
er

 w
ho

 is
 in

 c
ha

rg
e 

of
 o

ve
rs

ee
in

g 
vo

lu
nt

ee
rs

. T
he

re
 is

 a
 li

st
 o

f v
ol

un
te

er
s t

ha
t h

av
e 

be
en

 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 a
 D

BS
 c

he
ck

 b
ut

 th
is

 d
oe

s 
no

t 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

lis
t 

of
 a

ll 
vo

lu
nt

ee
rs

 a
nd

 a
s 

su
ch

 it
 is

 d
iff

ic
ul

t t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
th

at
 a

ll 
vo

lu
nt

ee
rs

 t
ha

t 
sh

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
be

en
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 a
 D

BS
 c

he
ck

 h
av

e 
be

en
 id

en
tif

ie
d.

 T
he

 le
ad

 
au

di
to

r i
s 

co
lla

tin
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

fr
om

 th
e 

SW
AP

 P
ar

tn
er

s 
to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
ho

w
 o

th
er

 C
ou

nc
ils

 m
an

ag
e 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 

vo
lu

nt
ee

rs
.  

 Sp
ec

ia
l R

ev
ie

w
s 

 
 A

ud
it

 P
la

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

 

37



 
   

 

SW
AP

 w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l P

ra
ct

ic
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 t

he
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

ito
rs

, f
ur

th
er

 g
ui

de
d 

by
 in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

PS
IA

S 
an

d 
th

e 
CI

PF
A 

Co
de

 o
f P

ra
ct

ic
e 

fo
r I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
it 

in
 E

ng
la

nd
 a

nd
 W

al
es

. 

  
 

     
 

      
 

   
 

 

W
e 

ke
ep

 o
ur

 a
ud

it
 p

la
ns

 u
nd

er
 

re
gu

la
r 

re
vi

ew
, s

o 
as

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
w

e 
ar

e 
au

di
ti

ng
 th

e 
ri

gh
t t

hi
ng

s 
at

 th
e 

ri
gh

t t
im

e.
 

 

Fu
tu

re
 P

la
nn

ed
 W

or
k 

 
 A

s 
ne

w
 a

nd
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 r
is

ks
 a

re
 id

en
tif

ie
d,

 a
ny

 c
ha

ng
es

 t
o 

th
e 

pl
an

 w
ill

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 t

he
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t 
of

 t
he

 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 (S

ec
tio

n 
15

1 
O

ff
ic

er
) w

ith
 r

em
ov

al
 o

r 
de

fe
rr

al
 o

f a
ud

its
 t

o 
be

 fo
rm

al
ly

 a
gr

ee
d 

by
 t

he
 

Au
di

t C
om

m
itt

ee
.  

Th
er

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 tw

o 
re

qu
es

ts
 fo

r 
ad

di
tio

na
l w

or
k 

si
nc

e 
m

y 
la

st
 re

po
rt

:  

G
yp

sy
 a

nd
 T

ra
ve

lle
r 

Si
te

 -
 O

pe
nf

ie
ld

s 
Br

om
ya

rd
 –

 a
nn

ua
l 

au
di

t 
of

 t
he

 G
ra

nt
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
an

d 
Af

fo
rd

ab
le

 
H

ou
si

ng
 C

ap
ita

l F
un

di
ng

  

LA
C 

an
d 

Fo
st

er
in

g 
FW

i P
ro

je
ct

s 
– 

re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 

To
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
e 

th
e 

LA
C 

an
d 

Fo
st

er
in

g 
FW

i 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
 r

ev
ie

w
 I

 r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 t
he

 a
ud

it 
re

vi
ew

in
g 

th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 fo
r 

re
so

lv
in

g 
in

ci
de

nt
s 

an
d 

m
an

ag
in

g 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

- I
nc

id
en

t a
nd

 P
ro

bl
em

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

is
 d

ef
er

re
d 

to
 

20
16

-1
7.

 

Th
is

 w
as

 in
cl

ud
ed

 a
s 

a 
hi

gh
 le

ve
l r

ev
ie

w
 t

o 
en

su
re

 t
ha

t 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

an
d 

po
lic

ie
s 

ar
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 t
o 

en
su

re
 in

ci
de

nt
s 

an
d 

pr
ob

le
m

s 
ar

e 
re

so
lv

ed
 a

nd
 u

se
rs

 s
uf

fe
r 

no
 lo

ss
 o

r d
is

ru
pt

io
n 

of
 th

ei
r 

IC
T 

se
rv

ic
e.

  

 I a
m

 p
le

as
ed

 t
o 

re
po

rt
 t

ha
t 

to
 d

at
e 

no
 a

ud
its

 h
av

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 P

ar
tia

l o
r 

N
o 

as
su

ra
nc

e.
 O

ve
ra

ll 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

ha
s 

ei
th

er
 b

ee
n 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l o

r 
re

as
on

ab
le

 fo
r 

th
e 

au
di

ts
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 w
he

re
 a

n 
op

in
io

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

ss
es

se
d.

 F
iv

e 
au

di
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
s 

N
on

-O
pi

ni
on

 re
vi

ew
s.

  

Th
e 

sc
ho

ol
 th

em
ed

 re
vi

ew
 o

f P
up

il 
Pr

em
iu

m
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

co
nc

lu
de

d 
an

d 
a 

su
m

m
ar

y 
re

po
rt

 is
su

ed
 to

 a
ll 

sc
ho

ol
s 

vi
a 

Sp
ot

lig
ht

 o
n 

Ch
ild

re
n  

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 a

re
as

 o
f g

oo
d 

pr
ac

tic
e.

 

 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
 W

or
k 

Pl
an

 –
 2

01
5-

20
16

 
Pa

ge
 6

 

Co
nc

lu
si

on
 

 

38



A
pp

en
di

x 
B

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
20

15
-1

6 
A

ud
it

 P
la

n

1
2

3
4

5

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

D
ef

er
re

d/
Re

m
ov

ed
El

ec
tio

ns
1

Re
m

ov
ed

_
_

_
_

_
_

_

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

Fo
llo

w
 U

p
A

cc
ou

nt
s 

Pa
ya

bl
e 

20
15

-1
6

1
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s
0

0
0

0
0

0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

Fo
llo

w
 U

p
M

ai
n 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

20
15

-1
6

1
Co

m
pl

et
ed

N
on

- O
pi

ni
on

 
_

_
_

_
_

_

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e,

 F
ra

ud
 &

 C
or

ru
pt

io
n

Fr
au

d 
Re

vi
ew

s
1

Co
nt

in
ge

nc
y

0
0

0
0

0
0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e,

 F
ra

ud
 &

 C
or

ru
pt

io
n

N
FI

 2
01

5-
16

1
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s

Th
is

 w
or

k 
is

 
on

go
in

g 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

ye
ar

0
0

0
0

0
0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

IC
T

H
ar

dw
ar

e 
A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

1
Co

m
pl

et
ed

Re
as

on
ab

le
 

3
0

0
2

1
0

*I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

IC
T

Pu
bl

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

N
et

w
or

k 
(P

SN
) c

od
e 

- a
ss

ur
an

ce
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e
1

Co
m

pl
et

ed
N

on
 O

pi
ni

on
_

_
_

_
_

_

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

Ke
y 

Co
nt

ro
l

Pa
yr

ol
l 2

01
5-

16
1

D
is

cu
ss

io
n 

D
oc

um
en

t 
0

0
0

0
0

0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

Ke
y 

Co
nt

ro
l

Pe
ns

io
ns

 - 
A

ut
o 

en
ro

lm
en

t 2
01

5-
16

1
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s
0

0
0

0
0

0

A
du

lts
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l

Pe
er

 C
ha

lle
ng

e 
Be

ne
fit

s 
Re

al
is

at
io

n
1

 In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

Ch
ild

re
n'

s 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l

Sa
fe

r R
ec

ru
itm

en
t

1
Co

m
pl

et
ed

Re
as

on
ab

le
 

5
0

0
4

1
0

Ch
ild

re
n'

s 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l

U
se

 o
f A

ge
nc

y 
St

af
f 2

01
5-

16
1

D
ra

ft
 R

ep
or

t
0

0
0

0
0

0

A
du

lts
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l

D
el

iv
er

y 
of

 P
ro

je
ct

s 
fu

nd
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Sk
ill

s 
Fu

nd
in

g 
A

ge
nc

y 
20

15
-1

6
1

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l

H
A

LO
 c

on
tr

ac
t

1
D

ra
ft

 R
ep

or
t

0
0

0
0

0
0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l

H
om

e 
to

 S
ch

oo
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

1
D

ra
ft

in
g 

re
po

rt
0

0
0

0
0

0

Ch
ild

re
n'

s 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

Sc
ho

ol
Pu

pi
l P

re
m

iu
m

 - 
sc

ho
ol

 th
em

e 
re

po
rt

1
Co

m
pl

et
ed

N
on

-o
pi

ni
on

 
_

_
_

_
_

_

Ch
ild

re
n'

s 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

Sc
ho

ol
Tr

in
ity

 P
rim

ar
y 

Sc
ho

ol
1

Co
m

pl
et

ed
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l
2

0
0

2
0

0

Ch
ild

re
n'

s 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

Sc
ho

ol
Th

e 
A

co
nb

ur
y 

Ce
nt

re
 

1
D

ra
ft

 R
ep

or
t 

Re
as

on
ab

le
0

0
0

0
0

0

Ch
ild

re
n'

s 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

Sc
ho

ol
M

uc
h 

M
ar

cl
e 

C 
of

 E
 P

rim
ar

y 
Sc

ho
ol

1
Co

m
pl

et
ed

Re
as

on
ab

le
8

0
0

8
0

0

Ch
ild

re
n'

s 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

Sc
ho

ol
M

ad
le

y 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 P
rim

ar
y 

Sc
ho

ol
1

Co
m

pl
et

ed
Re

as
on

ab
le

8
0

0
8

0
0

Ch
ild

re
n'

s 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

Sc
ho

ol
St

 M
ar

ys
 C

hu
rc

h 
of

 E
ng

la
nd

 P
rim

ar
y 

Sc
ho

ol
 

1
Co

m
pl

et
ed

 
Re

as
on

ab
le

 
2

0
0

2
0

0

Ch
ild

re
n'

s 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

Sc
ho

ol
Bl

ac
km

ar
st

on
 S

ch
oo

l
1

Co
m

pl
et

ed
 

Re
as

on
ab

le
4

0
0

4
0

0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e,

 F
ra

ud
 &

 C
or

ru
pt

io
n

Bu
ch

an
an

 T
ru

st
2

Co
m

pl
et

ed
N

on
- O

pi
ni

on
 

0
0

0
0

0
0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e,

 F
ra

ud
 &

 C
or

ru
pt

io
n

Fr
au

d 
an

d 
Co

rr
up

tio
n 

Su
rv

ey
2

 C
om

pl
et

ed
N

on
-O

pi
ni

on
0

0
0

0
0

0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

G
ra

nt
 

Lo
ca

l T
ra

ns
po

rt
 B

lo
ck

 F
un

di
ng

/P
ot

ho
le

 F
un

d
2

Co
m

pl
et

ed
 

N
on

-O
pi

ni
on

0
0

0
0

0
0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

IC
T

In
ci

de
nt

 a
nd

 P
ro

bl
em

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

2
Re

qu
es

t t
o 

de
fe

r 
to

 2
01

6-
17

0
0

0
0

0
0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

IC
T

A
cc

es
s 

Co
nt

ro
ls

  -
 C

IV
IC

A
 a

nd
 C

RM
2

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

IC
T

Co
un

ci
l a

nd
 N

H
S 

IC
T

2
N

ot
 S

ta
rt

ed
0

0
0

0
0

0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l

Sh
aw

 c
ar

e 
pr

ov
id

er
 c

on
tr

ac
t

2
N

ot
 S

ta
rt

ed
0

0
0

0
0

0

A
du

lts
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l

Be
tt

er
 C

ar
e 

Fu
nd

2
In

 p
ro

gr
es

s
0

0
0

0
0

0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l

Re
gi

st
ra

r a
nd

 C
or

on
er

s
2

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l

D
em

oc
ra

tic
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

20
15

 -1
6

2
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s
0

0
0

0
0

0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l

M
od

er
n 

Re
co

rd
s

2
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s
0

0
0

0
0

0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lth

 In
ve

st
m

en
t a

nd
 O

ut
co

m
es

2
N

ot
 S

ta
rt

ed
0

0
0

0
0

0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l

Ro
ad

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

2
N

ot
 S

ta
rt

ed
0

0
0

0
0

0

Ch
ild

re
n'

s 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

IC
T

LA
C 

an
d 

Fo
st

er
in

g 
FW

i P
ro

je
ct

s 
3

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

/S
er

vi
ce

A
ud

it
 T

yp
e

A
ud

it
 N

am
e

Re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

s 
Q

ua
rt

er
St

at
us

O
pi

ni
on

N
o.

 o
f r

ec
s

39



A
pp

en
di

x 
B

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
20

15
-1

6 
A

ud
it

 P
la

n

1
2

3
4

5
D

ir
ec

to
ra

te
/S

er
vi

ce
A

ud
it

 T
yp

e
A

ud
it

 N
am

e
Re

co
m

m
en

da
ti

on
s 

Q
ua

rt
er

St
at

us
O

pi
ni

on
N

o.
 o

f r
ec

s

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

G
ra

nt
 

G
yp

sy
 a

nd
 T

ra
ve

lle
r S

ite
 - 

O
pe

nf
ie

ld
s 

Br
om

ya
rd

 
3

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

Fo
llo

w
 U

p
Co

un
ci

l T
ax

 2
01

5-
16

3
N

ot
 S

ta
rt

ed
0

0
0

0
0

0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

Fo
llo

w
 U

p
H

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x 
Be

ne
fit

3
N

ot
 S

ta
rt

ed
0

0
0

0
0

0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

Fo
llo

w
 U

p
Tr

ea
su

ry
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 2
01

5-
16

3
N

ot
 S

ta
rt

ed
0

0
0

0
0

0

Ch
ild

re
n'

s 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

G
ov

er
na

nc
e,

 F
ra

ud
 &

 C
or

ru
pt

io
n

Tr
ou

bl
ed

 F
am

ili
es

3
N

ot
 S

ta
rt

ed
0

0
0

0
0

0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

IC
T

PC
I D

at
a 

Se
cu

rit
y 

St
an

da
rd

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e

3
N

ot
 S

ta
rt

ed
0

0
0

0
0

0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

IC
T

M
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 u
sa

ge
 a

nd
 s

tr
at

eg
y

3
N

ot
 S

ta
rt

ed
0

0
0

0
0

0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

Ke
y 

Co
nt

ro
l

A
cc

ou
nt

s 
Re

ce
iv

ab
le

 2
01

5-
16

3
N

ot
 S

ta
rt

ed
0

0
0

0
0

0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

Ke
y 

Co
nt

ro
l

Ca
pi

ta
l A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
20

15
-1

6
3

N
ot

 S
ta

rt
ed

0
0

0
0

0
0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

Ke
y 

Co
nt

ro
l

N
N

D
R

3
N

ot
 S

ta
rt

ed
0

0
0

0
0

0

A
du

lts
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l

D
ep

riv
at

io
n 

of
 L

ib
er

ty
 (D

O
Ls

)
3

N
ot

 S
ta

rt
ed

0
0

0
0

0
0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l

Li
ce

ns
in

g
3

N
ot

 S
ta

rt
ed

0
0

0
0

0
0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l

Fa
st

er
sh

ire
 B

D
U

K
3

N
ot

 S
ta

rt
ed

0
0

0
0

0
0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l

W
as

te
 C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
Co

nt
ra

ct
3

N
ot

 S
ta

rt
ed

0
0

0
0

0
0

Ch
ild

re
n'

s 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l

Ed
uc

at
io

n,
 H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 C
ar

e 
pl

an
s

3
N

ot
 S

ta
rt

ed
0

0
0

0
0

0

Ch
ild

re
n'

s 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

Fo
llo

w
 U

p
Sc

ho
ol

s 
Pr

ev
en

tio
n 

of
 F

ra
ud

4
N

ot
 S

ta
rt

ed
0

0
0

0
0

0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

Fo
llo

w
 U

p
Ro

ad
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 F

ol
lo

w
 U

p
4

N
ot

 S
ta

rt
ed

0
0

0
0

0
0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

IC
T

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
  -

 D
ig

ita
l C

ha
nn

el
s 

Pr
oj

ec
t

4
N

ot
 S

ta
rt

ed
0

0
0

0
0

0

A
du

lts
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l

D
ire

ct
 B

ud
ge

ts
4

N
ot

 S
ta

rt
ed

0
0

0
0

0
0

A
du

lts
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l

Pu
rc

ha
si

ng
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

M
ar

ke
t M

an
ag

em
en

t  
- C

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
e

4
N

ot
 S

ta
rt

ed
0

0
0

0
0

0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l

Co
m

m
er

ci
al

 R
en

ts
4

N
ot

 S
ta

rt
ed

0
0

0
0

0
0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l

In
co

m
e 

re
vi

ew
 - 

m
ax

im
is

in
g 

in
co

m
e 

- i
nc

om
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

gi
ng

 g
ui

da
nc

e
4

N
ot

 S
ta

rt
ed

0
0

0
0

0
0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l

La
nd

 C
ha

rg
es

 2
01

5-
16

4
N

ot
 S

ta
rt

ed
0

0
0

0
0

0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l

Pl
an

ni
ng

 A
pp

lic
at

io
ns

4
N

ot
 S

ta
rt

ed
0

0
0

0
0

0

Ch
ild

re
n'

s 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l

Co
nt

ra
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t -

 C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

W
el

lb
ei

ng
4

N
ot

 S
ta

rt
ed

0
0

0
0

0
0

Ec
on

om
y 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l

En
er

gy
 S

up
pl

y 
Co

nt
ra

ct
4

N
ot

 S
ta

rt
ed

0
0

0
0

0
0

40



                     APPENDIX C 

 Audit Framework Definitions 

 
 

Control Assurance Definitions 

 
 

Substantial 
�««« I am able to offer substantial assurance as the areas reviewed were found to be 

adequately controlled.  Internal controls are in place and operating effectively and 
risks against the achievement of objectives are well managed. 

  

 

Reasonable 

�««« I am able to offer reasonable assurance as most of the areas reviewed were found 
to be adequately controlled.  Generally risks are well managed but some systems 
require the introduction or improvement of internal controls to ensure the 
achievement of objectives. 

  

 

Partial 

�««« I am able to offer Partial assurance in relation to the areas reviewed and the 
controls found to be in place. Some key risks are not well managed and systems 
require the introduction or improvement of internal controls to ensure the 
achievement of objectives. 

  

 

None 

�««« I am not able to offer any assurance. The areas reviewed were found to be 
inadequately controlled. Risks are not well managed and systems require the 
introduction or improvement of internal controls to ensure the achievement of 
objectives. 

  

 
 

Categorisation Of Recommendations 

 When making recommendations to Management it is important that they know how important the 
recommendation is to their service. There should be a clear distinction between how we evaluate the risks 
identified for the service but scored at a corporate level and the priority assigned to the recommendation. No 
timeframes have been applied to each Priority as implementation will depend on several factors, however, the 
definitions imply the importance. 

 Priority 5: Findings that are fundamental to the integrity of the unit’s business processes and require the    
immediate attention of management. 
 
Priority 4: Important findings that need to be resolved by management.  
 
Priority 3: The accuracy of records is at risk and requires attention.  
 
Priority 2: Minor control issues have been identified which nevertheless need to be addressed. 
 
Priority 1: Administrative errors identified that should be corrected. Simple, no-cost measures would serve to 
enhance an existing control. 
   Definitions of Risk 

 
 Risk Reporting Implications  

 
Low 

Issues of a minor nature or best practice where some improvement can 
be made. 

 

 
Medium 

Issues which should be addressed by management in their areas of 
responsibility. 

 

 
High 

Issues that we consider need to be brought to the attention of senior 
management. 

 

 
Very High 

Issues that we consider need to be brought to the attention of both 
senior management and the Audit Committee. 

 

 

41



42



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Steve Hodges, directorate services team leader on (01432) 261923 

 

 

MEETING:  Audit & Governance Committee 

MEETING DATE: 24 November 2015 

TITLE OF REPORT: Corporate risk register 

REPORT BY: Directorate Services Team Leader 
 

Alternative options 

1. None. 

Reasons for recommendations 

2. The corporate risk register is one of the elements that underpin the council’s 
assurance framework and informs the annual governance statement. 

3. The committee is responsible for assuring the effectiveness of the council’s risk 
management arrangements. This report offers assurance that risk is being managed. 

Key Considerations 

4. The council’s risk management framework provides the basis for the effective 
management of risks and opportunities within the council, informs decision making at 
all levels, and aids delivery of the corporate plan priorities. The framework also 

Classification  

Open 

Key decision 

This is not an executive decision. 

Wards affected 

County-wide.  

Purpose 

To inform the Committee of the risks on the corporate risk register, so as to give assurance 
that risks are being managed. 

Recommendation(s) 

That the corporate risk register be noted, and any recommendations to 
improve the robustness of risk management be identified. 

AGENDA ITEM 8

43



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Steve Hodges, directorate services team leader on (01432) 261923 

 

includes the process for monitoring and reporting of strategic risks. 

5. Each directorate of the council maintains its own directorate and service risk registers 
which are reviewed monthly. 

6. Significant and strategic risks are escalated to the corporate risk register and 
considered by management board and cabinet quarterly as part of the performance 
and budget report. 

7. The last audit report on risk management was concluded in January 2015 when the 
audit opinion was one of Reasonable, where most of the areas reviewed were found 
to be adequately controlled. The audit found that generally risks are well managed 
but some systems required the introduction or improvement of internal controls to 
ensure the achievement of objectives. Since the audit, the corporate risk register is 
now routinely reviewed by Cabinet and Management Board as part of the quarterly 
performance and budget report. 

Community Impact 

8. None. 

Equality and human rights 

9. The content of the report has no direct impact on equality or human rights. 

Financial implications 

10. There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

Legal implications 

11. There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

Risk management 

12. Corporate risks, and associated mitigation, are as set out in the corporate risk register 
(Appendix A). 

Consultees 

13. None. 

Appendices 

Appendix A – Corporate risk register 

Background Papers 

None 

44



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Josie Rushgrove, head of corporate finance on Tel (01432) 261867 

 

 

Meeting: Audit and governance committee 

Meeting date: 24 November 2015 

Title of report: Energy from waste (EfW) loan update 

Report by: Head of corporate finance 
 

Alternative options 

1 None; the loan arrangement was contractually agreed in May 2014, no breaches 
have taken place during this reporting period.  

Reasons for recommendations 

2 To fulfil the functions delegated to the committee in relation to governance of the 
waste loan arrangement. 

Classification  

Open 

Key Decision  

This is not an executive decision.  

Wards Affected 

Countywide  

Purpose 

To provide assurance to the audit and governance committee on the status of the energy 
from waste (EfW) loan arrangement. 

Recommendation(s) 

THAT:  
a) the risks to the council, as lender, are confirmed as being reasonable and 

appropriate having regard to the risks typically assumed by long term senior 
funders to waste projects in the United Kingdom and best banking practice; 
and 

b) arrangements for the administration of the loan are reviewed and, having 
regard to the advice of external advisors, confirmed as satisfactory. 

AGENDA ITEM 9

45



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Josie Rushgrove, head of corporate finance on Tel (01432) 261867 

 

Key considerations 

Background 

3 Following the approval to provide financing of the construction of an energy from 
waste (EfW) plant, council delegated to the audit and governance committee the 
responsibility to  review the loan arrangements (including waiver terms) and risks to 
the council as lender and make recommendations as necessary.  

4 No decisions or courses of action have been identified for recommendation to the 
committee. 

Key loan features and update 

5 Herefordshire and Worcestershire councils are funding the EfW plant through the use 
of prudential borrowing. Drawdowns of funding from Mercia will continue over a 33 
month construction period, between 2014 and 2017, before loan repayments fall due. 
Repayments will commence in February 2017. 

6 The total loan facility is for £163.5m, with Herefordshire providing 24.2% of the loan 
value, £40m. The loan facility is split between two tranches being an interest only 
loan facility and a repayable loan: 

• £9m repayment loan and 

• £31m interest only (bullet) loan  

7 Total loan interest and fees chargeable to Mercia are fixed and are representative of 
commercial bank charges. These total £69m (£17m for Herefordshire) during the loan 
period. These charges are repayable before the PFI contract ends in 2023 and are 
recharged to the councils by Mercia through the unitary charge for waste disposal.  

8 Herefordshire will obtain loan finance in line with its treasury management strategy. 
This will include short term borrowings and longer term finance from the public works 
loan board where interest rates are aligned to long term gilt prices. Commercial banks 
rates are based on the London interbank offer rate (LIBOR). The differential between 
the long term gilt price and LIBOR rates are typically 3% therefore the cost of debt 
incurred will be less than the cost charged to Mercia resulting in an estimated surplus 
of approximately £5m for Herefordshire. This surplus has been reflected in council 
budgets approved by Council in February 2015. 

9 The outstanding loan balance in 2023 reflects the expected net book value of the 
plant at that date. There are strict handover and regular testing arrangements in place 
that escalate when nearing the end of the contract protecting the return condition of 
the plant.  

10 The remaining loan balance of £31m will be repaid after the end of the PFI contract 
period (2023) until the end of the plant’s useful life (2042).  

General progress update 

11 The council's contractual relationship is with Mercia. Mercia has sub-contracted the 
work to HZI (Hitachi Zosen Inova). HZI had then sub-contracted the civil engineering 
aspects of the work to a company called Interserve Construction Limited (Interserve). 
A decision has been made by HZI to terminate their contract with Interserve. HZI 

46



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Josie Rushgrove, head of corporate finance on Tel (01432) 261867 

 

have now taken direct control of the civil engineering contract. 

12 HZI had expressed concern about the time taken on the civil engineering works and 
to ensure that the contract remained on time and to budget decided to replace 
Interserve. The termination was a matter for HZI and Interserve and the risk rested 
with HZI, not with the councils. 

13 Mercia have assured that, because the majority of the civil engineering work is 
complete, there would be no cost impact and there would be no impact on the critical 
path of the project as a result of the change of sub-contractor. 

14 Confirmation has been received from the sponsors that they did not consider that 
there were any financial risks associated with the project at this stage that impacted 
on them as sponsors. The council, in its role as funder, would only be exposed to risk 
after the sponsors.  

15 If the project were to extend beyond the takeover date, then HZI would pay liquidated 
damages to Mercia who would then reimburse the Council as lender. There is no 
impact on the take-over date and loan repayments at this stage. 

17 This committee is tasked with reviewing the risks as a result of the funding provided 
by the council to Mercia. This includes ensuring the risks are considered reasonable 
and appropriate. Attached is a risk register (at appendix d) detailing the unmitigated 
and mitigated risks arising as a result of the council being lender to Mercia. All risks 
are typical of a long term senior funder to waste projects and are aligned to best 
banking practice.    

Financial advisor update 

18 The latest progress update from the financial advisors show that Mercia have met all 
senior term loan facility agreement (STLFA) requirements during this reporting period. 
Cover ratios and cash flow test requirements that ensure Mercia have equity and 
cash balances sufficient to cover loan repayments have been complied with. 

19 Part of the loan conditions is the actual construction period cash flow test (ACPCFT) 
which confirms Mercia have sufficient cash flows in relation to Mercia's equity 
contribution to the EfW. The ACPCFT is prepared by Mercia on a quarterly basis and 
reviewed by Deloittes acting in the capacity as financial advisors to the councils in 
relation to the STLFA to determine whether: 

 
“actual operating cash generated during that period plus the brought forward cash 
balance attributable to operations is equal to, or exceeds… the amounts of operating 
cash projected to be generated during that period plus the brought forward cash 
balance attributable to operations as shown in the base case financial model.”  

20 The ACPCFT performed by Deloittes it attached at appendix a and reports a result of 
an excess cash flow amount £1m. This means that overall operations have produced 
£1m more than forecast in the base case financial model. This reflects the impact of 
additional waste going to Mercia as the economy improves and means the mandatory 
test was satisfied.   

 
21 Mercia is able to use existing business as equity for cash flow purposes. The 

cashflow Mercia sets aside during the construction phase qualifies as Mercia’s 
contribution of equity capital. Mercia has achieved its required contribution of equity 
capital to the project that takes risk ahead of the councils STLFA. A higher cash flow 

47



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Josie Rushgrove, head of corporate finance on Tel (01432) 261867 

 

offsets the need for Mercia to draw down funds and the council has the ability to lock 
up Mercia's equity if Mercia fails to achieve an adequate level of excess cash. At 
present Mercia has the right level of equity to satisfy the tests required under the loan 
agreement. The ACPCFT test is satisfied. 

 

Technical advisor update 

22 The lenders’ technical advisor has confirmed that the expected takeover date is now 
the planned takeover date plus one month, March 2017. There is still a possibility that 
this date could be brought forward, in any case the takeover date does not impact on 
the loan arrangement, loan repayments will commence in February 2017. Funding of 
the loan repayments will come from liquidated damages if required. 

23 Fichtner Consulting Engineers are technical advisors to the lenders during the 
construction phase of the plant. A copy of the latest progress summary report is 
attached at appendix b. No significant issues have arisen during the period and the 
construction completion date is not deemed to be at risk. 

24 The main elements of the civil engineering works are complete with the evacuation of 
the bunker largely delivered on budget, although slightly behind forecast timescales. 
There has been some re-ordering of the remaining civil engineering programme to 
allow the mechanical and engineering programme to commence to keep the 
construction timetable on track. 

25 The construction focus is now on building the superstructure of the plant, including 
the concrete based bunker and tipping hall and the steel superstructure that houses 
the boiler hall and administrative buildings. 

26 Fichtner had indicated that HZI had a good health and safety record on site and had 
concluded that it was a well-run site with good control processes. 

27 At takeover the council will be in receipt of a fully operational facility that had passed 
all relevant tests. Operating tests would be undertaken for an approximate six month 
period in advance of the takeover date to ensure that it was in full working order. 
Waste would be treated during this period without any cost to the councils. 

28 Attached at appendix c is a letter from Fichtner confirming that there are no concerns 
about the quality of the work as a result of the termination of the Interserve contract. 

Waivers and consents 

29 The committee are asked to note that since the previous update the following waivers 
and consents have been requested and approved under clause 18.4(b)(ii)(G) of the 
loan agreement: 

• The appointment of ARUP and Royal Haskoning as major subcontractors for 
the fire design prevention. 

• The appointment of either Compco or Agus as major subcontractors to 
replace a number of subcontracts that require re-procurement. 

• The appointment of Orona Elevators for the lift contract. 

30 All of these follow the HZI termination of Interserve and the completion of due 

48



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Josie Rushgrove, head of corporate finance on Tel (01432) 261867 

 

diligence checks by officers and advisors.  

31 Sponsors confirmed that the remaining civil packages to be let by HZI following the 
termination of Interserve total £14m of which 70% relates to building services. HZI are 
permitted to let the remainder of the contracts (£5m) without consent from the 
lenders. 

  

Community impact 

32 There is no additional community impact as a result of this progress update report.  
The loan arrangement will contribute to the following council corporate objectives:  

• Managing our finances effectively to secure value for money and deliver a 
balanced budget 

• Making best use of the resources available to us in order to meet the council’s 
priorities (includes money, buildings, IT, information). 

Equality duty 

33 This update and its recommendations do not have an impact on equality or human 
rights.  

Financial implications 

34 The loan arrangement is progressing to plan with the financial implications being 
reflected in the medium term financial strategy and treasury management strategy 
approved by Council in February 2015. 

35 Actual loan drawdowns are approximately two months behind the base case financial 
model which is consistent with the delay on civil engineering works. Accelerated 
drawdowns are expected. The impact on budgets are immaterial at this stage, the 
delay will not affect the loan repayment date, 28 February 2017. If delays continue 
the financial impact will be reflected in the updated treasury management strategy 
presented to cabinet in January 2016. 

36 All costs incurred by advisors are recharged to Mercia. 

Legal implications 

37 The terms and arrangements for this loan agreement are set out in the Senior Term 
Loan Facilities Agreement. There are no specific legal comments arising from this 
report. 

Risk management 

38 The councils have undertaken an assessment of risk in its role as lender working with 
legal advisors (Ashurst), finance advisors (Deloitte) and technical advisors (Fichtner) 
to understand the basis on which commercial banks reserve elements of their margin 
against risks. The review considered: 

• Counterparty risk 

49



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Josie Rushgrove, head of corporate finance on Tel (01432) 261867 

 

• Security package 

• Key income generation assumptions in the financial model 

• Specific project risks 

• Interest and foreign exchange rate risk 

39 The councils negotiated a security package that has left minimal risk that costs would 
be borne by the councils should issues occur during the construction phase. The loan 
arrangement security package mirrors that expected in a commercial bank 
arrangement. Advisors completed a risk fall away analysis and in recognition of this 
during the construction phase Herefordshire will retain 50% of its loan surplus in its 
waste disposal reserve should any construction period risk materialise. This reserve 
balance is included in the council’s medium term financial strategy approved by 
Council in February 2015. 

40 Risks are retained where they resided in the original 1998 waste disposal contract 
and any new risks have been transferred to Mercia and its supply chain. There are 
actions that can be taken if a default situation were to arise, for example taking 
shares or assets in Mercia in lieu of loan repayment. No indications of default are 
currently present. 

41 Existing compensation on termination contract clauses ensure that the lender is 
repaid the majority (90%) of any outstanding debt balance if any termination event 
should occur during the PFI contract period. 

42 Attached at appendix d is the risk register detailing the controls in place safeguarding 
the council’s position in the lending arrangement. The committee is asked to note and 
consider the risks which are considered to be reasonable and appropriate having 
regard to the risks typically assumed by long term senior funders to waste projects in 
the UK and best banking practice.  

  
43 Although the expected takeover date had been deferred until 31 March 2017, the 

repayment of the loan from 28 February 2017 is not at risk. Due diligence tests have 
been undertaken to establish the financial strength of HZI to continue with the 
contract. These highlighted no concerns therefore there are no changes to the 
residual risk.  The council is not facing any more risks as a result of the waivers and 
consents issued. The security packages in place are therefore working effectively.        

  

Consultees 

44 None.  

Appendices 

Appendix a Financial advisor update (ACPCFT) 
Appendix b General technical advisor update 
Appendix c Specific technical advisor update (installation quality) 
Appendix d  Risk register 

Background papers 

None identified. 

50



©
 2

01
5 

D
el

oi
tte

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
. 

S
en

io
r 

Te
rm

 L
oa

n 
F

ac
ili

ty
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t 

A
ct

ua
l C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

P
er

io
d 

C
as

h 
F

lo
w

 T
es

t 

F
or

 th
e 

pe
rio

d:
  

1 
A

pr
il 

20
15

 to
 3

0 
Ju

ne
 2

01
5 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
A

51



Im
po

rt
an

t n
ot

ic
e 

D
el

oi
tte

 L
LP

 (
“D

el
oi

tte
”)

 is
 a

ct
in

g 
fo

r 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

(“
W

C
C

”)
 a

nd
 th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
of

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
 (

“C
oH

C
”)

 (
to

ge
th

er
 “

th
e 

C
ou

nc
ils

” 
or

 th
e 

“C
lie

nt
s”

) 
on

 th
e 

te
rm

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t l
et

te
r 

da
te

d 
13

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
 (

th
e 

“E
ng

ag
em

en
t L

et
te

r”
) 

in
 c

on
ne

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 a

dv
is

or
y 

se
rv

ic
es

 in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 th

e 
S

en
io

r 
T

er
m

 L
oa

n 
F

ac
ili

ty
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t (
“S

T
LF

A
” 

or
 “

A
gr

ee
m

en
t”

) 
w

ith
 M

er
ci

a 
W

as
te

 M
an

ag
em

en
t L

im
ite

d 
(“

M
W

M
” o

r 
“M

er
ci

a”
) 

(in
 to

ta
l, 

th
e 

“P
ro

je
ct

”)
 a

nd
 h

as
 n

o 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

to
 a

ny
on

e 
ot

he
r 

th
an

 th
e 

C
lie

nt
s 

fo
r 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
ad

vi
ce

 in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 th

e 
P

ro
je

ct
. 

T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t, 

w
hi

ch
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

D
el

oi
tte

, c
om

pr
is

es
 th

e 
w

rit
te

n 
m

at
er

ia
ls

/s
lid

es
 fo

r 
th

e 
pu

rp
os

e 
of

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 a

 p
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

C
lie

nt
s 

en
vi

sa
ge

d 
in

 th
e 

E
ng

ag
em

en
t L

et
te

r.
 N

o 
ot

he
r 

pa
rt

y 
is

 e
nt

itl
ed

 to
 r

el
y 

on
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t f

or
 a

ny
 p

ur
po

se
 w

ha
ts

oe
ve

r 
an

d 
D

el
oi

tte
 a

cc
ep

ts
 n

o 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

or
 li

ab
ili

ty
 t

o 
an

y 
pa

rt
y 

ot
he

r 
th

an
 th

e 
C

lie
nt

 in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f t
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t a

nd
/o

r 
an

y 
of

 it
s 

co
nt

en
ts

. 

T
he

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
co

m
pi

le
d 

by
 D

el
oi

tte
 a

nd
 in

cl
ud

es
 m

at
er

ia
l o

bt
ai

ne
d 

fr
om

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
ils

 
an

d 
by

 M
er

ci
a 

bu
t h

as
 n

ot
 b

ee
n 

ve
rif

ie
d.

  T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t a

ls
o 

co
nt

ai
ns

 c
on

fid
en

tia
l m

at
er

ia
l p

ro
pr

ie
ta

ry
 to

 D
el

oi
tte

.  
In

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
, i

t s
ho

ul
d 

be
 n

ot
ed

 th
at

 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
co

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t i

s 
pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
an

d 
no

t a
ud

ite
d.

 

W
hi

ls
t D

el
oi

tte
 is

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 to
 th

e 
C

lie
nt

 fo
r 

pe
rf

or
m

in
g 

its
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

sk
ill

 a
nd

 c
ar

e,
 th

e 
co

nt
en

ts
 o

f t
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t, 

in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 th
e 

re
su

lts
 

of
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 e

va
lu

at
io

n,
 r

el
y 

on
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 to

 D
el

oi
tte

.  
D

el
oi

tte
 h

as
 n

ei
th

er
 in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 v

er
ifi

ed
 th

e 
co

nt
en

t o
f t

he
 b

id
de

rs
' 

su
bm

is
si

on
s 

or
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
, n

or
 a

ud
ite

d 
or

 o
th

er
w

is
e 

ve
rif

ie
d 

M
W

M
’s

 m
od

el
. C

on
se

qu
en

tly
, a

ny
 e

rr
or

s 
or

 o
m

is
si

on
s 

in
 th

em
 c

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
a 

m
at

er
ia

l 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f t
he

 e
va

lu
at

io
n.

 If
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 in
ac

cu
ra

te
 o

r 
in

co
m

pl
et

e,
 th

e 
co

nt
en

ts
 o

f t
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t a

nd
 th

e 
re

su
lts

 o
f t

he
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
or

 
an

y 
ot

he
r 

or
al

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

m
ay

 b
e 

un
re

lia
bl

e 
an

d 
D

el
oi

tte
 d

is
cl

ai
m

s 
an

y 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

or
 li

ab
ili

ty
 t

he
re

fo
r.

  

T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t a

nd
 it

s 
co

nt
en

ts
 a

re
 c

on
fid

en
tia

l a
nd

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

re
pr

od
uc

ed
, r

ed
is

tr
ib

ut
ed

 o
r 

pa
ss

ed
 o

n,
 d

ire
ct

ly
 o

r 
in

di
re

ct
ly

, 
to

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 p

er
so

n 
in

 
w

ho
le

 o
r 

in
 p

ar
t w

ith
ou

t t
he

 p
rio

r 
w

rit
te

n 
co

ns
en

t o
f D

el
oi

tte
. 

2 

52



A
ct

ua
l C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

P
er

io
d 

C
as

h 
F

lo
w

 T
es

t 

B
ac

kg
ro

u
n

d
 

M
er

ci
a 

ha
s 

a 
W

as
te

 M
an

ag
em

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s 

C
on

tr
ac

t (
“W

M
S

C
”)

 w
ith

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

ils
. M

er
ci

a 
se

cu
re

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 c

on
se

nt
  f

or
 a

 n
ew

 fa
ci

lit
y 

an
d 

re
-n

eg
ot

ia
te

d 
th

e 
W

M
S

C
 fo

r 
th

e 
de

si
gn

, c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
an

d 
op

er
at

io
n 

of
 

a 
W

as
te

 to
 E

ne
rg

y 
(“

W
tE

”)
 p

la
nt

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
re

m
ai

nd
er

 o
f t

he
 W

M
S

C
, 

du
e 

to
 e

xp
ire

 in
 2

02
3.

  F
in

an
ci

al
 c

lo
se

 w
as

 r
ea

ch
ed

 in
 M

ay
 2

01
4.

 

In
 o

rd
er

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
so

lu
tio

n 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
d 

V
fM

, t
he

 
C

ou
nc

ils
 u

se
d 

th
ei

r 
pr

ud
en

tia
l b

or
ro

w
in

g 
po

w
er

s 
to

 d
eb

t f
un

d 
M

er
ci

a’
s 

W
tE

 P
la

nt
.  

 

B
as

ed
 o

n 
a 

ca
pi

ta
l s

tr
uc

tu
re

 o
f 8

5%
 d

eb
t a

nd
 1

5%
 e

qu
ity

, t
he

 C
ou

nc
ils

 
is

su
ed

 a
 s

en
io

r 
lo

an
 fa

ci
lit

y.
 

W
ith

in
 th

e 
S

en
io

r 
T

er
m

 L
oa

n 
F

ac
ili

ty
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t (
“S

T
LF

A
”)

, t
he

 
C

ou
nc

ils
 in

cl
ud

ed
 a

n 
A

ct
ua

l C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

er
io

d 
C

as
h 

F
lo

w
 T

es
t 

(“
A

C
P

C
F

T
”)

.  
T

hi
s 

te
st

 is
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t o
n 

a 
qu

ar
te

rly
 b

as
is

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
fin

an
ci

al
 c

lo
se

 (
th

e 
fir

st
 q

ua
rt

er
 e

nd
in

g 
30

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
4)

 a
nd

 is
 

us
ed

 to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
w

he
th

er
: 

“A
ct

ua
l O

pe
ra

tin
g 

C
as

h 
ge

ne
ra

te
d 

du
rin

g 
th

at
 p

er
io

d 
pl

us
 th

e 
br

ou
gh

t 
fo

rw
ar

d 
ca

sh
 b

al
an

ce
 a

ttr
ib

ut
ab

le
 to

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 is

 e
qu

al
 to

, o
r 

ex
ce

ed
s…

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f O
pe

ra
tin

g 
C

as
h 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
to

 b
e 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
du

rin
g 

th
at

 p
er

io
d 

pl
us

 th
e 

br
ou

gh
t f

or
w

ar
d 

ca
sh

 b
al

an
ce

 a
ttr

ib
ut

ab
le

 
to

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 a

s 
sh

ow
n 

in
 th

e 
B

as
e 

C
as

e 
F

in
an

ci
al

 M
od

el
.” 

S
ho

ul
d 

a 
sh

or
tfa

ll 
oc

cu
r,

 M
er

ci
a 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 r

em
ed

y 
th

is
 

sh
or

tfa
ll 

by
 m

ea
ns

 o
f a

n 
eq

ui
ty

 in
je

ct
io

n 
eq

ua
l t

o 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f t

he
 

sh
or

tfa
ll 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
ua

l d
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n.
 

3 

S
co

p
e 

o
f 

re
vi

ew
 

D
el

oi
tte

 h
as

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 t

he
 c

al
cu

la
tio

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
M

er
ci

a 
fo

r t
he

 A
C

P
C

F
T

. I
n 

do
in

g 
so

 D
el

oi
tte

 h
as

: 

•
A

gr
ee

d 
th

e 
te

rm
s 

of
 th

e 
ca

lc
ul

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

S
T

LF
A

;  

•
A

gr
ee

d 
th

e 
“m

od
el

” 
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

C
as

h 
ge

ne
ra

te
d 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
pe

rio
d 

to
 th

e 
B

as
e 

C
as

e 
F

in
an

ci
al

 M
od

el
; 

•
A

gr
ee

d 
th

e 
ac

tu
al

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
C

as
h 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 
to

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t i
nf

or
m

at
io

n;
 

•
R

e-
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 th
e 

ca
lc

ul
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
A

C
P

C
F

T
; 

•
C

om
pa

re
d 

th
e 

se
ni

or
 te

rm
 lo

an
 fa

ci
lit

y 
dr

aw
 d

ow
ns

 a
ga

in
st

 th
os

e 
fo

re
ca

st
 

in
 th

e 
B

as
e 

C
as

e 
F

in
an

ci
al

 M
od

el
. 

•
R

ev
ie

w
ed

 th
e 

te
ch

ni
ca

l r
ep

or
ts

 th
at

 w
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 fo
r 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 
to

 3
0 

Ju
ne

 
20

15
. 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

re
su

lt
s 

T
he

 r
es

ul
t o

f t
he

 A
C

P
C

F
T

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
 b

y 
M

er
ci

a 
fo

r 
th

e 
pe

rio
d 

un
de

r 
re

vi
ew

 is
 

an
 E

xc
es

s 
C

as
h 

F
lo

w
 a

m
ou

nt
 a

s 
at

 3
0 

Ju
ne

 2
01

5 
is

 £
1,

08
7k

. 

T
hi

s 
sh

ow
s 

th
at

 in
 th

e 
pe

rio
d 

fr
om

 1
 M

ay
 2

01
4 

to
 3

0 
Ju

ne
 2

01
5,

 th
e 

op
er

at
io

ns
 h

av
e 

pr
od

uc
ed

 £
1,

08
7k

 m
or

e 
th

an
 w

as
 fo

re
ca

st
 fo

r 
th

is
 p

er
io

d 
in

 
th

e 
B

as
e 

C
as

e 
F

in
an

ci
al

 M
od

el
. 

B
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ab

ov
e,

 th
e 

A
C

P
C

F
T

 fo
r 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 
un

de
r 

re
vi

ew
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

sa
tis

fie
d.

 In
 c

om
pl

et
in

g 
ou

r 
w

or
k 

se
t o

ut
 a

bo
ve

, w
e 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

y 
in

co
ns

is
te

nc
ie

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
M

er
ci

a’
s 

ca
lc

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

th
e 

un
de

rly
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
 

53



C
al

cu
la

tio
n 

4 

S
ou

rc
e:

 M
er

ci
a;

 F
in

an
ci

al
 M

od
el

; S
en

io
r 

T
er

m
 L

oa
n 

F
ac

ili
ty

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t. 

A
ct

u
al

 C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 P
er

io
d

 C
as

h
 F

lo
w

 T
es

t 
M

et
ri

c 
(£

00
0)

 
M

ay
 –

 S
ep

 1
4 

O
ct

 –
 D

ec
 1

4 
Ja

n
 -

 M
ar

 1
5 

A
p

r 
- 

Ju
n

 1
5 

B
as

e 
ca

se
 f

in
an

ci
al

 m
o

d
el

 
  

  
  

b/
f c

as
h 

at
tr

ib
ut

ab
le

 to
 O

ps
 

4,
25

4 
4,

79
3 

7,
05

1 
9,

12
3 

  
  

  
  

  

G
ro

ss
 r

ev
en

ue
 

18
,6

03
 

10
,4

48
 

10
,8

47
 

11
,8

13
 

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
co

st
s 

(1
4,

89
3)

 
(8

,1
11

) 
(8

,3
20

) 
(8

,9
61

) 
C

ha
ng

es
 in

 w
or

ki
ng

 c
ap

ita
l 

(1
,2

12
) 

32
0 

(1
8)

 
(2

52
) 

C
el

l p
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

as
se

ts
 

(6
12

) 
0 

0 
0 

C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

ta
x 

(1
,3

46
) 

(4
00

) 
(4

37
) 

(4
77

) 
T

o
ta

l c
h

an
g

e 
53

9 
2,

25
8 

2,
07

2 
2,

12
2 

A
ct

u
al

s 
  

  
  

  
b/

f c
as

h 
at

tr
ib

ut
ab

le
 to

 O
ps

 
4,

63
7 

6,
48

0 
11

,6
74

 
10

,4
23

 

  
  

  
  

  

G
ro

ss
 r

ev
en

ue
 

19
,6

88
 

13
,3

41
 

10
,5

78
 

11
,9

29
 

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
co

st
s 

(1
5,

55
7)

 
(8

,5
88

) 
(8

,5
09

) 
(9

,3
72

) 
C

ha
ng

es
 in

 w
or

ki
ng

 c
ap

ita
l 

(1
,3

92
) 

1,
36

3 
(3

,0
18

) 
(1

71
) 

C
el

l p
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

as
se

ts
 

(3
33

) 
(2

86
) 

0 
0 

C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

ta
x 

(5
63

) 
(6

36
) 

(3
02

) 
(4

76
) 

T
o

ta
l c

h
an

g
e 

1,
84

3 
5,

19
4 

(1
,2

52
) 

1,
91

0 
V

ar
ia

n
ce

 
1,

30
4 

2,
93

6 
(3

,3
24

) 
(2

12
) 

E
xc

es
s 

ca
sh

 fl
ow

 a
/c

 b
/f 

38
3 

1,
68

7 
4,

62
4 

1,
29

9 
E

xc
es

s 
ca

sh
 f

lo
w

 a
/c

 c
/f

 
1,

68
7 

4,
62

4 
1,

29
9 

1,
08

7 

54



 •
In

 J
ul

y 
20

15
, H

Z
I m

ad
e 

th
e 

de
ci

si
on

 to
 te

rm
in

at
e 

In
te

rs
er

ve
 d

ue
 to

 
th

e 
ris

ks
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 th

ei
r 

pr
ev

io
us

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
n 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

H
Z

I w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 c
on

fir
m

 h
ow

 th
ey

 in
te

nd
 to

 c
on

tin
ue

 th
e 

ci
vi

l w
or

ks
 

w
hi

ch
 w

er
e 

w
ith

in
 In

te
rs

er
ve

’s
 s

co
pe

 a
nd

 h
ow

 th
ey

 w
ill

 a
vo

id
 

ad
di

tio
na

l d
el

ay
s.

 M
er

ci
a 

w
ill

 b
e 

is
su

in
g 

a 
do

cu
m

en
t p

ro
vi

di
ng

 m
or

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 th
e 

re
as

on
s 

fo
r 

te
rm

in
at

io
n 

an
d 

an
 in

iti
al

 v
ie

w
 o

n 
H

Z
I’s

 p
la

ns
 to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t. 
 

•
H

av
in

g 
di

sc
us

se
d 

th
e 

te
ch

ni
ca

l r
ep

or
ts

 w
ith

 M
er

ci
a,

 w
e 

ar
e 

to
ld

 th
at

 
th

er
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 n
o 

ch
an

ge
 to

 m
od

el
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 to

 d
at

e,
 n

or
 a

re
 a

ny
 

en
vi

sa
ge

d 
at

 th
is

 ti
m

e.
 H

ow
ev

er
, a

 C
on

tr
ac

t V
ar

ia
tio

n 
In

st
ru

ct
io

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

e 
re

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 a

 H
ou

se
ho

ld
 W

as
te

 S
ite

 
(T

en
bu

ry
) 

–t
he

 m
od

el
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

to
 b

e 
up

da
te

d 
fo

r 
th

is
 c

ha
ng

e 
(a

 
co

nt
ra

ct
ua

l r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t)
. T

hi
s 

ch
an

ge
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 c
as

h 
ne

ut
ra

l t
o 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

•
M

er
ci

a 
ar

e 
al

so
 w

or
ki

ng
 o

n 
so

m
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 th

e 
m

od
el

 s
tr

uc
tu

re
 to

 
en

ab
le

 th
em

 to
 u

pd
at

e 
it 

fo
r 

th
e 

ab
ov

e 
ch

an
ge

 a
nd

 o
nc

e 
th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

gr
ee

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il,
 th

e 
m

od
el

 w
ill

 b
e 

up
da

te
d.

  

•
T

he
 C

ou
nc

ils
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

to
 c

la
rif

y 
th

at
 th

ey
 a

re
 h

ap
py

 fo
r 

th
e 

up
da

te
d 

m
od

el
 to

 b
e 

us
ed

 fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 A

C
P

C
F

T
. 

C
o

m
m

en
ta

ry
 

•
T

he
 c

al
cu

la
tio

n 
is

 th
e 

re
su

lt 
of

 a
 m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
 a

gr
ee

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
pa

rt
ie

s 
(t

he
 C

ou
nc

ils
 a

nd
 M

er
ci

a)
 w

hi
ch

 a
cc

or
ds

 w
ith

 th
e 

S
T

LF
A

 s
ig

ne
d 

on
 2

1 
M

ay
 2

01
4.

 

•
T

he
 r

es
ul

t o
f t

he
 A

C
P

C
F

T
 p

er
fo

rm
ed

 b
y 

M
er

ci
a 

fo
r 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 
un

de
r 

re
vi

ew
 is

 a
n 

E
xc

es
s 

C
as

h 
F

lo
w

 a
m

ou
nt

 a
s 

at
 3

0 
Ju

ne
 2

01
5 

is
 £

1,
08

7k
. 

•
T

hi
s 

sh
ow

s 
th

at
 in

 th
e 

pe
rio

d 
fr

om
 1

 M
ay

 2
01

4 
to

 3
0 

Ju
ne

 2
01

5,
 th

e 
op

er
at

io
ns

 h
av

e 
pr

od
uc

ed
 £

1,
08

7k
 m

or
e 

th
an

 w
as

 fo
re

ca
st

 fo
r 

th
is

 
pe

rio
d 

in
 th

e 
B

as
e 

C
as

e 
F

in
an

ci
al

 M
od

el
. 

•
B

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

ab
ov

e,
 th

e 
A

C
P

C
F

T
 fo

r 
th

e 
pe

rio
d 

un
de

r 
re

vi
ew

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
sa

tis
fie

d.
 In

 c
om

pl
et

in
g 

ou
r 

w
or

k 
se

t o
ut

 a
bo

ve
, w

e 
ha

ve
 n

ot
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
y 

in
co

ns
is

te
nc

ie
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

M
er

ci
a’

s 
ca

lc
ul

at
io

n 
an

d 
th

e 
un

de
rly

in
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 

•
W

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 th

e 
te

ch
ni

ca
l r

ep
or

t “
M

er
ci

a 
LT

A
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
S

um
m

ar
y 

– 
Ju

ly
 2

01
5”

, w
hi

ch
 c

ov
er

s 
re

le
va

nt
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
ba

se
d 

on
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f l
at

es
t a

va
ila

bl
e 

re
po

rt
s 

fr
om

 th
e 

O
w

ne
r’s

 E
ng

in
ee

r 
(c

ov
er

in
g 

1s
t –

 3
0t

h 
A

pr
il 

20
15

) 
an

d 
M

er
ci

a 
(c

ov
er

in
g 

1s
t –

 3
1s

t M
ay

 
20

15
),

 a
nd

 o
n 

th
e 

m
on

th
ly

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
m

ee
tin

g 
he

ld
 o

n 
si

te
 o

n 
9t

h 
Ju

ly
 

20
15

.  
F

ro
m

 th
e 

re
po

rt
, w

e 
hi

gh
lig

ht
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

as
pe

ct
s:

 

•
H

Z
I h

av
e 

co
nf

irm
ed

 th
at

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t a
nd

 m
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g 
is

 
“p

ro
gr

es
si

ng
 a

s 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 is

 n
ot

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 o

n 
th

e 
cr

iti
ca

l p
at

h”
.  

•
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

pr
og

re
ss

 o
n 

si
te

 d
ur

in
g 

M
ay

 h
as

 “
re

m
ai

ne
d 

go
od

”.
 

•
T

he
 k

ey
 r

is
k 

to
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t r
em

ai
ns

 th
e 

3 
m

on
th

 d
el

ay
 in

 th
e 

ci
vi

l 
w

or
ks

.  

C
om

m
en

ta
ry

 

5 

55



S
en

io
r T

er
m

 F
ac

ili
ty

 L
oa

n 
dr

aw
 d

ow
ns

 

6 

S
ou

rc
e:

 M
er

ci
a;

 F
in

an
ci

al
 M

od
el

 

A
ct

u
al

s 
vs

 F
o

re
ca

st
 in

 t
h

e 
F

in
an

ci
al

 M
o

d
el

 

T
he

 ta
bl

e 
be

lo
w

 s
ho

w
s 

th
e 

ac
tu

al
 S

en
io

r 
T

er
m

 F
ac

ili
ty

 L
oa

n 
dr

aw
 d

ow
ns

 a
ga

in
st

 th
os

e 
fo

re
ca

st
 in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 m
od

el
. 

         F
ac

ili
ty

 A
 is

 th
e 

am
or

tis
in

g 
lo

an
. C

ap
ita

l r
ep

ay
m

en
t b

eg
in

s 
in

 th
e 

qu
ar

te
r 

en
de

d 
30

 J
un

e 
20

17
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
pe

rio
d.

 

F
ac

ili
ty

 B
 is

 th
e 

bu
lle

t l
oa

n 
w

hi
ch

 is
 fo

re
ca

st
 to

 b
e 

re
pa

id
 in

 th
e 

qu
ar

te
r 

en
de

d 
31

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
02

3.
 

F
ro

m
 d

is
cu

ss
io

n 
w

ith
 M

er
ci

a 
m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
th

e 
la

ck
 o

f d
ra

w
 d

ow
n 

in
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
4 

to
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
4 

pe
rio

d 
re

fle
ct

s 
bo

th
 a

 d
el

ay
 in

 th
e 

W
tE

 b
ui

ld
 

(m
ea

ni
ng

 le
ss

 c
as

h 
w

as
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

W
tE

 b
ui

ld
) 

an
d 

th
e 

lo
w

er
 th

an
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

ca
pi

ta
l e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 in

 n
on

-W
tE

 b
ui

ld
 (

m
ea

ni
ng

 th
at

 m
or

e 
ca

sh
 c

an
 

be
 u

se
d 

on
 th

e 
W

tE
 b

ui
ld

).
 

W
e 

no
te

 th
at

 a
ct

ua
l d

ra
w

 d
ow

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 b
el

ow
 th

e 
dr

aw
 d

ow
ns

 th
at

 w
er

e 
fo

re
ca

st
 in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 m
od

el
. F

ro
m

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

w
ith

 M
er

ci
a 

m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

th
is

 is
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

fa
ct

 th
at

, i
n 

ge
ne

ra
l, 

th
er

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

de
la

ys
 in

 th
e 

tim
in

g 
of

 s
om

e 
of

 th
e 

E
P

C
 m

ile
st

on
e 

pa
ym

en
ts

 a
nd

 th
e 

as
se

t 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
 li

ttl
e 

be
hi

nd
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

le
ad

 ti
m

es
 fo

r d
el

iv
er

y 
/ i

ns
ta

lla
tio

n.
  T

he
se

 a
re

 d
el

ay
s 

in
 th

e 
tim

in
g 

of
 c

ap
ita

l e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
pa

ym
en

ts
, a

nd
 M

er
ci

a 
an

tic
ip

at
e 

ca
tc

hi
ng

 u
p 

w
ith

 th
e 

m
od

el
 d

ra
w

do
w

ns
 la

te
r 

th
is

 y
ea

r.
 

  M
o

d
el

 
M

ay
 -

 S
ep

 1
4 

O
ct

 -
 D

ec
 1

4 
Ja

n
 -

 M
ar

 1
5 

A
p

r 
- 

Ju
n

 1
5 

M
o

d
el

 
  

  
  

  
F

ac
ili

ty
 A

 
5,

24
1 

2,
34

1 
1,

72
5 

5,
63

3 
F

ac
ili

ty
 B

 
18

,8
98

 
8,

42
6 

6,
19

0 
20

,2
88

 
T

o
ta

l 
24

,1
39

 
10

,7
67

 
7,

91
6 

25
,9

21
 

  
  

  
  

  
A

ct
u

al
 

  
  

  
  

F
ac

ili
ty

 A
 

4,
57

6 
0 

1,
71

3 
2,

37
5 

F
ac

ili
ty

 B
 

16
,5

32
 

0 
6,

18
7 

8,
58

1 
T

o
ta

l 
21

,1
08

 
0 

7,
90

0 
10

,9
57

 
  

  
  

  
  

D
if

fe
re

n
ce

 
(3

,0
31

) 
(1

0,
76

7)
 

(1
6)

 
(1

4,
96

5)
 

56



A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

7 

S
ou

rc
e:

 M
er

ci
a;

 M
er

ci
a 

al
so

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
th

e 
w

or
ki

ng
s 

be
hi

nd
 t

hi
s 

ca
lc

ul
at

io
n 

so
 th

at
 th

e 
ca

lc
ul

at
io

n 
co

ul
d 

be
 r

ec
on

ci
le

d 
to

 th
e 

co
m

pa
ny

’s
 tr

ia
l b

al
an

ce
 a

nd
 s

o 
it 

co
ul

d 
be

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 in

 a
 

m
an

ne
r 

m
ap

pi
ng

 to
 th

e 
de

sc
rip

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
S

en
io

r 
T

er
m

 L
oa

n 
F

ac
ili

tie
s 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t (

se
e 

pa
ge

 4
).

 

M
er

ci
a’

s 
ca

lc
u

la
ti

o
n

 (
£0

00
) 

M
er

ci
a’

s 
ca

sh
 f

lo
w

 n
o

ti
ce

 

57



A
pp

en
di

x 
2 

8 

S
ou

rc
e:

 S
en

io
r 

T
er

m
 L

oa
n 

F
ac

ili
ty

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

E
xt

ra
ct

s 
fr

o
m

 S
en

io
r 

Te
rm

 L
o

an
 F

ac
ili

ty
 A

g
re

em
en

t 

58



A
pp

en
di

x 
2 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

9 

S
ou

rc
e:

 S
en

io
r 

T
er

m
 L

oa
n 

F
ac

ili
ty

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

E
xt

ra
ct

s 
fr

o
m

 S
en

io
r 

Te
rm

 L
o

an
 F

ac
ili

ty
 A

g
re

em
en

t 

59



In
 t

hi
s 

do
cu

m
en

t 
re

fe
re

nc
es

 t
o 

D
el

oi
tte

 a
re

 r
ef

er
en

ce
s 

to
 D

el
oi

tte
 L

LP
. D

el
oi

tte
 L

LP
 is

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f D

el
oi

tte
 T

ou
ch

e 
T

oh
m

at
su

 L
im

ite
d 

(“
D

T
T

L”
),

 a
 

U
K

 p
riv

at
e 

co
m

pa
ny

 li
m

ite
d 

by
 g

ua
ra

nt
ee

, 
w

ho
se

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
ar

e 
le

ga
lly

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
an

d 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t 
en

tit
ie

s.
 P

le
as

e 
se

e 
w

w
w

.d
el

oi
tte

.c
o.

uk
/a

bo
ut

 f
or

 a
 d

et
ai

le
d 

de
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

le
ga

l s
tr

uc
tu

re
 o

f D
T

T
L 

an
d 

its
 m

em
be

r 
fir

m
s.

  

©
 2

01
5 

D
el

oi
tte

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
. 

D
el

oi
tte

 L
LP

 is
 a

 li
m

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 in

 E
ng

la
nd

 a
nd

 W
al

es
 w

ith
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
nu

m
be

r 
O

C
30

36
75

 a
nd

 it
s 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 o

ffi
ce

 a
t 2

 N
ew

 S
tr

ee
t 

S
qu

ar
e,

 L
on

do
n 

E
C

4A
 3

B
Z

, U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

.  

60



��������	

���������������	�
� ���� ������������

�


�
�����
	
�

���	 ��������������� �������������	 ������������������ �!���� ��"�

���	 ��#� �$�%��� �������������	 ������������������ �!���� ��"�

�����	 	���!�
����� ���	����	 ���������������	�
�

����		 � &�����'������(� ���	��	������		 ��

�� !����	 �������$)*��� �������� ������������##��!�+�����'������(�

� ,-).�/0�),�-�

������� ������ �� ���#� �� $�#���&� 12������34� ��� �� ������� �� ���� ���5���� ��  ��6!���5�
�7������������ 8�.���8�������"� ��� �	�&&��#� ����5���������������9������ ����� ��"�� ��
 �� ����� $�&� 1����� ��4� ���� '�� � �::�� ��&� ��� "� &��;�� ���� ���"� �&8����� 1$)*4� ���� ����
�� �������� �:������������:"� �9�)������##��!�#�#����8������"�8� ������8������� &�:��������
'���&�� ���8��%����"�������8��"�'"����:��������#������% ��;�� �� ����1�4�1��8��� ������+�
�����*���������(4�� &��������1��8��� ������+������<�"!����(49������ ������� ���'�� �#�&��
�%�������� !��������&��� ������#� ��������:��#'���%����� ��&����'��&��% ����������� ��";��
���� ��� 9������ ���%�""����� &�����-�8�#'���:��������#���� ������� ���#�������8�"�� �� ���� ��
����8����������&�"�&���������'�����8��'�� ���#:"���&9�

� �.�<�)��.�=.���

�� �������� ����:�����������"%���5�'��"����� �������� �� &���8�"�%������ ��������'� ����""������
��8��:��������&�%�""�� ������:����&5�� &������� ���""!�'�� �� �"� ��%����������8���&�*::��8�&�
������##�9�>�%�8��5�&�������������#� ���� ���������� ������%����, ������8��� &�&�"�!��� �
�::�� �� ����:"���#� ����8�"��� ��������5������������"�:���� ��� �%����% �������������������
�&#� �������� �'"������ �������� �� &�� ���""���� ����'��"&� �����8����9�)���"������:�����##��
���%�����������)�����8���&���������������������?5�� ��#� ��������������� �������"�)�����8���
&��������7�����'����!����?9�

)�����������������8������� ������������##�����&�'�"�%9�

• ����� %�&�� � &� ��#:����!� %����� +� /��� ���� � ���""���� � ���� :��������&� %�� � �������
:��#���9�

• ����#���������� � ��%�""�� &����������#:��+��� ������:���� �����������������������#:����
� ��� �9�

• )�::� ����""�� &�'� ���������+����:������ �%���������:���� ������������������ ��'��#�����
��##� ��&9�, ���""���� ��������"%����� &�:��������� ������:"� ����������%����� &������
������� &���::������"�������� ���� �� ���9��

• 
��"���� &��"���=���)����#� ��1�=)4���""������+�, ���""���� ����������� �#������ &�'��"���
#�#'�� �� %�""�� ��� � ��� �9� ������ � ��� ���� �=)� ���������"� ����"� ��'�� ���� ��� &��� ���
��##� ���� ���:��#'��9�

• *&#� �������� �'��"&� �������+�, ���""���� ���������%�""��"�&&� ��������##� ��&9�, ���""���� �
���:���������������&#� �������� �'��"&� ������"%�������&��������##� ���� ���:��#'��9��

• )��'� ����""�+����������"�����"%�������� ��� ��%����� ���""���� �����"�&&� ��&��������##� ���
� ���:��#'��9�$���� ��� ����:��������@��:#� ������ ��� �9��

• *������"�&��� &� ����1*��4�+�*""�:�&���� &���� ��������#:"���9�)������������ �%�'�� ��
���&����"�!&�% ���������'�����"���������� ������������ ��%������ �����*�������:�������� �9�

• ��'������ �� &�AA�B���� ����#��������+�, ���""���� �������������� �����&�� &�����AA�B�
�@��:#� ��:"� ����������##� ��&�� &� ���&������'����#:"���&� � � ������:��#'��9�)���
��� ����#���'"����%�""��� &�'� &�������#:"���9����������"�����"%������������/-���� ���"�
���#�����"�����#:"���9�

APPENDIX B

61



��������	

���������������	�
� ���� ������������

�

• ����#����� ����� � ��%�""� � &�������� ��#:��+�.�#�8�"� ��� ���� ��#:����!������� ��#:� ���
��#:"����� &��"�� � ���������:���#���������� � ��%�""��� �� ����� �:��:������ �����:���� ��
�������:��#� � ����� �����&��� �������������#:9�

� 	C��.�<�)�.,�	��*-/��
�.B*),�-��

)��� �::�� �#� �� ��� ��:"���#� �� ��'�� ��������� ��""�%� �� ���� ���#� ���� � ��� , ������8�;��
�� ������� &�����:�����������������8�"�%����5�:������"��"!�'��"&� �����8�����&���� 5���#�� ������
��!�������������:��D���9�/�"�!��� ��::�� �� ����:"���#� ����'�� �����������������"��&�� �:����
��8�"��� �������� �:�������9�>E,����� �%�:��&���� ����)�����8���&���������������������?5�� ��
#� ��������������� �������"�)�����8���&���9�)����������"�:����� �����:�����##�� �%��� ��
���������� �������� ���������&#� �������� �'��"&� �9�

,������������"����������'��"&� �����8������ &������&������� 6��::������ ��� �����������:"���&�'!�
����&��������% �� �����"������:�����##�9��)�����#� ������%��&� ���������� ������5�� &�����
��##� ��#� ��&��������� ���""���� ���������&#� �'"����:����������������"�����"�%�""�&����#� ��
�������:��D����&�)�����8���&�������"���"!�����"�:��������9�

>E,���8���&8���&����������"����������1��F��������F��4�� &��� &�!�%���� ��1%���������'�� �
�����&�%�������������������.���"����!����8����4�����8��"�'"����������"������ �����:�������%����9�
)�������#��:����&��%�""�'�����&�'!F��

• � &�8�&��"��� ������������#������������ �������"�&��&"� ��G��

• '!�>E,��������� �����8������1������������&��� ������������7#�"�8�"4�%������� �"����%����������
%����G�� &��

• ���:���������������"�:�������#���������������&#� �������� �'"��������"%���9�

���8�&�&�������!��� �������%��&�&���������#��5��&&���� �"�%���� ��������#�� ��������������""�
:��� ���"���������)�����8���&�������'�����"������� ������ �"!���������9������ ���%�""��� �� ������
#� ����������������� �� &�:��8�&���:&����������&� �"!9�

� �,-*-�,*$�*-/�����.�,*$�

��!#� �����8�� �%�'�� �#�&������������� �#�"���� ���8� ��9�)����� � �"�&�������:�������
#�"���� ��� � &�  � �� ��8�"� #�"���� ��� � &� �#�� �� ��� A�9(H� ��� ���� ����"� :�!#� �9� )���
��#�"���8���#�� ��%���������'�� ���������&����&�������I��5�A�5?��9�A9�)���$)*����������&�
�����:�!#� �������������������""�%�&��%&�% �� ������� ����"�� 9�

-��#�"���� ��:�!#� ���%�����::"��&������ �<�"!����*�����9�* ��::"������ �����#�"���� ���7���
�"������������#� ����������� �:������ 5�����J:����&�� ���:��#'��9��

)��&���� �%� �!���8� �B������� ���&������8��'�� � �����&5���� ������ ��������8�� � 8�"8�&���
��&����� ���������� ������:����5�� &�� ��� ��&&���� 9�)��&�������� �����&����� ���������� ������
:��������I7�5�A�9�)���������'�� � ���J�� ��� ������#������� !�B������� ���&���������&����&���9��

�����:��:���"������������ &� ������(��&&���� �"����#����@�����&�'!�������9�,��%��������&������
������������%�""�'������������� ���������8� �����#� ���:��8�&� ������ ������"� � ��%�""��������
:���#��������� ��:�"��5�%���������'�� ���@�����&�'!�>E,9�� ���:��������8��'�� ������&�
B������� ���&����%�""�'�������&�%����8����������������� ������������ �������"���@����#� ��9�

( >*$)>�*-/��*�)C�

)�����%���� ��� D��������:����&�� �<�"!����*�����9�>�%�8��5�������%�������� ����� ��� �������
� �&����:"� ��!������ �%����������� �!�""�%����&��� &���������&����&�������&�� �<�"!�� &���8� �
!�""�%����&��� &�� ����&����&������&�� �*�����9�������������!�""�%����&����"���&����� ��������
�������:���� �"�:�������8���@��:#� ��1��45��%��� ���"���� ����:������:��8���� �� &��� ����
%���� �����������9�)%�����������&����&����"���&�������"�������� ��"����"�������������� &����� �
� &� �%�� ��� %���� �� ��� ������9� >E,� ��8�� �����&� ����5� � � "� �� %���� ���� ����� �� :����� ���
�� �������� 5����!������������ ��� �%���� ������������:���������� &�����������������"����&�'!�
����� ������&� �#'���������.�������&�� �������������!�� �*�����9�* !���� �������� �������"���
'�� �� &��"�� %���� �������� ���� &����:"� ��!� �!���#� ��� #���� ����� ����� ����� ��� &��&�� ����
#�� ��� �&9��

62



��������	

���������������	�
� ���� ������������

�

/��:��������� �������� �&����:"� ��!������ 5������ ����� ��&����������������#�� �������&����"���
� &������!���"������ �����5�� &�������������� ������ �������������� &�����"�8�"�������� ��� ���8� �
������"���� &������!��� �� �������'�����&9�)�������������&����:"� ��!������ � ���'�� ������ �
%������::��:�����5����%�������>E,�������#�� � �����#�%�� �&��"� ��%����� !���� �������� ��
��������������"��5�%���������"&���":����#�� ��� ���������� ���������� &��&�9�

A �$*--/�*�),B,),��-K)��.,�/�

*��:���� ��������""�%� ������8����������:"�  �&�������:��#'������(F�

• /����"�&� � �� ���� �� ��� ��#�� � �� :�������� 1� �"�&� �� '��"��� :�:� �5� ���'� �� �� ���"5�
�"�������"�� �� ���� �5�� ����#� ����� 5�8���������8�"�:�������5����4G�

• �"���#� �� ��� :�������� ��&���� ���� ��  �#'��� ��� :������� � &� ��8�"� ���#�5� � �"�&� ��
%����'��&���5�%�����'� �����J��8���� �� &��� �������� 5��J��� �"�&������ &�'"���%����
� &���@���������@������� ��� ��� �#'�������&&���� �"���8�"�:�������G�

• �� �� ��&� #� ��������� ��� ���#�� ����� �"!� � � %���5� � �"�&� �� � ���#�&����� � &� �� �"�
� �:����� ��%�������@����&G�

• �� �� ��&� %���� � � ��8�"� :�������� � �"�&� �� &��� ���� 1��� ������� :��#���45� :���#�����
����� � �� %�""� � &� ������� ��#:5� %����� '� ���5� �&#� � '��"&� �5� &�#� ���"���&� %�����
'��"&� �5����'� ����""5������8�"�������� ����#�����#:�� &5������8�"�������'������ 5�� &�
/-���� ���"����#G�� &�

• �� �� ��&�%����� �:�������:��������� �"�&� ��'��"���:�������#'"!�� &�����#'"!5�'��"���
��""�&���%����� &�������� ���""���� 5�� ���""���� �����=)�����"%����� &�� ���""���� ����&���� ��
� &���'������"����5�� &�� ���""���� �����������'� �����*�������#�&���9�

�

C������� ����"!�
�,�>)-.��� ��"�� �� �� �����$�#���&�

� � � � � � � � �

"���#	$���%	 �%��	�&&#	

�� ��"�� �� ��##�����"�/��������

63



64



 

 

 

 

 
E-mail: Sales@Fichtner.co.uk Registered No: 2 605 319 England  

5th October 2015 

 

Our reference: S1694-0020-0400MSS 

 

Gillian Sinclair 

Mercia Waste Management Limited 
C/O FCC Environment 

Ground Floor West 

900 Pavilion Drive 

Northampton 

NN4 7RG 

 

Ref: HZI Installation Quality to Date 

 

Dear Gillian, 

   

We can confirm that in general the quality of construction on the EnviRecover project is good. 

HZI have a site inspection procedure, which is outlined in the attached document, in order to 
monitor quality. There is a good relationship between our Site Representative, Paul Draffan and 
HZI’s quality manager Georgios Apostolidis, and we are invited to all HZI site intermediate 
inspections (IIS), so that components can be inspected prior to insulation. We will also be invited 
to final site inspections (FIS). These inspections present the opportunity to check quality 
documentation and pick up any snags prior to the final Mechanical Erection Completion (MEC) 
inspection for the system. The MEC is the final inspection for each system to ensure that it meets 
the contractual and good industry practice requirements. 

We are also able to review HZI’s quality monitoring documentation, including weld maps, at any 
time, through arrangement with the HZI Quality Manager.  

In addition to the HZI organised inspections, we carry out our own independent plant walk downs 
and inspections daily. Any issues we encounter are raised through the observations system. To 
date, 39 civil observations have been raised (with 12 closed) and 4 process observations have been 
raised. Compared to other projects, this is a relatively low number, and none of the observations 
raised to date give any particular cause for concern. 

The quality of material and equipment delivered to site is good. In particular we have been 
impressed with the professionalism and diligence of Carey’s, Refako and Mostostal Pulawy. 
Equipment has also been inspected prior to shipment from the factory during Factory Inspection 
Workshops (FIWs). As part of these inspections, the quality system of the boiler supplier Refako 
was audited and found to be robust. The turbine rotor was inspected and confirmed that the 
balancing requirements had been met. Our electrical engineer has also been impressed with the 
build quality and specification of the electrical panels inspected to date, with only minor issues 
raised. 

In conclusion, the quality of site installation is good and we currently have no major concerns. 
There has been no reduction in quality of the civil works since the termination of the Interserve 
contract. The key Interserve subcontractors such as Arup, Royal Haskoning and Adstone have been 
retained. Where there has been a replacement of a subcontractor e.g. Bemac for Carey’s the level 
of quality has been maintained. 

Kingsgate (Floor 3) 
Wellington Road North 

Stockport 
SK4 1LW 

Tel:  +44 (0)161 476 0032 
Fax: +44 (0)161 474 0618 

APPENDIX C

65



 

 

 

 

05/10/15 Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

Yours sincerely 

FICHTNER Consulting Engineers Limited 

 

 

 

Mark Shatwell   Stuart Wilson 
Project Manager Fichtner Project Director  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

66



W
as
te
 lo
an
 r
is
k 
re
g
is
te
r 

A
p
p
en
d
ix
 d

R
is
k 

R
ef
er
en
ce

D
es
cr
ip
tio
n 
of
 r
is
k

G
ro
ss
 

Im
pa
ct

G
ro
ss
 

P
ro
ba
bi
lit
y

G
ro
ss
 R
is
k 

S
co
re
 

R
is
k 
co
nt
ro
l 

ap
pr
oa
ch

M
iti
ga
tin
g 
A
ct
io
ns

R
es
id
ua
l 

Im
pa
ct

R
es
id
ua
l 

P
ro
ba
bi
lit
y

R
es
id
ua
l 

R
is
k 
S
co
re
 

A
ss
ig
ne
d 
to
 (
R
is
k 

O
w
ne
rs
)

a

D
ef
au
lt 
of
 lo
an
 r
ep
ay
m
en
ts
 b
y 

bo
rr
ow
er
 to
 le
nd
er
s 
du
e 
to
 

S
P
V
 (
M
er
ci
a)
 o
r 
H
Z
I f
al
lin
g 
in
to
 

ad
m
in
is
tr
at
io
n.

C
rit
ic
al

M
ed
iu
m

15
R
is
k 

tr
an
sf
er
re
d

D
ue
 to
 th
e 
se
cu
rit
y 
pa
ck
ag
e 
ne
go
tia
te
d 

by
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
ils
 a
 fa
ll 
aw
ay
 a
na
ly
si
s 

in
di
ca
te
d 
th
at
 M
er
ci
a,
 it
s 
S
ha
re
ho
ld
er
s 

an
d 
H
Z
I w
ou
ld
 n
ee
d 
to
 e
nt
er
 

ad
m
in
is
tr
at
io
n 
at
 th
e 
sa
m
e 
tim
e 
to
 p
ut
 

re
pa
ym
en
t a
t r
is
k 
du
rin
g 
th
e 
co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n 

ph
as
e.
 T
he
 m
ax
im
um
 e
xp
os
ur
e 
to
 th
e 

C
ou
nc
ils
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
ca
lu
cl
at
ed
 a
nd
 

in
cl
ud
ed
 w
ith
in
 th
e 
su
ffi
ci
en
cy
 

as
se
ss
m
en
t o
f t
he
 C
ou
nc
il'
s 
re
se
rv
es
. A
ll 

pr
es
s 
ar
tic
le
s 
ar
e 
sc
an
ne
d 
re
gu
la
rly
 fo
r 

in
di
ca
tio
ns
 o
f f
in
an
ci
al
 s
tr
en
gt
h 
is
su
es
 

an
d 
fo
llo
w
ed
 u
p 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
co
un
te
rp
ar
ty
 

ris
k 
is
 n
ot
 in
cr
ea
se
d.

S
ub
st
an
tia
l

V
er
y 
lo
w

6

T
he
 r
is
k 
ow
ne
rs
 a
re
 th
e 

S
ec
tio
n 
15
1 
O
ffi
ce
rs
 o
f 

ea
ch
 C
ou
nc
il 
su
pp
or
te
d 

by
 A
sh
ur
st
 a
s 
ad
vi
so
rs
 in
 

ca
se
 o
f c
on
tr
ac
t d
ef
au
lt 

an
d 
D
el
oi
tte
 to
 m
on
ito
r 

M
er
ci
a'
s 
ac
tu
al
 q
ua
rt
er
ly
 

ca
sh
 fl
ow
 te
st
s 
an
d 
co
ve
r 

ra
tio
s 
th
at
 h
av
e 
to
 b
e 

m
ai
nt
ai
ne
d 
by
 M
er
ci
a.
 

b
C
on
st
ru
ct
io
n 
co
m
pl
et
io
n 
da
te
 

of
 E
fW
 is
 d
el
ay
ed
 a
nd
 d
el
ay
s 

re
pa
ym
en
t o
f l
oa
n 
to
 le
nd
er
s.

S
ub
st
an
tia

l
M
ed
iu
m

11
R
is
k 

tr
an
sf
er
re
d

U
nd
er
 th
e 
co
nt
ra
ct
 te
rm
s 
ag
re
ed
 w
ith
 

M
er
ci
a,
 M
er
ci
a 
ta
ke
 a
ll 
m
at
er
ia
l r
is
k 
on
 

E
fW
 c
on
st
ru
ct
io
n 
de
la
y 
an
d 
re
pa
ym
en
t 

of
 lo
an
 w
ill
 c
om
m
en
ce
 a
ro
un
d 
F
eb
ru
ar
y 

20
17
, a
s 
se
t o
ut
 in
 th
e 
S
LF
LA
 a
nd
 

ag
re
ed
 fi
na
l f
in
an
ci
al
 m
od
el
. 

R
ep
ay
m
en
ts
 a
re
 n
ot
 ti
ed
 to
 th
e 
ac
tu
al
 

co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n 
co
m
pl
et
io
n 
da
te
, r
at
he
r 
th
e 

pl
an
ne
d 
da
te
. T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
as
 le
nd
er
 h
as
 

th
e 
rig
ht
 to
 c
al
l t
he
 lo
an
 in
to
 d
ef
au
lt 
if 

co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n 
is
 n
ot
 c
om
pl
et
ed
 b
y 
a 
lo
ng
 

st
op
 d
at
e,
 1
8 
m
on
th
s 
af
te
r 
th
e 
lo
an
 

re
pa
ym
en
t d
at
e.
 T
he
 le
nd
er
s 
te
ch
ni
ca
l 

ad
vi
so
r 
ha
s 
co
nf
irm
ed
 th
at
 th
e 
ex
pe
ct
ed
 

ta
ke
ov
er
 d
at
e 
is
 n
ow
 th
e 
pl
an
ne
d 
ta
ke
 

ov
er
 d
at
e 
pl
us
 o
ne
 m
on
th
, 3
1.
03
.1
5

S
ub
st
an
tia
l

V
er
y 
lo
w

6

T
he
 r
is
k 
ow
ne
rs
 a
re
 th
e 

S
ec
tio
n 
15
1 
O
ffi
ce
rs
 o
f 

ea
ch
 C
ou
nc
il 
su
pp
or
te
d 

by
 A
sh
ur
st
 a
s 
ad
vi
so
rs
 in
 

ca
se
 o
f c
on
tr
ac
t d
ef
au
lt.

c

P
W
LB
 b
or
ro
w
in
g 
ra
te
s 

in
cr
ea
se
 m
or
e 
th
an
 e
st
im
at
ed
 

in
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
ils
' p
ru
de
nt
ia
l 

bo
rr
ow
in
g 
m
od
el
. H
ig
he
r 
ra
te
s 

w
ou
ld
 r
ed
uc
e 
th
e 
su
rp
lu
s 

ge
ne
ra
te
d 
on
 th
e 
lo
an
 

ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts
 w
ith
 M
er
ci
a.
 

S
ub
st
an
tia

l
Lo
w

10
R
is
k 
tr
ea
te
d

T
he
 c
os
t o
f p
ur
ch
as
in
g 
a 
fin
an
ci
al
 

pr
od
uc
t t
o 
re
m
ov
e 
th
is
 r
is
k 
(a
 s
w
ap
tio
n)
 

fr
om
 a
n 
in
ve
st
m
en
t b
an
k 
w
as
 q
uo
te
d 
at
 

£2
0m
. T
he
 C
ou
nc
ils
 d
ec
id
ed
 to
 m
an
ag
e 

th
e 
ris
k 
th
ro
ug
h 
fo
re
ca
st
in
g 
th
e 
fo
rw
ar
d 

pr
ic
e 
fo
r 
its
 d
eb
t d
ra
w
 d
ow
ns
 o
ve
r 
th
e 

co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n 
pe
rio
d 
an
d 
ho
ld
 in
 r
es
er
ve
 

m
on
ie
s 
to
 m
iti
ga
te
 th
is
 r
is
k 
w
he
re
 

re
qu
ire
d.
 C
ur
re
nt
ly
 th
e 
ra
te
s 
ac
ce
ss
ib
le
 

by
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
ils
 a
re
 lo
w
er
 th
an
 th
is
 

es
tim
at
e 
as
 th
e 
co
nt
in
ue
d 
lo
w
 g
ilt
 r
at
e 

en
vi
ro
nm
en
t p
er
va
de
s.
 

S
ub
st
an
tia
l

V
er
y 
lo
w

6

T
he
 r
is
k 
ow
ne
rs
 a
re
 th
e 

S
ec
tio
n 
15
1 
O
ffi
ce
rs
 

su
pp
or
te
d 
by
  T
re
as
ur
y 

an
d 
F
in
an
ci
ng
 T
ea
m
s.

24
.1
1.
15

67



d

Lo
an
 d
ra
w
do
w
ns
 a
re
 s
lo
w
er
 

th
an
 s
et
 o
ut
 in
 th
e 
S
T
F
LA
. 

D
el
ay
ed
 d
ra
w
do
w
ns
 w
ou
ld
 

re
su
lt 
in
 r
ed
uc
ed
 in
te
re
st
 

pa
ym
en
ts
 to
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
ils
 a
nd
 

po
te
nt
ia
lly
 r
ed
uc
ed
 s
ur
pl
us
 if
 

P
W
LB
 lo
an
 r
at
es
 in
cr
ea
se
 

be
tw
ee
n 
th
e 
ex
pe
ct
ed
 d
ra
w
 

da
te
 a
nd
 a
ct
ua
l. 

N
eg
lig
ib
le

M
ed
iu
m

4
R
is
k 
tr
ea
te
d

T
he
 C
ou
nc
ils
 p
la
n 
to
 b
or
ro
w
 in
 li
ne
 w
ith
 

its
 T
re
as
ur
y 
M
an
ag
em
en
t P
ol
ic
y.
 

T
he
re
fo
re
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
ils
 w
ou
ld
 r
ec
ei
ve
 

re
du
ce
d 
in
te
re
st
 r
ec
ei
pt
s 
bu
t l
es
s 
in
te
re
st
 

w
ou
ld
 a
ls
o 
be
 p
ay
ab
le
. T
he
 C
ou
nc
ils
 a
re
 

m
on
ito
rin
g 
m
ar
ke
t g
ilt
 r
at
es
 a
ct
iv
el
y 
an
d 

ha
ve
 th
e 
op
tio
n 
to
 b
or
ro
w
 fr
om
 P
W
LB
 u
p 

to
 a
 y
ea
r 
in
 a
dv
an
ce
 o
f e
xp
ec
te
d 

dr
aw
do
w
n 
re
qu
es
ts
. R
eg
ul
ar
 p
ro
gr
es
s 

re
po
rt
s 
ar
e 
be
in
g 
re
vi
ew
ed
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
e 

co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
an
d 
th
e 
lo
an
 

dr
aw
do
w
ns
 a
re
 r
eq
ue
st
ed
 in
 li
ne
 w
ith
 th
e 

pl
an
.

N
eg
ili
bl
e

V
er
y 
lo
w

2

T
he
 r
is
k 
ow
ne
rs
 a
re
 th
e 

S
ec
tio
n 
15
1 
O
ffi
ce
rs
 

su
pp
or
te
d 
by
 T
re
as
ur
y 

an
d 
F
in
an
ci
ng
 T
ea
m
s.

e

D
ra
w
do
w
n 
re
qu
es
ts
 fr
om
 

M
er
ci
a 
ar
e 
no
t a
ct
io
ne
d 
by
 th
e 

C
ou
nc
ils
 o
r 
no
t a
ct
io
ne
d 
w
ith
in
 

th
e 
re
qu
ire
d 
co
nt
ra
ct
ed
 ti
m
e 

pe
rio
d.

S
ub
st
an
tia

l
Lo
w

10
R
is
k 
tr
ea
te
d

T
he
 C
ou
nc
ils
 tr
ea
su
ry
 te
am
s 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 

fu
lly
 b
rie
fe
d 
on
 th
e 
ac
tio
ns
 r
eq
ui
re
d 
to
 

fu
lfi
l d
ra
w
do
w
n 
re
qu
es
ts
, c
he
ck
s 

re
qu
ire
d 
an
d 
th
e 
co
nt
ra
ct
ed
 ti
m
el
in
e 
by
 

th
e 
S
ec
tio
n 
15
1 
O
ffi
ce
r 
an
d 
th
ei
r 

te
am
s.
D
ra
w
do
w
ns
 to
 d
at
e 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 

ac
tio
ne
d 
in
 li
ne
 w
ith
 r
eq
ui
re
m
en
ts
.

S
ub
st
an
tia
l

V
er
y 
lo
w

6

T
he
 r
is
k 
ow
ne
rs
 a
re
 th
e 

S
ec
tio
n 
15
1 
O
ffi
ce
rs
 

su
pp
or
te
d 
by
 T
re
as
ur
y 

an
d 
F
in
an
ci
ng
 T
ea
m
s.

f

M
er
ci
a 
lo
an
 p
rin
ci
pa
l a
nd
 / 
or
 

in
te
re
st
 r
ep
ay
m
en
ts
 a
re
 b
el
ow
 

th
e 
re
qu
ire
d 
va
lu
es
 a
s 
pe
r 
th
e 

ra
te
s 
ag
re
ed
 in
 th
e 
S
T
F
LA
 .

S
ub
st
an
tia

l
V
er
y 
Lo
w

6
R
is
k 
tr
ea
te
d

T
he
 C
ou
nc
ils
 tr
ea
su
ry
 te
am
 m
ai
nt
ai
n 
a 

sp
re
ad
sh
ee
t d
et
ai
lin
g 
dr
aw
do
w
ns
 to
 d
at
e 

an
d 
ex
pe
ct
ed
 fu
tu
re
 p
rin
ci
pa
l a
nd
 

in
te
re
st
 p
ay
m
en
ts
. T
hi
s 
is
 r
ec
on
ci
le
d 
to
 

M
er
ci
a'
s 
re
pa
ym
en
t s
pr
ea
ds
he
et
 a
nd
 w
ill
 

be
 m
at
ch
ed
 to
 p
rin
ci
pa
l a
nd
 in
te
re
st
 

re
pa
ym
en
ts
 r
ec
ei
ve
d 
fr
om
 M
er
ci
a 
du
rin
g 

th
e 
po
st
 c
on
st
ru
ct
io
n 
pe
rio
d.
 

S
ub
st
an
tia
l

A
lm
os
t 

im
po
ss
ib
le

5

T
he
 r
is
k 
ow
ne
rs
 a
re
 th
e 

S
ec
tio
n 
15
1 
O
ffi
ce
rs
 

su
pp
or
te
d 
by
 T
re
as
ur
y 

an
d 
F
in
an
ci
ng
 T
ea
m
s.

g

D
ef
au
lt 
of
 r
ep
ay
m
en
ts
 b
y 

bo
rr
ow
er
 to
 le
nd
er
s 
du
e 
to
 H
Z
I 

te
rm
in
at
io
n 
of
 In
te
rs
er
ve
 

C
on
st
ru
ct
io
n 
Li
m
ite
d 
(I
C
L)
 

de
la
yi
ng
 p
ro
je
ct
 c
om
pl
et
io
n 
to
 

af
te
r 
lo
ng
 s
to
p 
da
te
.

C
rit
ic
al

M
ed
iu
m

15
R
is
k 
tr
ea
te
d

S
po
ns
or
s 
ha
ve
 p
ro
vi
de
d 
as
su
ra
nc
e 
th
at
 

th
ey
 b
el
ie
ve
 H
Z
I a
re
 u
nd
er
ta
ki
ng
 th
e 

rig
ht
 p
ro
ce
ss
es
 to
 r
ep
la
ce
 IC
L 
w
or
k 

pa
ck
ag
es
 a
nd
 th
at
 th
er
e 
is
 n
o 
fin
an
ci
al
 

ris
k 
to
 th
e 
S
po
ns
or
s 
fr
om
 th
e 
w
or
k 

un
de
rw
ay
. S
po
ns
or
s 
co
nf
irm
ed
 th
at
 th
ei
r 

du
e 
di
lig
en
ce
 o
n 
H
Z
I h
ad
 n
ot
 r
ai
se
d 
an
y 

co
nc
er
ns
 a
ro
un
d 
th
e 
co
m
pa
ny
s 
vi
ab
ili
ty
 

or
 g
oi
ng
 c
on
ce
rn
. T
he
 C
ou
nc
ils
 a
s 

le
nd
er
s 
ha
ve
 th
e 
rig
ht
 to
 c
al
l t
he
 th
e 
lo
an
 

in
to
 d
ef
au
lt 
if 
co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n 
is
 n
ot
 

co
m
pl
et
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
lo
ng
 s
to
p 
da
te
, a
t 

w
hi
ch
 p
oi
nt
 th
e 
ne
go
tia
te
d 
se
cu
rit
y 

pa
ck
ag
e,
 s
et
 o
ut
 in
 s
ec
tio
n 
a 
ab
ov
e,
 

w
ou
ld
 ta
ke
 e
ffe
ct
.

S
ub
st
an
tia
l

V
er
y 
lo
w

6

T
he
 r
is
k 
ow
ne
rs
 a
re
 th
e 

S
ec
tio
n 
15
1 
O
ffi
ce
rs
 o
f 

ea
ch
 C
ou
nc
il 
su
pp
or
te
d 

by
 A
sh
ur
st
 a
s 
ad
vi
so
rs
 in
 

ca
se
 o
f c
on
tr
ac
t d
ef
au
lt.

68



h

H
Z
I t
er
m
in
at
io
n 
of
 IC
L 
m
ay
 

w
ea
ke
n 
th
e 
ne
go
tia
te
d 
se
cu
rit
y 

pa
ck
ag
e 
du
e 
to
 n
o 
si
ng
le
 n
ew
 

su
pp
lie
r 
ex
ce
ed
in
g 
£1
0m
 

co
nt
ra
ct
 v
al
ue
 a
nd
 th
er
ef
or
e 

tr
ig
ge
rin
g 
E
P
C
 C
on
tr
ac
t 

S
ch
ed
ul
e 
7 
re
qu
ire
m
en
ts
 fo
r 

C
ol
la
te
ra
l W
ar
ra
nt
y 
an
d 

pr
of
es
si
on
al
 in
de
m
ni
ty
 

in
su
ra
nc
e 
re
qu
ire
m
en
ts
. T
he
 

ris
k 
is
 th
at
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
as
 

le
nd
er
 d
oe
s 
no
t r
ec
ei
ve
 th
e 

sa
m
e 
se
cu
rit
y 
pa
ck
ag
e 
as
 it
 

ha
d 
w
he
n 
IC
L 
w
as
 in
 p
la
ce
.

S
ub
st
an
tia

l
H
ig
h

12
R
is
k 
tr
ea
te
d

In
 te
rm
s 
of
 C
ol
la
te
ra
l W
ar
ra
nt
y,
 th
e 
H
Z
I 

C
ol
la
te
ra
l W
ar
ra
nt
y 
is
 in
 p
la
ce
 a
nd
 

re
m
ai
ns
 in
 p
la
ce
. D
ue
 d
ili
ge
nc
e 
ha
s 
be
en
 

un
de
rt
ak
en
 b
y 
S
po
ns
or
s 
an
d 
th
e 

C
ou
nc
ils
 a
s 
le
nd
er
s 
(w
ith
 th
e 
F
in
an
ci
al
 

A
dv
is
or
) 
to
 c
on
fir
m
 th
e 
fin
an
ci
al
 s
tr
en
gt
h 

of
 H
Z
I i
n 
lig
ht
 o
f e
ve
nt
s.
 T
he
re
 a
re
 n
o 

is
su
es
 a
ris
in
g 
fr
om
 th
es
e 
re
vi
ew
s.
 

S
po
ns
or
s 
ha
ve
 a
gr
ee
d 
to
 r
ev
ie
w
 o
n 
a 

ca
se
 b
y 
ca
se
 b
as
is
 th
e 
re
qu
ire
m
en
t f
or
 

ad
di
tio
na
l s
ec
ur
ity
 p
ro
te
ct
io
ns
 a
nd
 w
ill
 

ad
vi
se
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
ils
 a
s 
to
 it
s 
ra
tio
na
l f
or
 

its
 d
ec
is
io
n.
 T
he
 C
ou
nc
ils
 a
s 
le
nd
er
s 
ha
s 

si
gn
 o
ff 
rig
ht
s 
an
d 
re
qu
es
ts
 h
av
e 
an
d 
w
ill
 

co
nt
in
ue
 to
 b
e 
m
ad
e 
to
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
ils
 

pr
os
pe
ct
iv
el
y 
fo
r 
S
ch
ed
ul
e 
7 
se
rv
ic
es
 

an
d 
re
tr
os
pe
ct
iv
el
y 
(b
as
ed
 o
n 
S
po
ns
or
 

as
su
ra
nc
e)
 fo
r 
no
n-
S
ch
ed
ul
e 
7 
se
rv
ic
es
. 

P
la
nn
ed
 m
ee
tin
gs
 h
av
e 
be
en
 h
el
d 
an
d 

w
ill
 c
on
tin
ue
 to
 b
e 
ar
ra
ng
ed
 fo
r 
si
gn
 o
ff 

an
d 
C
ou
nc
il 
ad
vi
so
rs
 h
av
e 
be
en
 r
et
ai
ne
d 

to
 p
ro
vi
de
 a
dv
ic
e.
 T
he
 C
ou
nc
ils
 h
av
e 

cl
ea
rly
 a
rt
ic
ul
at
ed
 to
 S
po
ns
or
s 
th
at
 th
er
e 

sh
ou
ld
 n
ot
 b
e 
an
y 
w
ea
ke
ni
ng
 o
n 
th
e 

S
ec
ur
ity
 P
ac
ka
ge
 in
 p
la
ce
 w
ith
 r
eg
ar
d 
to
 

th
e 
C
iv
il 
E
ng
in
ee
rin
g 
W
or
k.
 T
he
re
 is
 n
o 

fin
an
ci
al
 im
pa
ct
 o
n 
S
po
ns
or
s 
fr
om
 

ev
en
ts
 to
 d
at
e 
an
d 
th
er
ef
or
e 
no
 fi
na
nc
ia
l 

S
ub
st
an
tia
l

Lo
w

10

T
he
 r
is
k 
ow
ne
rs
 a
re
 th
e 

S
ec
tio
n 
15
1 
O
ffi
ce
rs
 o
f 

ea
ch
 C
ou
nc
il 
su
pp
or
te
d 

by
 A
sh
ur
st
 a
s 
ad
vi
so
rs
 in
 

ca
se
 o
f c
on
tr
ac
t d
ef
au
lt.

K
ey
S
co
re 1-
7

Lo
w

8-
18

M
ed
iu
m

19
-2
4

H
ig
h

S
co
ri
n
g
 M
at
ri
x

V
er
y 
H
ig
h

9
19

21
21

H
ig
h

8
12

20
23

M
ed
iu
m

4
11

15
24

Lo
w

3
10

14
18

V
er
y 
Lo
w

2
6

13
17

A
lm
os
t i
m
po
ss
ib
le

1
5

7
16

N
eg
lig
ib
le

S
ub
st
an
tia
l
C
rit
ic
al

E
xt
re
m
e

Im
p
ac
t

Likelihood

A
cc
ep
ta
bl
e 
ris
k:
 n
ee
d 
pe
rio
di
c 
re
vi
ew
, 

lo
w
 c
os
t c
on
tr
ol
 im
pr
ov
em
en
ts
 s
ou
gh
t 

if 
po
ss
ib
le

A
cc
ep
ta
bl
e 
ris
k:
 c
lo
se
 m
on
ito
rin
g 
an
d 

co
st
 e
ffe
ct
iv
e 
co
nt
ro
l i
m
pr
ov
em
en
ts
 

so
ug
ht

U
na
cc
ep
ta
bl
e 
ris
k:
 im
m
ed
ia
te
 c
on
tr
ol
 / 

im
pr
ov
em
en
t r
eq
ui
re
d

R
is
k 
ju
d
g
em

en
t

69



70



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Claire Ward, monitoring officer on Tel (01432) 260657 

 

Meeting:  Audit and governance committee 

Meeting date: 24 November 2015 

Title of report: Annual report of the monitoring officer 

Report by: Monitoring officer 
 

Alternative options 

1 There are no alternative options as the report provides a factual summary of 
performance. 

Reasons for recommendations 

2 To enable the committee to be assured that high standards of conduct continue to be 
promoted and maintained and the council is adhering to the principles of openness 
and transparency. 

Classification  

Open 

Key decision  

This is not an executive decision.  

Wards affected 

Countywide  

Purpose 

To inform the committee of performance in the areas within the remit of the monitoring 
officer for the municipal year 2014/15. 

Recommendation(s) 

THAT:  
(a) the annual report of the monitoring officer be reviewed and any areas for 

further work identified for inclusion in the work programme.  

AGENDA ITEM 10

71



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Claire Ward, monitoring officer on Tel (01432) 260657 

Key considerations 

3 The role of the monitoring officer is a statutory office whose duties are set out in the 
Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and the Local Government Act 2000.   

4 The main responsibilities of the monitoring officer are to ensure that the council, its 
elected councillors and its staff act with probity and that all the council’s activities are 
in accordance with the law and the council’s constitution. The monitoring officer has 
responsibility for ensuring that the council avoids findings of maladministration and 
that it responds appropriately to the local government ombudsman in that regard.  

5 The monitoring officer is also responsible for dealing with allegations that councillors 
have failed to comply with the members’ code of conduct, and for administering the 
local standards framework. The monitoring officer’s responsibilities dovetail with 
those of the other statutory officers: the head of paid service (chief executive) and the 
section 151 officer (director of resources). 

Standards 

6 In accordance with the provisions of the Localism Act 2011 the council has adopted a 
code of conduct, and this has been made available to all parish councils in the county 
to inform the adoption of their own code. Council has appointed a number of 
independent people to serve on a panel to consider complaints that cannot be 
resolved informally and to provide a sounding board for the monitoring officer 
regarding complaints received. The monitoring officer is grateful for the time and 
commitment these independent panel members give. Following resignations from two 
independent persons recruitment is underway to appoint additional people to this role. 

7 The council maintains a register of interests for members of Herefordshire Council 
and parish councillors; these declarations are published on the ‘your councillors’ 
pages of the council’s website. An annual reminder is sent to members and parish 
councillors to ensure that declarations are kept up to date. The monitoring officer 
provides periodic briefing sessions for Herefordshire councillors and parish 
councillors on the code of conduct, including induction training for members following 
elections. Under the powers delegated to the monitoring officer by Council in 
September 2012 the monitoring officer granted one general dispensation to enable 
members to vote on appointments at the annual meeting of Council in May 2014. 

8 Between May 2014 and April 2015 a total of 11 complaints alleging a breach of the 
code of conduct were received. The table below shows the outcome of those 
complaints. This figure is a significant reduction on that for 2013/14. This is most 
likely explained by the fact that the changes to the standards regime brought about by 
the Localism Act 2011 lead to a number of complaints under the previous regime 
being heard in 2013. As the new standards regime has noticeably less ‘teeth’ than the 
previous system it is also possible that individuals are less likely to pursue complaints 
if they feel the outcome will have little impact. 

 

 

 

 

72



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Claire Ward, monitoring officer on Tel (01432) 260657 

Complaints received No breach 
identified 

Resolved 
informally 

Formal panel 
recommendation 

Year 13/14 14/15 13/14 14/15 13/14 14/15 13/14 14/15 

Herefordshire 
councillor 

16 3 6 2 5 1 5 0 

Town and 
parish 

councillor 

20 8 8 6 10 2 2 0 

Total 36 11 14 8 15 3 7 0 
 

9 Members are required to register offers (whether accepted or declined) of gifts and 
hospitality with an estimated value in excess of £25.00; any declarations received are 
published on the ‘your councillors’ pages of the council website. 

10 The council’s information access team, manages: 

• All formal complaints (note that with effect from 1 June 2014 the statutory 
children’s social care (CSC) complaints process has been administered and 
managed by the quality assurance team in the children’s wellbeing directorate)    

• Freedom of information (FOI) requests 
• Subject access requests (SAR) 
• Environmental regulation requests (EIR) 
• Potential data breaches 
• Police requests including proof of life requests 
• Requests from other authorities to share information 
• Community trigger alerts (since October 2014) 

11 Complaints performance and trends are regularly monitored and reviewed by the 
council’s management board. The table below provides a high level summary of the 
number of issues the team dealt with during the year and the previous year to provide 
comparison.  

 

Complaint FOI EIR SAR 
Data 

incident 
Police 
request 

LA 
request 

Community 
trigger 

2013/14 880 1280 153 56 64 34 8 N/A 

2014/15 
78 (CSC) 
867 (other) 
945 (total) 

1165 76 76 63 101 72 0 

 

12 Data incidents are incidents (potential breaches) reported internally to be investigated 
– they are not full-blown data breaches.  However, all incidents are investigated so 
that we can improve practice and learn from any mistakes.  Mandatory training is 
provided for all employees and for elected members on information governance 
issues, and the rate of reporting indicate a high level of awareness among staff of the 

73



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Claire Ward, monitoring officer on Tel (01432) 260657 

processes to be followed if a potential data breach has occurred. During 2014/15 
three data breaches were reported to the information commissioner’s office (ICO). 
The ICO has closed all of those cases finding the council’s response to them 
satisfactory.  

13 During 2014/15 three FOI/EIR referrals were made to the ICO.  The ICO have upheld 
the council’s decision in all three cases. 

14 The number of police and other local authority requests for information appears to 
have risen significantly over the two years; this is due to a change in the governing 
legislation, and subsequent change in local recording processes, which ensure that 
such requests are logged and monitored centrally. 

15 The community trigger gives individuals and communities the right to request a 
review of their case of anti-social behaviour or hate crime, if they are not happy with 
the response from the relevant authorities. 

16 A community trigger can be applied for if: 

• an individual has reported three or more incidents of anti-social behaviour in the 
past six months to the local authority, the police or their housing association 

• an individual and four or more further individuals have complained separately 
about similar incidents of anti-social behaviour in the past six months to the local 
authority, the police or their housing association. 

17 During 2014/15 a total of 47 enquires were reviewed by the Local Government 
Ombudsman (LGO) compared to 63 in 2013/14. Of these 17 were up-held, compared 
to two in 2013/14.  The LGO investigations that were upheld are listed as follows: 

• Adults and wellbeing had four LGO decisions upheld, concluding 
maladministration and injustice, three of these were adult social care cases 
where compensation was paid totalling £6,950 and one was housing related with 
a payment of £150. A further housing related case was upheld concluding 
maladministration but no injustice. 

• Economy communities corporate had six LGO decisions upheld, concluding 
maladministration but no injustice, of which five were due to “The Council failing 
to consider the National Planning Policy Framework when considering a planning 
application.” 

• Children’s Wellbeing had three LGO decisions upheld, two concluding 
maladministration and injustice, but no compensation paid and one concluding 
maladministration but no injustice.  

• Balfour Beatty Living Places had two LGO decisions upheld, one with no further 
action and one concluding maladministration but no injustice.  

• Hoople had one LGO decision upheld with no further action. 

18 The monitoring officer is responsible for ensuring that concerns raised by 
whistleblowers are investigated in accordance with the council’s policy. During 
2014/15 one disclosure was made, one was also made in 2013/14. As the matter 
related to a staffing issue it was more appropriate to deal with under the staff 
grievance process. In addition, one public interest declaration was made to an 
external body; the outcome of their investigation was reported to the committee in 
September 2014. 

 

74



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Claire Ward, monitoring officer on Tel (01432) 260657 

Corporate Governance 

19 In line with the council’s agreed values, one of the key elements of good corporate 
governance is open and transparent decision making. It is therefore appropriate to 
note any occasions when closed sessions of public meetings have taken place, when 
less than 28 days’ notice of intention to take a key executive decision has been given, 
and the number of scrutiny call-ins conducted. 

20 The public can be excluded from the whole or part of a meeting if the meeting is to 
discuss confidential or exempt information (as defined in schedule 12a of the Local 
Government Act 1972 as amended). During 2014/15 there were two occasions when 
this took place (once relating to regulatory sub-committee and once to the 
employment panel). 

21 Key decisions to be taken by the executive are notified on the council’s website 
generally giving the required 28 days’ notice. It is not always possible to provide this 
amount of notice and during 2014/15 there were eighteen occasions when a key 
decision was taken with more than five days but less than 28 days’ notice being 
given; in all cases the chairman of the relevant overview and scrutiny committee was 
informed of this and of the reason in each case. This is a significant increase over the 
2013/14 figure of nine. Whilst the reduction in notice period was in most cases due to 
matters beyond the council’s control (e.g. to respond to government deadlines or to 
respond in a timely way to rapidly changing circumstances) there were a number of 
instances which related to contract awards. The governance team is working closely 
with the commercial team and directorate commissioners to improve forward 
planning.   There were no cases of ‘special urgency’ where key decisions were taken 
with less than five days’ notice. 

22 General overview and scrutiny committee called-in two decisions of the executive 
during 2014/15, compared to one the previous year. The first was in relation to the 
South Wye transport package; two recommendations were made to cabinet 
requesting that further consideration be given to the robustness of the financial 
appraisal and the selection of SC2 given the costs related to environmental mitigation 
work. Cabinet considered these matters further and reaffirmed their decision. The 
second was in relation to a decision taken by the Marches local enterprise 
partnership joint committee regarding the Marches enterprise zone and, the 
committee endorsed the decision making no further recommendations. 

23 During the year 2014/15 the general overview and scrutiny committees made a total 
of 50 recommendations to the executive. Of these 35 were accepted in full, ten 
accepted in part, and five rejected.  

24 The monitoring officer is responsible for ensuring that any investigation using discreet 
surveillance or similar evidence gathering techniques is appropriately authorised in 
accordance with the provisions of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 
(RIPA). During 2014/15 no such authorisations were requested. In addition during the 
municipal year 2014/15 the Office of Surveillance Commissioners undertook an 
inspection of the council’s exercise and performance in relation to the powers 
available under RIPA. The inspector found that whilst the council had not made use 
of the powers for some time, the council maintained “… an enduring commitment to, 
and an understanding of, the responsibilities which the legislation places upon the 
organisation.” Three recommendations were made to ensure that the council’s 
policies remained in line with changing legislation and there is an action plan in place 
to implement these recommendations. 

75



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Claire Ward, monitoring officer on Tel (01432) 260657 

Community impact 

25 This report provides information about the council’s performance in relation to being 
open, transparent and accountable.   

Equality duty 

26 There are no equality duty implications arising directly from this report, which is for 
information.  

Financial implications 

27 There are no financial implications arising directly from this report, which is for 
information. 

Legal implications 

28 As set out in the report.   

Risk management 

29 There are no risks arising directly from the report which is for information. Effective 
governance processes mitigate the risk of legal change to decision-making and 
maintaining high standards of conduct mitigates risks to the reputation of the 
authority.  

Consultees 

30 Not applicable.  

Appendices 

• None. 

Background papers 

• None identified. 

76



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Annie Brookes, Governance Manager on Tel (01432) 260605 

 

 

Meeting: 
 

Audit & Governance Committee 

Meeting date: 24 November 2015 

Title of report: Governance improvement working group 
update 

Report by: Governance manager 
 

 

Alternative options 

1 To not complete a review of the current governance arrangements. In July 2015 the 
committee approved the next steps for the working group and work has already 
commenced. This approval recognised agreement reached between group leaders in 
October 2014 and a resolution passed by Council in December 2014 reflecting some 
perceptions that the current governance arrangements were not sufficiently 
transparent and limited the extent of member and stakeholder involvement in decision 
making.  

Classification 

Open 

Key Decision  

This is not an executive decision.  

Wards Affected 

Countywide  

Purpose 

To note the work of the governance improvement working group to date and agree the draft 
design principles to inform the further work of the group 

Recommendation(s) 

With reference to the outcomes to date of the governance improvement working group 
(as set out in the report and at appendix a) the draft design principles set out in 
appendix b be considered and approved. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 11

77



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Annie Brookes, Governance Manager on Tel (01432) 260605 

 

Reasons for recommendations 

2 To facilitate the continuing work of this group. This will ensure that the review of 
governance arrangements can be completed and recommendations made for suitable 
governance arrangements to be in place for the council. This exercise would in turn 
inform a detailed review of the current constitution.  

Key considerations 

3 Following fact-finding work that commenced in early 2015, the committee approved on 
16 July 2015 revised membership of a governance improvement working group and a 
timetable for work.  

4 As agreed, the group has completed the first ‘fact finding’ stage and, in light of the 
information gathered has drafted a set of design principles to shape possible future 
governance arrangements.  

5 The work of the group is progressing ahead of the timescales agreed by the 
committee in July and is reporting earlier than planned on the identification of design 
principles (November rather than January).   

6 The draft design principles are based on the findings and a group of SWOT analyses 
undertaken by the working group (attached at appendix A). The design principles are 
described in full in appendix B, but in summary are: 

• Members and officers perform effectively in clearly defined functions and roles 

• Maximise member engagement and participation, including the involvement of 
all members in the development of key policies 

• Decision making is informed, transparent and efficient 

• The council welcomes public engagement and makes accountability real 

7. In defining these design principles a number of action points were identified which 
would need to be addressed as the next stage of the process if the principles were to 
be realised. These actions have impact on the constitution and also on other areas as 
illustrated and would form the basis of any further recommendations arising which 
would be reported to the committee in March 2016. NB - The outcome of this stage 
was originally due to be reported to committee in April 2016 as agreed by committee 
in July.  

Community impact 

8 Having clear and shared design principles to guide the review of the constitutional 
arrangements supports the council achieve its aim to be open transparent and 
accountable.  

Equality duty 

9. The report does not impact on this area.  

 

78



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Annie Brookes, Governance Manager on Tel (01432) 260605 

 

Financial implications 

10. There are no financial implications. 

Legal implications 

11. There are no legal implications. 

Risk management 

12. If governance arrangements are not transparent or robust there are the risks that the 
council’s reputation may suffer; that it will be more difficult to encourage candidates to 
stand for election and that decision-making is less sound. By undertaking a review of 
governance arrangements in line with good practice these risks can be mitigated. 

Consultees 

None at this stage. 

Appendices 

Appendix A – SWOT analysis 

Appendix B - Design principles 

Background papers 

None identified. 

79



80



1. Members’ involvement in the policy-making / decision-making process (see also Scrutiny below) 
STRENGTHS WEAKNESSES 
• “Known” system 
• People with sound grasp of issues 
• Understanding Herefordshire 
• Clearly defined chain of command 
• Speed of decision-making 
• Forward Plan now more interactive 

• Don’t feel involved 
• Understanding roles 
• Too reactive 
• Resources: people (limited), and use of 
• Limited involvement 
• Appointment to roles (but legal requirement) 
• Perception of “back room” deals 
• Concern re. workloads / spread  
• Lack of clarity on how to feed into decision-

making process 
• Balance between council and executive 

functions 
• Members’ training not member-focused in 

design and delivery and timing 
OPPORTUNITIES THREATS 
• Understand and build on members’ skills and 

experience 
• Be more proactive and have closer 

relationship with scrutiny 
• Improve communication 
• Effective use of Groups 
• Understand and make better use of corporate 

plan   
• Use Understanding Herefordshire 
• Use of resources in different ways 
• Cross-party executive functions 
• Support members to make more use of 

council systems e.g. intranet 

• Break in continuity 
• Poor communication 
• Resources 
• Public disengagement and perception / 

knowledge of issues 
• Call-in process - hard to track history 
• Officers’ skills gaps re training delivery and 

design, presentations and report writing 
 

 

2. How the public / stakeholders are involved 
STRENGTHS WEAKNESSES 
• Public meetings and media /web etc. 
• Very few “exempt” reports 
• Open meetings 
• Questions from the public and propose items 

for future work plan 
• Earlier release of draft minutes 
 

• Low response-rates  
• Over-dependence on on-line methods 
• Lack of public knowledge of politics / council 

business 
• Misunderstood open-ness 
• Limited focus of where questions are directed 
• Number of clicks to web-site topics 

OPPORTUNITIES THREATS 
• Use IT to increase accessibility (beyond 

Planning Cttee) – webcasting and use of social 
media and Modern.gov (for audio webcasting) 

• Transparency Code 

• Perception of level of members’ knowledge 
about specific issues – engagement without 
undue influence 

• Ward members spend most of evenings 

Governance Improvement Working Group – SWOT Analysis 

81



• Varied ways of involving public 
• Formats for presentation – creativity 
• Timing of meetings and locations – consider 

adjusting some meetings within the day 
(evening meetings not considered sustainable) 
at discretion of the chair (only council mtgs are 
set times) 

• Webcasting and social media 
• Transparency statement at start of website 
• Group leaders to ask members’ views on timing 

of meetings  

tending to local matters with public, 
therefore conflict with meeting timings  

• Public transport issues and people travelling 
to meetings in winter time 

• Members’ existing commitments (personal 
and professional) 

 
3. Having a clear scheme of delegation at member, officer and partnership level 
STRENGTHS WEAKNESSES 
• Timely decisions 
• It works 

• Misunderstood! 
• Misunderstanding of how partnerships work 
• How training is provided for Members eg ref 

constitution  
• Understanding of the Forward Plan  
• Fear of asking “silly” questions about how 

decisions are/were made 
OPPORTUNITIES THREATS 
• Improve understanding of and clear escalation 

of processes / way of managing flow 
• Clarify officer decision call-in 
• Expand call-ins 
• Format / accessibility of constitution 
• To develop members’ knowledge of the SOD.  
• Have individual officer mentors for Members 

(or in groups)/ people who can be cross-
referenced 

• Make more use of Members’ handbook 
• Group leaders to make more use of their 

meetings by involving officers or relevant 
cabinet member 
 

 

 

4. How members are involved in performance management and improvement 
STRENGTHS WEAKNESSES 
• Understanding Herefordshire and amount of 

data   
• Poor understanding and use of data 

OPPORTUNITIES THREATS 
• Better use and understanding of data 
• Improve outcomes in relation to use of 

resources 

• Decreasing resources 
• Overwhelming data 

82



• Understanding Herefordshire 
• Linking outcomes to data 
• Greater role for scrutiny 
  
5. Scrutiny  
STRENGTHS WEAKNESSES 
• Can guide, advise and forewarn • Understanding Herefordshire - lots of data 

and presentational issues, overwhelming, lack 
of understanding of significance of data 

• not understanding what Members’ roles are 
and lack of knowledge of what scrutiny does 

• isn’t reactive to here and now but works to 
programme of work 

• has no executive power/ final say 
• lack of positive challenge  
• seen as oppositional rather than part of 

process 
 

 
OPPORTUNITIES THREATS 
• to be more forward looking 
• to be more challenging 
• to engage Members in scrutiny process 
• to have a better balance in the 

process/membership 
• to focus on performance / outcomes and what 

is better for the community 
• to strengthen the role of scrutiny to resolve 

other weaknesses identified in the SWOTs 
(pose as question) 

• more efficient scrutiny to make services more 
efficient e.g. responding to peer reviews etc. 
 

• potential disengagement of Members 
• fear of constructive criticism (officer and 

Members) 
• over emphasis on policy rather than 

performance 

 

 

83



84



G
o
ve
rn
an
ce
 Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
W
o
rk
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 / 
C
o
n
st
it
u
ti
o
n
al
 R
ev
ie
w
 2
01
5 

 
G
o
ve
rn
an
ce
 d
es
ig
n
 p
ri
n
ci
p
le
 

C
o
n
st
it
u
ti
o
n
 

O
th
er
  

1.
 
 

M
em
be
rs
 a
nd
 o
ffi
ce
rs
 p
er
fo
rm
 e
ffe
ct
iv
el
y 
in
 

cl
ea
rly
 d
ef
in
ed
 fu
nc
tio
ns
 a
nd
 r
ol
es
 

• 
R
ev
ie
w
 fu
nc
tio
ns
 s
ch
em
e 

• 
R
ev
ie
w
 s
ch
em
e 
of
 d
el
eg
at
io
n 

• 
F
oc
us
 fo
r 
m
em
be
r 
de
ci
si
on
 m
ak
in
g 

on
 s
tr
at
eg
y 
an
d 
po
lic
y,
 w
ith
 o
ffi
ce
r 

de
ci
si
on
-m
ak
in
g 
fo
cu
ss
ed
 o
n 

op
er
at
io
ns
/im
pl
em
en
ta
tio
n 

• 
C
le
ar
 p
ur
po
se
 a
nd
 v
is
io
n 
fo
r 
th
e 

or
ga
ni
sa
tio
n 
fo
cu
ss
ed
 o
n 
ou
tc
om
es
 

• 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 r
ol
es
 a
nd
 

re
sp
on
si
bi
lit
ie
s 
cl
ea
r 

• 
T
ra
in
in
g 
an
d 
de
ve
lo
pm
en
t 

fo
r 
m
em
be
rs
 a
nd
 o
ffi
ce
rs
 

• 
C
om
m
un
ic
at
io
ns
/w
eb
si
te
 –
 

en
su
re
 p
eo
pl
e 
kn
ow
 th
e 

in
fo
rm
at
io
n 
an
d 
su
pp
or
t 

av
ai
la
bl
e 
an
d 
ca
n 
fin
d 
it 

• 
P
la
in
 E
ng
lis
h/
ea
sy
 g
ui
de
s 

 

2.
 
 

M
ax
im
is
e 
m
em
be
r 
en
ga
ge
m
en
t a
nd
 

pa
rt
ic
ip
at
io
n,
 in
cl
ud
in
g 
th
e 
in
vo
lv
em
en
t o
f a
ll 

m
em
be
rs
 in
 th
e 
de
ve
lo
pm
en
t o
f k
ey
 p
ol
ic
ie
s 

 

• 
C
la
rif
y/
st
re
ng
th
en
 r
ol
e 
of
 m
em
be
rs
 

in
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 m
an
ag
em
en
t a
nd
 

im
pr
ov
em
en
t 

• 
C
on
fir
m
 b
ud
ge
t a
nd
 p
ol
ic
y 

fr
am
ew
or
k 
ite
m
s 

• 
S
cr
ut
in
y 
st
ru
ct
ur
e 
re
vi
ew
ed
 a
nd
/o
r 

po
lic
y 
pa
ne
ls
 s
up
po
rt
in
g 
ca
bi
ne
t 

m
em
be
rs
 

• 
W
ith
 r
eg
ar
d 
to
 p
ol
ic
y 

de
ve
lo
pm
en
t -
 c
le
ar
 p
ro
ce
ss
 

flo
w
 / 
tim
es
ca
le
s 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 

al
l s
ta
ke
ho
ld
er
s 
in
cl
ud
ed
 

an
d 
at
 th
e 
rig
ht
 p
oi
nt
, e
.g
. 

un
io
ns
, p
ar
tn
er
s 
et
c.
 

• 
E
ns
ur
e 
fe
ed
ba
ck
 is
 g
iv
en
 to
 

th
os
e 
co
nt
rib
ut
in
g 

3.
 
 

D
ec
is
io
n 
m
ak
in
g 
is
 in
fo
rm
ed
, t
ra
ns
pa
re
nt
 a
nd
 

ef
fic
ie
nt
 

• 
C
le
ar
 s
ch
em
e 
of
 d
el
eg
at
io
n 

• 
P
re
su
m
pt
io
n 
of
 o
pe
nn
es
s 

• 
S
et
 th
re
sh
ol
d 
be
lo
w
 w
hi
ch
 o
ffi
ce
r 

de
ci
si
on
s 
do
 n
ot
 n
ee
d 
to
 b
e 

re
co
rd
ed
 

• 
R
ev
ie
w
 k
ey
 d
ec
is
io
n 
th
re
sh
ol
d 

  

• 
F
or
w
ar
d 
pl
an
 r
ob
us
t a
nd
 

cl
ea
rly
 u
nd
er
st
oo
d 
an
d 

id
en
tif
ie
s 
ty
pe
 o
f d
ec
is
io
n 

/s
tr
at
eg
y,
 p
ol
ic
y 
 

• 
D
ec
is
io
n 
re
po
rt
s 

pr
op
or
tio
na
te
 to
 s
ca
le
 o
f 

de
ci
si
on
 

• 
T
ra
in
in
g 
fo
r 
re
po
rt
 a
ut
ho
rs
 

• 
Id
en
tif
y 
ev
id
en
ce
 s
ou
rc
es
 

an
d 
de
m
on
st
ra
te
 h
ow
 th
ey
 

ar
e 
be
in
g 
us
ed
 

• 
M
ax
im
is
e 
us
e 
of
 te
ch
no
lo
gy
 

to
 m
in
im
is
e 
bu
re
au
cr
ac
y 

an
d 
co
st
 

85



G
o
ve
rn
an
ce
 Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
W
o
rk
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 / 
C
o
n
st
it
u
ti
o
n
al
 R
ev
ie
w
 2
01
5 

 
G
o
ve
rn
an
ce
 d
es
ig
n
 p
ri
n
ci
p
le
 

C
o
n
st
it
u
ti
o
n
 

O
th
er
  

4.
 
 

T
he
 c
ou
nc
il 
w
el
co
m
es
 p
ub
lic
 e
ng
ag
em
en
t a
nd
 

m
ak
es
 a
cc
ou
nt
ab
ili
ty
 r
ea
l. 

• 
P
ub
lic
 in
vo
lv
em
en
t a
t m
ee
tin
gs
 

(q
ue
st
io
ns
 a
t a
ll 
m
ee
tin
gs
/q
ue
st
io
ns
 

w
ith
ou
t n
ot
ic
e)
 

• 
F
or
w
ar
d 
pl
an
 p
ub
lic
at
io
n 

ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts
 

• 
S
cr
ut
in
y 
ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts
 r
ob
us
t a
nd
 

re
so
ur
ce
d 

• 
S
ta
nd
ar
ds
 o
f b
eh
av
io
ur
 (
m
em
be
rs
 

an
d 
of
fic
er
s)
 c
le
ar
ly
 a
rt
ic
ul
at
ed
 

• 
Lo
ca
lit
y 
ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts
 

 

• 
U
se
 o
f 

w
eb
ca
st
in
g/
te
ch
no
lo
gy
 to
 

im
pr
ov
e 
pu
bl
ic
 a
cc
es
s 

• 
T
im
in
g/
lo
ca
tio
n 
of
 s
cr
ut
in
y 

an
d 
C
ab
in
et
 m
ee
tin
gs
 

fle
xi
bl
e 
at
 C
ha
irm
an
’s
 

di
sc
re
tio
n 

• 
W
eb
si
te
 a
nd
 

co
m
m
un
ic
at
io
ns
 m
ak
e 

in
fo
rm
at
io
n 
ea
sy
 to
 a
cc
es
s 

• 
F
or
w
ar
d 
pl
an
 u
nd
er
st
oo
d 

an
d 
ac
ce
ss
ib
le
 

• 
Im
pr
ov
ed
 c
us
to
m
er
 

fe
ed
ba
ck
 a
nd
 u
se
 o
f 

in
fo
rm
at
io
n 
he
ld
 to
 in
fo
rm
 

im
pr
ov
em
en
t 

 
 

86



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Annie Brookes, Governance Manager on Tel (01432) 260605 

 

 

Meeting: 
 

Audit & Governance Committee 

Meeting date: 24 November 2015 

Title of report: A&G committee work programme update 

Report by: Governance Manager 
 

Alternative options 

There are no alternative options as regards whether or not to have a work programme as the 
committee will require such a programme in order to set out its objectives for the coming 
year.  

The programme was discussed and finalised by the committee in March 2015. However, 
following discussion, adjustments to timescales and content may be required and amended 
from time to time.  

Reasons for recommendations 

1 The work programme is recommended as the committee is required to define and 
make known its work for the coming year. This will ensure that matters pertaining to 
audit and governance are tracked and progressed in order to provide sound 

Classification  

Open 

Key Decision  

This is not an executive decision.  

Wards Affected 

Countywide  

Purpose 

To provide an update on the Committee’s work programme for 2015-16. 

Recommendation 

THAT:  
subject to any updates made by the committee, the updated work programme 
for 2015-16 for the Audit and Governance Committee be agreed. 

AGENDA ITEM 12

87



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Annie Brookes, Governance Manager on Tel (01432) 260605 

 

governance for the council. 

2 The Committee is asked to note the updates to the work programme and consider 
any further adjustments.  

Key considerations 

3 A number of items considered by the committee will be ongoing and updates are 
programmed in to the year. Included in this updated programme are an update from 
the governance improvement working group (constitution review) and revisions to the 
financial procedure rules for January 2016. A further addition for March is the setting 
of the committee’s work programme for 2016-17.  

4 The routine business of the committee has been reflected as far as is known, 
including the regular reporting from internal and external auditors.  

Community impact 

5 The work of the committee supports the council in demonstrating its values, and in 
particular the commitment to being open, transparent and accountable. 

Equality duty 

6 This report does not impact on this area.  

Financial implications 

7 There are no financial implications.  

Legal implications 

8 There are no legal implications.   

Risk management 

9 The programme can be adjusted in year to respond as necessary to risks as they are 
identified; the committee also provides assurance that risk management processes 
are robust and effective. 

Consultees 

10 Internal and external auditors, head of corporate finance, monitoring officer and 
governance manager have contributed to content of the work programme.  

Appendices 

Appendix A – A&G Work Programme 2015-16 

Background papers 

None identified. 
 

88



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Annie Brookes, Governance Manager on Tel (01432) 260605 

 

 

89



90



   

Last update: 6 Nov 2015 
 

Audit & Governance Work Programme 2015-16 
Meeting Items Comment 
November 2015 • Annual Audit letter TT/PR) 

• Internal Audit Plan Progress Report (JG/PR) 
• Risk Register (PR) 
• Waste Loan Update (JR) 
• Monitoring Officer’s Annual Report (AB) 
• Update from Governance Improvement Working 

Group – constitution (CW) 
• Work plan update (RG) 
•  

 

January 2016 • Staff Survey Report (TJP/PR) 
• Internal Audit Plan Progress Report (JG/PR) 

• SWAP training and development Update (JG/PR) 
• Update on Annual Governance Statement (PR/AB) 
• Performance Appraisals for Elected Members 

(CW/RG)  
• Update from Governance Improvement Working 

Group – constitution (CW) 
• Revisions to financial procedure rules (JR) 
• Work plan update (RG) 

 

 

March 2016 • External Audit update (TT/PR) 
• Internal Audit Plan update (JG/PR) 
• Internal Audit Plan Progress Report (JG/PR) 
• Internal Audit Charter (JG/PR) 
• Internal Audit Plan 2016-17 (JG/PR) 
• Biannual forecast of revenue and capital outturn 

(JR/AH) 
• Update from Governance Improvement Working 

Group – constitution (CW) 
• Future work programme for 2016-17 (RG) 

 

Audit & Governance Work Programme 2016-17 (carry to new sheet) 
May 2016 •   
July 2016 • AGS final outturn 2015-16 (AB/PR) 

• AGS action plan 2016-17 (AB/PR) 
 

September 2016 • Signing of Accounts (JR/PR)  
November 2016 •   
 
 
 
 

91



92


	Agenda
	Public Information and fire info
	5 Minutes
	6 Annual audit letter
	Appendix 1 annual audit letter 201415

	7 Internal audit plan progress report
	Appendix A - Audit Plan Progress November 2015

	8 Corporate risk register
	9 Energy from waste (EfW) loan update
	Appendix a financial advisor update
	Appendix b technical update
	Appendix c technical quality update
	Appendix d Lenders risk register 241115

	10 Annual report of the monitoring officer
	11 Governance improvement working group update
	APPENDIX A - SWOT Analysis
	APPENDIX B - Governance design principles

	12 Work programme update
	Appendix A Work Programme 2015-16 (Updated 6 Nov 2015)


